From: —

Sent: 27 April 2016 15:16
To: '

Cc / _
Subject: 270216 1516 RE: Brook Green Braintree
Attachments: TNO2_Land_at Flitch Way Rayne TN_Response_Review_Issued.pdf

Before we meet you it would be useful to have your response to the attached AECOM technical
note

Regards

!lg!wa S !n land | Woodlands | Manton Lane | Bedford | MK41 7LW

Tel:

Web: http://www.highways.gov.uk

From:
Sent: 27 April 2016 10:53
To:
Cc:
Subject: Brook Green Braintree

v

Following your respective consultation responses on the Outline Application for the Brook Green proposals | believe
it would be useful to meet up to discuss the way forward, the need for any additional assessment required and to
discuss any potential solutions etc.

If you could indicate your respective availability over the next two weeks (W/C 2" May-13th May) that would be
most helpful.

| could arrange a meeting room here if required. Please feel free to call me to discuss.

Kind Regards

-
e —

Journey Transport Planning Ltd
Room 436

4™ Floor

Victoria House






Technical Note 02 A=COM

Project: Highways England Spatial Planning Arrangement Job No: 60343567 DX077.002

Subject: Land at Flitch Way, Rayne Response Review

Prepared by: ] Date: 20" April 2016

Checked by: [ ] Date: 215t April 2016

Verified & . th .

Approved by: ] Date: 25™ April 2016

1. Introduction

1.1. This Technical Note (TN02) has been prepared by AECOM on behalf of Highways England (HE) to
document a review of a follow up Technical Note Response (TNR) associated with a proposed
development at the Land at Flitch Way, Rayne (LaFW), Braintree. The TNR has been prepared by
Journey Transport Planning (JTP) on behalf of the developers, Acorn Group Braintree Ltd (AGB).

1.2.  AECOM previously completed a review of the Transport Assessment (TA) and Travel Plan (TP)
prepared by JTP in October 2015, in relation to the LaFW proposed development. The results of
AECOM'’s review of the TA is contained in our Technical Note (TN01) dated 26t February 2016..

1.3. The intention of this TNO2 is to review the contents of the additional information in the TNR to
determine to what extent JTP has addressed the concerns of AECOM raised within TNO1, regarding
the potential impact of the proposed development on the Strategic Road Network (SRN). In the event
a material impact is anticipated, this TNO2 will provide advice and recommendations to assist HE in
understanding the potential impact of the proposed LaFW development on the operation of the SRN.

1.4. The proposed development is for up to 1,600 new dwellings, up to 0.6 hectares of employment land
and associated facilities, including a primary school, a local centre including shops and green
infrastructure. The proposed development is located immediately to the west of Braintree, which is
to the west of Colchester and north of Chelmsford, within Essex. The closest junctions on the SRN
are the A131/Pods Brook Road roundabout and Galleys Corner roundabout on the A120, which are
located approximately 0.5km and 4km from the proposed development site respectively.

2. Policy Review

2.1. Inthe previous TN, AECOM expressed concern that this site was not included in any Local Plan or
in any other strategy document. There is therefore a risk that the implications of this development on
the SRN have not been considered fully as the emerging Local Plan has not been finalised. This
concern is still outstanding.

2.2. AECOM previously noted that JTP had not referenced the HE’s “Planning for the Future” document

within their TA. The TNR acknowledges this and explains this was due to the timescale of the
publication of the HE document overlapping with the production of the TA, leaving JTP with no time
for specific inclusion. The TNR confirms the aims of the document are considered within the LaFW
assessment. AECOM consider this reasonable.
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3.1.

3.2.

41.

4.2.

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

Site Accessibility

AECOM previously highlighted the need for Road Safety Audits (RSA) for the two new access
junctions and the two junction capacity mitigation schemes proposed for the development. Given
that these works are located on the Local Road Network but are necessary to mitigate the impact of
the development on the SRN, it was recommended that the view of Essex County Council (ECC) is
obtained to confirm acceptance of the schemes.

JTP acknowledge the requirement for a RSA and state that this has now been completed. However,
Appendix A of the TNR, which purports to contain the RSA is missing from the PDF and the contents
page lists it as TBF (to be finalised?). No details have been provided by JTP to confirm that ECC
have reviewed the RSA and accept it. Therefore AECOM’s original recommendation is _still
outstanding; the view of ECC is required to determine if the scheme is compliant and safe before the
HE can confirm acceptance of the proposed scheme.

Highway Safety

AECOM previously requested that the extent of the study area used to assess accident data is
confirmed. JTP detailed in the TNR that the assessment included:

¢ Rayne Road

e Pods Brook Road

e A120

e A120 Slips at the A131 Junction

e A120 Roundabouts at the A131 junction

e Skyline Roundabout on the A131

AECOM consider this to be reasonable. Considering the impact of the proposed development on
Galleys Corner (as detailed below) it is recommended that the study area is extended to include

Galleys Corner.
Scope of Study

Assessment Year

In TNO1, AECOM queried the lack of information about an Opening Year for this development. The
junction capacity tests have all been carried out in an Assessment Year of 2025. AECOM concluded
that, if the junction improvements proposed mitigate the development’s impact in the Assessment
Year, there would be little merit in requesting an Opening Year assessment. However, it is not yet
clear that this is the case and an Opening Year assessment may still be required.

Study Area

In the previous TN, AECOM noted that the Galleys Corner Roundabout should be included in the
study area, as this is an already congested roundabout and the HE would be interested to understand
the development’s impact on this junction.

The TNR presents the quantum of development trips at Galleys Corner Roundabout. The proposed
impact is presented in Table 1 below, this shows the proposed development impact with and without
a Travel Plan in place.
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Table 1: Summary of Development Vehicle Trips at Galleys Corner Roundabout — JTP Analysis

54.

5.5.

5.6.

5.7.

6.1.

6.2.

Page: 3 of 15

AM Peak PM Peak
Direction Traffic impact Traffic impact Traffic impact Traffic impact
without TP with TP without TP with TP

A120 Eastbound

(towards 105 92 45 40
roundabout)

A120 Westbound

(away from 44 39 74 65
roundabout)

It is worth noting there are discrepancies between the A120 Eastbound and Westbound traffic impact
presented in the TNR in relation to Galleys Corner (paragraphs 9.4 and 9.5) and that in paragraph

6.4 of the TNR. AECOM recommend that it is confirmed which the correct impact is.

The additional traffic generated by the proposed LaFW development at Galleys Corner Roundabout
is likely to have a material impact on the junction. It is therefore recommended that the Galleys Corner
Roundabout is included within the study area, although it is recognised that due to the presence of
a VISSIM model no additional traffic counts are required. It is recommended that an additional run of
the VISSIM model to fully determine this impact is completed to understand the potential contribution
required by the development towards a mitigation scheme.

Peak Hours

In TNO1, AECOM noted that the raw traffic data was not provided therefore it had not been possible
to confirm the peak hours presented. The TNR provides the raw traffic data in Appendix 2. It should
be noted that Appendix 2 only contains traffic flow data for Springwood roundabout, and the A120
North and South roundabout.

The peak hours presented in the TA are 08:00 to 09:00 for the AM peak and 17:00 to 18:00 for the
PM peak which represent an average of the surveys across the survey area. AECOM have used the
traffic survey data to verify the peak hours. Using the provided survey data the average AM peak for
the three junctions is 07:30-08:30 and the PM peak is 16:45-17:45. AECOM recommend that JTP

provide justification for using a different peak hour or update their capacity assessment based on the
peak hour identified by AECOM.

Trip Generation and Distribution

Vehicular Trip Generation

AECOM previously reviewed the trip generation and estimated that a two form entry primary school
would total approximately 420 pupils. AECOM recommended that JTP revise the trip generation
based on the trip generation for 420 pupils. JTP agree with this recommendation in the TNR and the
trip rates proposed by AECOM previously have been utilised in the revised assessment. AECOM
consider this reasonable.

Table 2 presents a summary of the AECOM agreed proposed trip numbers accounting for the
increase in pupils at the primary school.
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6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

71.

7.2.

Table 2: Summary of Development Vehicle Trips

AM Peak PM Peak
Land Use In out In out
1600 Dwellings 200 545 447 232
Business Park 31 7 5 30
Primary School (210 Pupils) * 61 44 4 8
Total 292 596 456 270

* - after the application of an agreed 50% internalisation factor

Vehicular Trip Distribution

Within the previous TN, a comparison was made between JTP and AECOM peak hour vehicular trip
distribution. AECOM considered the difference between the AECOM and JTP distribution to be
material on the SRN and requested that JTP provide further justification of their distribution, in
particular on the SRN.

JTP responded in the TNR and agreed to use the trip distribution presented by AECOM in the
previous TN. AECOM consider this concern resolved.

Table 3 provides a summary of the peak hour vehicular trips and their distribution based upon the
AECOM vehicular trip distribution assumptions set out in TNO1.

Table 3: Summary of Development Generated Vehicle Trip Distribution
AM Peak PM Peak

Destination
In Out In Out

A131 South (27%) 78 160 123 73
A120 East (19%) 43 106 87 50
A120 West (28%) 64 154 126 73
Non SRN (26%) 105 176 121 74
Total 292 596 456 270

Traffic Impact

Traffic Re-assignment
AECOM previously queried the assumptions used to calculate the re-assigned traffic flows
associated with the opening up of Panfield Lane, as presented within Figures 7-10 of the TA.

JTP indicate that the re-assignment was based on the submitted TA relating to Panfield Lane in
support of allocating the site in the Local Plan. The relevant figures from the Panfield Lane TA are
contained in Appendix 3 of the TNR. It should be noted that the segment of text provided from
Panfield Lane TA details that Figures 18 and 19 present the reassignment of traffic to/from the
industrial estate and Figures 20 and 21 present the reassignment of traffic associated with the
existing residential population of Bocking North and South Wards. Appendix 3 of the TNR only
contains Figures 18 and 19 therefore it is not possible to verify the reassigned residential traffic
presented in Figure 8 and 10 of the TNR. AECOM recommend that this information is provided.
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7.3.

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

8.4.

8.5.

8.6.

AECOM has reviewed the distribution proposed as part of the Panfield Lane TA in relation to the
employment trips and are unable to determine how the TNR Figures 7 and 9 have been calculated.
The Panfield TA details that 10% of the to/from Rayne Road/Aetheric Road/Panfield Lane south and
10% of traffic to/from Pierefitte Way/Aetheric Road/Panfield Lane South will reassign if it has an
origin or destination in Bocking North or South Wards. Using this assumption it has not been possible
for AECOM to verify the numbers presented by JTP. It is recommended that further information is

provided.

Capacity Analysis

In the previous TN AECOM detailed that accurate HGV percentages should have been utilised within
the junction modelling considering that traffic survey data was available, instead of the default 10%
HGV proportion assumption used within the modelling.

JTP responded in the TNR that the use of HGV defaults at 10% was to represent a robust
assumption, as the observed HGV flows are significantly lower. The junction models were re-run for
the TNR utilising the actual HGV percentages. AECOM consider this now resolved.

AECOM previously noted that the junction modelling could not be verified because there was no
queue data and advised a weekday queue length survey is completed to help understand if the base
models are a reasonable reflection of the current junction operation.

The TNR details that queue length surveys were completed on Wednesday 9% and Thursday 10t
March in the AM and PM peaks in 5 minute intervals. The queue data is provided within Appendix 5
of the TNR. It is assumed that the queue survey data was collected in 2016. It is acknowledged that
the queue data is collected on a different day to the traffic count survey therefore a comparison
between modelled and observed queues may not fully reliable but will allow for a sense check of the
model. The TNR does not provide any commentary or analysis of the observed queue data in
comparison to the base junction models. It is confirmed that the junction models have been re-run
using the updated traffic flows and are presented in the TNR.

For the majority of the model assessments the following scenarios were provided:
e 2015 Base Flows
e 2025 Forecast Flows
e 2025 Forecast + Committed Development Flows
e 2025 with Development Flows
o 2025 with Development and Travel Plan Reduction Flows

Springwood Drive / Rayne Road / Pod’s Brook Road Roundabout — Existing Layout

The updated results of the ARCADY model for the Springwood Drive / Rayne Road / Pod’s Brook
Road roundabout with a comparison to the observed maximum queue are presented in Table 4.

Direct Tel: +44 (0)1727 53 5307 AECOM House

T +44 (0)1727 535000 63-77 Victoria Street
F +44 (0)1727 535099 St Albans
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Table 4: Springwood Drive / Rayne Road / Pod’s Brook Road roundabout (existing layout)
ARCADY results (JTP figures) with comparison to observed queue data

Max RFC Max Queue ngeMu:x Max Max Queue ngeMu:x
Arm (PCUs) (PCUs) RFC (PCUs) (PCUs)
AM 2015 Base Flows PM 2015 Base Flows
Springwood Drive 0.24 <1 10 0.78 4 82
Rayne Road East 0.71 3 7 0.45 1 11
Pod’s Brook Road 1.08 46 35 0.68 3 70
Rayne Road West 0.46 1 15 0.24 <1 11
AM 2025 Forecast Flows B
Flows
Springwood Drive 0.28 <1 0.94 1
Rayne Road East 0.81 5 0.53
Pod’s Brook Road 1.26 124 0.78 4
Rayne Road West 0.52 2 0.28 <1
AM 2025 Forecast + PM 2025 Forecast +
Committed Committed

Springwood Drive 0.49 2 0.91 9
Rayne Road East 0.70 3 0.51 2
Pod’s Brook Road 1.23 121 0.89 8
Rayne Road West 0.50 2 0.34 1

AM 2025 With PM 2025 With

Development Development
Springwood Drive 0.56 2 0.94 12
Rayne Road East 0.83 5 0.57 2
Pod’s Brook Road 1.46 286 1.04 34
Rayne Road West 0.66 2 0.33 1

AM 2025 With PM 2025 With

Development inc. TP Development inc. TP
Reduction Reduction

Springwood Drive 0.59 2 0.99 19
Rayne Road East 0.81 4 0.58 2
Pod’s Brook Road 1.67 486 1.03 30
Rayne Road West 0.64 2 0.4 1

8.7. It should be noted that Pods Brook Road is approximately 800m long and a queue of 140 PCUs back
from Rayne Road would effectively tail back as far as the north roundabout at the A120/A131
Panners junction. This would be regarded as a ‘Severe’ impact in the context of Circular 02/2013
para 9.

8.8. Table 4 highlights some significant variations between the modelled maximum queues and those
observed on site in March 2016, in particular within the PM peak. It is acknowledged that the traffic
flow data and queue data has been collected on different dates and this can account for some
variation in the data but is not likely to be responsible for such large differences. The risk of a long
queue causing a severe impact at the Trunk Road would be much more likely with the observed
queues than with the modelled ones. |t is therefore vital that the base models are re-evaluated to
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8.9.

8.10.

8.11.

8.12.

8.13.

8.14.

8.15.

8.16.

ensure they more accurately represent the observed queue data or that justification is provided for
the results shown.

The 2025 Forecast AM’ and ‘2025 Forecast PM’ ARCADY models are assumed to be based on the
‘AM Peak 08:00-09:00 2025 Forecast Flows Braintree’ (Figure 3) and ‘PM Peak 17:00-18:00 2025
Forecast Flows Braintree’ (Figure 4) traffic flow diagrams.

The ‘2025 Reassigned AM’ and ‘2025 Reassigned PM’ ARCADY models are assumed to be based
on the ‘AM Peak 08:00-09:00 Total 2025 Re-assigned Base Flows with Panfield Lane’ (Figure 11)
and ‘PM Peak 17:00-18:00 Total 2025 Re-assigned Base Flows with Panfield Lane’ (Figure 12) traffic
flow diagrams. The results of this modelling are presented in the 2025 Forecast + Committed’
section of Table 4.

Similarly, the 2025 Reassigned with Development, AM’ and ‘2025 Reassigned with Development,
PM’ ARCADY models are assumed to be based on the ‘AM Peak 2025 Total with Development
Flows’ (Figure 22) and ‘PM Peak 2025 Total with Development Trips 2025’ (Figure 30) traffic flow
diagrams.

The 2025, with Mitigated Development AM’ and 2025, with Mitigated Development PM’ ARCADY
models are assumed to be based on the ‘AM Peak 2025 Total with Mitigated Development Flows’
(Figure 23) and ‘PM Peak 2025 Total with Mitigated Development Trips 2025’ (Figure 31) traffic flow
diagrams. The results of this modelling is presented in the ‘2025 with Development’ section of Table
4.

Some slight discrepancies were found which are not very significant. The only significant
discrepancies found are shown below. AECOM considers this discrepancy significant and
recommend that the modelling is redone as currently the results with a ‘TP reduction’ are worse than
without which is not correct..

According to the Traffic Flow diagram (Figure 23), in the 2025, with Mitigated Development AM’
model, the turning flows for:

e Arm C, Pod’s Brook Road, to Arm B, Rayne Road East, should be 385 (it is inputted as 585)

Taking the updated ARCADY modelling results at face value (notwithstanding AECOM’s concern
regarding the base model queue length comparison), the results in Table 4 show that the addition of
development generated traffic at the roundabout has an adverse effect on the capacity and predicted
queuing on the Pod’s Brook arm. Therefore the previously raised concern is still outstanding as there
is the potential for vehicles to queue back to the Trunk Road. The results after the re-run of the model
show that mitigation measures are required to improve the capacity of the Springwood Drive
roundabout. JTP have acknowledged that the proposed development would add further strain to this
roundabout and as such they have proposed an improved roundabout layout.

Springwood Drive / Rayne Road / Pod’s Brook Road Roundabout — Proposed Layout

The updated results of the Springwood Drive / Rayne Road / Pod’s Brook Road roundabout ARCADY
modelling for the proposed layout are presented in Table 5.
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8.17.

8.18.

8.19.

8.20.

Table 5: Springwood Drive / Rayne Road / Pod’s Brook Road roundabout (proposed layout)
ARCADY results and comparison to observed queue data

Max Queue Max Queue
Arm Max RFC (PCUs) Max RFC (PCUs)
AM 2015 Base Flows PM 2015 Base Flows
Springwood Drive 0.25 <1 0.78 4
Rayne Road East 0.71 3 0.45 1
Pod’s Brook Road 0.50 1 0.33 1
Rayne Road West 0.49 1 0.24 <1
AM 2025 Forecast + Committed PM 2025 Forecast + Committed
Springwood Drive 0.50 2 0.91 9
Rayne Road East 0.70 3 0.51 1
Pod’s Brook Road 0.58 2 0.45 1
Rayne Road West 0.58 3 0.34 1
AM 2025 With Development (not PM 2025 With Development (not
inc.TP Reduction) inc.TP Reduction)
Springwood Drive 0.62 2 0.96 15
Rayne Road East 0.81 5 0.56 1
Pod’s Brook Road 0.69 3 0.50 1
Rayne Road West 0.86 6 0.34 1

As mentioned in paragraph 8.13 of this TN, AECOM found a discrepancy between the traffic flow
diagrams and the turning counts entered into the model. However, this discrepancy only affects the
‘with TP’ scenario and therefore does not affect the results in this table. It should be noted, a 2025
with development including TP reduction model is not presented.

The updated ARCADY results show the proposed mitigation measures at the Springwood Drive /
Rayne Road / Pod's Brook Road roundabout to be sufficient to absorb the growth from the
development on the Pod’s Brook Road arm. AECOM consider this to be sufficient to minimise the
risk of queuing back to the SRN. Springwood Drive could still experience some queuing following the
development, which is an issue for ECC to confirm acceptance of. It should be noted that this
conclusion should be revisited once further comparisons between the base model observed and
modelled queues have been undertaken and any changes to the model have been transferred to the
forecast scenarios.

This conclusion is also dependent upon the acceptance by Essex County Council (the Local Highway
Authority) of the mitigation measures proposed. Although a Stage 1 RSA of the proposed design is
said to have been completed, AECOM have not seen this document and there is no evidence that
ECC have accepted it. Until this acceptance is confirmed. it would be premature for Highways
England to rely upon this scheme to mitigate a potentially severe impact at the Trunk Road.
AECOM'’s previous recommendation that ECC’s approval is confirmed is therefore still outstanding.

A120 / Pod’s Brook Road / A131 (North) roundabout — Existing Layout

The updated results of the ARCADY model for the A120 / Pod’s Brook Road / A131 (North)
roundabout are presented in Table 6.
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8.21.

8.22.

8.23.

Page: 9 of 15

Table 6: A120 / Pod’s Brook Road / A131 (North) roundabout (existing layout) ARCADY
results and comparison to observed queue data

Max Queue e Max Queue S
Am Max RFC (PCUs) Queue Max RFC (PCUs) Queue
(PCUs) (PCUs)
AM 2015 Base Flows PM 2015 Base Flows

Pod’s Brook . N

Road 0.50 1 0.75 3
A131 Under 0.42 1 6 0.28 <1 4

Bridge
A120 Entry 0.30 <1 17 0.60 2 11

AM 2025 Forecast + Committed PM 2025 Forecast + Committed

ko 0.67 2 0.98 19

Road
A131 Under 0.50 1 0.34 1

Bridge
A120 Entry 0.37 1 0.73 3

AM 2025 Total Flows PM 2025 Total Flows

ko 0.99 26 1.17 93

Road
A131 Under 0.55 2 0.42 1

Bridge
A120 Entry 0.43 1 0.85 6

AM 2025 Total Flows inc.TP Reduction PM 2025 Total Flows inc. TP Reduction

ko 0.96 43 1.15 85

Road
A131 Under 0.54 4 0.42 1

Bridge
A120 Entry 0.42 4 0.85 6

*no queue data presented in Appendix 4 of TNR

The ‘Scenario 1, PM 2015 Base’ ARCADY model is assumed to be based on the ‘PM Peak 17:00-
18:00 Base Network Traffic Flows 2015 Braintree’ (Figure 2) traffic flow diagram. According to the
traffic flow diagram (Figure 2).

The ‘Scenario 1, PM 2015 Base’ model, the turning flow for Arm D, A120 Entry, to Arm A, Pod’s
Brook Road, should be 283 (it is inputted as 293). This discrepancy in flows, on its own, is not
significant enough to be worth re-running the model. However, table 6 highlights some discrepancies
between the observed queues and those presented in the model on the A120 entry arm. There is
some concern that the model may be underestimating the queuing on this arm in both peaks. It is

recommended that the base models are re-evaluated to ensure they more accurately represent the
observed queue data or that justification is provided for the results shown.

If we take the rest of the flows as correct, the modelling results indicate that the roundabout is
currently operating within capacity with minimal queuing. The results show that the junction is
operating at or over capacity on Pod’s Brook Road by 2025. The A120 Entry, which is of primary
concern to HE, is predicted to operate within or at capacity in 2025 following the addition of
development flows. It should be noted that this should be reassessed following further consideration
of the base model observed queue comparisons.
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8.24.

8.25.

8.26.

8.27.

8.28.

8.29.

Based on the modelling results, JTP have proposed mitigation measures at the A120 / Pod’s Brook
Road / A131 (North) roundabout to address the capacity and queuing issues.

A120 / Pod’s Brook Road / A131 (North) Roundabout — Proposed Layout

The updated results of the A120 / Pod’s Brook Road / A131 (North) roundabout ARCADY modelling
for the proposed layout are presented in Table 7.

Table 7: A120 / Pod’s Brook Road / A131 (North) roundabout (proposed layout) ARCADY
results

Max Queue Max Queue
Arm Max RFC (PCUs) Max RFC (PCUs)

AM 2015 Base Flows PM 2015 Base Flows

Pod'’s Brook Road 0.38 <1 0.53 1

A131 Under Bridge 0.42 <1 0.28 <1

A120 Entry 0.32 <1 0.60 2

AM 2025 Forecast + Committed PM 2025 Forecast + Committed

Pod'’s Brook Road 0.56 1 0.69 2

A131 Under Bridge 0.50 1 0.34 <1

A120 Entry 0.56 1 0.73 3

AM 2025 Total Flows not incl. TP PM 2025 Total Flows not incl. TP
reduction reduction

Pod'’s Brook Road 0.71 3 0.81 4

A131 Under Bridge 0.54 1 0.42 <1

A120 Entry 043 <1 0.85 6

The ‘Scenario 1, AM 2025 Re-assigned plus Committed’ ARCADY model is assumed to be based
on the ‘AM Peak 08:00-09:00 Total 2025 Re-assigned Base Flows with Panfield Lane’ (Figure 11)
traffic flow diagram. According to the traffic flow diagram (Figure 11), in the ‘Scenario 1, AM 2025
Re-assigned plus Committed’ model, the turning flow for Arm D, A120 Entry, to Arm B, A120 Exit,
should be 0 (it is inputted as 302). This was noted by AECOM in the previous TN, but remains
unchanged.

The ‘Scenario 1, AM 2025 Total with Development’ and ‘Scenario 1, PM 2025 Total with
Development’ ARCADY models are assumed to be based on the ‘AM Peak Total with Development
Trips 2025’ (Figure 22) and ‘PM Peak Total with Development Trips 2025’ (Figure 30) traffic flow
diagrams.

It is worth noting that no with ‘mitigation’ model is presented to show the junction with reduced flows
due to the travel plan.

According to the Traffic Flow Diagram (Figure 22), in the ‘Scenario 1: 2025 Total With Development
AM’ model, the turning flows for:

e Arm 1, Pods Brook Road, to Arm 2, A120 east exit, should be 260 (it is inputted as 227)

e Arm 1, Pods Brook Road, to Arm 3, A120 Underbridge, should be 1010 (it is inputted as
992)

e Arm 3, A120 Underbridge, to Arm 1, Pods Brook Road, should be 897 (it is inputted as
878)

AECOM House
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8.30.

8.31.

8.32.

8.33.

8.34.

8.35.

According to this traffic flow diagram, in the ‘Scenario 1, PM 2025 Total with Development’ model,
the turning flow for

e Arm 1, Pods Brook Road, to Arm 2, A120 east exit, should be 244 (it is inputted as 230)
e Arm 1, Pods Brook Road, to Arm 3, A120 Underbridge, should be 842 (it is inputted as 837)
e Arm 3, A120 Underbridge, to Arm 1, Pod’s Brook Road, should be 674 (it is inputted as 638).

AECOM considers these discrepancies to be significant enough to affect the modelling results and
therefore recommend that the flows are corrected in ARCADY and the model is re-run to gain a more

accurate prediction of the capability of the proposed layout for the A120 / Pod’s Brook Road / A131
(North) roundabout.

It is noted that if AECOM consider the model outputs at face value, the proposed layout is predicted
to bring the roundabout back within capacity with reduced queues. It should be noted that, in addition
to required flow changes, this conclusion should be revisited once further comparisons between the
base model observed and modelled queues have been undertaken and any changes to the model
have been transferred to the forecast scenarios.

Previously AECOM noticed that JTP had not assessed the feasibility of the proposed roundabout
layout in terms of its compliance with current design standards, since this would be a matter for the

Local Highway Authority, ECC. Although a Stage 1 RSA of the proposed design is said to have been

completed. AECOM have not seen this document and there is no evidence that ECC have accepted
it. Until this acceptance is confirmed, it would be premature for Highways England to rely upon this

scheme to mitigate a potentially severe impact at the Trunk Road. AECOM'’s previous
recommendation that ECC’s approval is confirmed is therefore still outstanding.

Pod’s Brook Road / Site Access Proposed Roundabout

The updated results of the proposed Pod’s Brook Road / Site Access roundabout ARCADY modelling
are presented in Table 8.They have been undertaken assuming the total 2025 with Development
traffic flows.

Table 8: Pod’s Brook Road / Site Access Proposed Roundabout ARCADY Results

Max Queue Max Queue
Arm Max RFC (PCUs) Max RFC (PCUs)

AM 2025 Total Flows PM 2025 Total Flows

Pod’s Brook Road North 0.75 3 0.68 2

Pod's Brook Road South 0.76 3 0.71 2

Development Access 0.68 2 0.22 <1

Previously AECOM noticed that JTP had not assessed the feasibility of the proposed roundabout
layout in terms of its compliance with current design standards, since this would be a matter for the

Local Highway Authority, ECC. Although a RSA has been completed it has not been confirmed that
ECC approve it therefore the original request still stands.

A120 / B1256 / A131 (South) Roundabout - Existing Layout

The updated results of the ARCADY model for the A120 / B1256 / A131 (South) roundabout are
presented in Table 9.
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8.36.

8.37.

8.38.

8.39.

8.40.

Page: 12 of 15

Table 9: A120 / B1256 / A131 (South) Roundabout (existing layout) ARCADY Results with
comparison to observed queue data

Arm

Max RFC

Max Queue
(PCUs)

Obs Max
Queue
(PCUs)

Max RFC

Max Queue
(PCUs)

Obs Max
Queue
(PCUs)

AM 2015 Base Flows

PM 2015 Base Flows

A131 Under
Bridge

0.38

4

0.68

2

5

A120 Slip

0.27

7

0.2

<1

5

B1256

0.47

6

0.21

<1

50

A131 0.29 <1 0.28 <1

AM 2025 Forecast + Committed PM 2025 Forecast + Committed

A131 Under

Bridge 0.46 1

0.81 4

A120 Slip 0.34 1 0.27 <1

B1256 0.61 2 0.27 <1

A131 0.36 1 0.33 1

AM 2025 Total Flows not incl. TP
reduction

PM 2025 Total Flows not incl. TP
reduction

A131 Under

Bridge 0.60 2

0.87 7

A120 Slip 0.40 0.33 1

B1256 0.30 <1

1
0.77 3
1

A131 0.39 0.38 1

The ‘2015 Existing Flows AM’ and ‘2015 Existing Flows PM’ ARCADY models are assumed to be
based on the ‘AM Peak 08:00-09:00 Base Network Traffic Flows 2015 Braintree’ (Figure 1) and ‘AM
Peak 08:00-09:00 Base Network Traffic Flows 2015 Braintree’ (Figure 2) traffic flow diagrams.

Table 9 highlights a significant difference between the observed queues and the model queues on
the B1256. It is recommended that the base models are re-evaluated to ensure they more accurately

represent the observed queue data or that justification is provided for the results shown.

Similarly, the ‘2025 Reassigned Base Flows AM’ and ‘2025 Reassigned Base Flows PM’ ARCADY
models are assumed to be based on the ‘AM Peak 08:00-09:00 Total 2025 Re-assigned Base Flows
with Panfield Lane’ (Figure 11) and ‘AM Peak 08:00-09:00 Total 2025 Re-assigned Base Flows with
Panfield Lane’ (Figure 12) traffic flow diagrams.

The ‘2025 Total With Development AM’ and ‘2025 Total With Development PM’ ARCADY models
are assumed to be based on the ‘AM Peak 2025 Total with Development Flows’ (Figure 22) and ‘PM
Peak 2025 Total with Development Trips 2025’ (Figure 30) traffic flow diagrams. It should be noted
there are no ARCADY models presented which represent 2025 total trips with mitigated development
in consistency with the other modelling presented.

It is worth noting that no with ‘mitigation’ model is presented to demonstrate the reduction in traffic
associated with a travel plan. There were discrepancies between the flows shown in the diagrams
and those entered into ARCADY. These discrepancies are shown below. AECOM considers these

discrepancies are sianificant enough to affect the modelling and therefore recommend that the flows
are corrected in ARCADY and the model is re-run.
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8.41. According to the Traffic Flow Diagram (Figure 11), in the ‘2025 Reassigned Base Flows AM’ model,
the turning flows for:
e Arm 4, A131 West, to Arm 1, A131 Underbridge, should be 633 (it is inputted as 684),
8.42. According to the Traffic Flow Diagram (Figure 22), in the ‘2025 Total With Development AM’ model,
the turning flows for:
e Arm 1, A131 Underbridge, to Arm 4, A131 West, should be 706 (it is inputted as 688),
e Arm 2, A120 Entry, to Arm 1, A131 Underbridge, should be 338 (it is inputted as 325),
e Arm 4, A131 West, to Arm 1, A131 Underbridge, should be 705 (it is inputted as 696),
8.43. According to the Traffic Flow Diagram (Figure 30), in the ‘2025 Total With Development PM’ model,
the turning flows for:
e Arm 1, A131 Underbridge, to Arm 4, A131 West, should be 832 (it is inputted as 828),
e Arm 2, A120 Entry, to Arm 1, A131 Underbridge, should be 169 (it is inputted as 146),
e Arm 4, A120 West, to Arm 1, A131 Underbridge, should be 670 (it is inputted as 661),
Recommendations
8.44. Based on the modelling results presented, AECOM make the following recommendations:
e AECOM recommend that the base models are re-evaluated to more accurately represent the
observed queue data or justification is provided if this is not completed.
e  Remodel the ‘2025, with Mitigated Development AM’ model for the Springwood Drive / Rayne
Road / Pod’s Brook Road existing layout roundabout; and
e Remodel the ‘Scenario 1, AM 2025 Re-assigned plus Committed’ ARCADY model and the
2025 Total with Development AM’ and ‘2025 Total With Development PM’ ARCADY model for
the A120 / Pod’s Brook Road / A131 (North) proposed layout roundabout; and
e Remodel the ‘2025 Reassigned Base Flows AM’, , ‘2025 Total With Development AM’ and 2025
Total With Development PM' models ARCADY model for the A120 / B1256 / A131 (South)
existing layout roundabout.
9. Mitigation
Bus Strategy
9.1. Inthe previous TN, AECOM agreed with the proposed investments to the bus network, but asked for
further details. The TNR indicates that the bus strategy will be detailed with the Section 106
Agreement, but confirm that it will contain the following criteria as a minimum proposed:
e  Minimum 15 min frequency during peak hours Mon-Fri.
e Half hourly frequency Mon-Sat.
¢ Routing will ensure all residential units within the site are within 400m of a bus stop.
] AECOM House
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e Detailed off site routing will be determined to some extent by the operator however given
that Rayne Road forms the only sensible route into Braintree Town Centre, a loop route
through the site incorporating the route into town via Rayne Road is proposed.

9.2. AECOM consider this reasonable at this stage. However, it is unclear whether or not the developer
has approached a bus operator to find out if they would be interested in providing such a service on
a commercial basis. This should be confirmed as part of the planning application process.

10. Travel Plan

10.1. AECOM previously commented that no details were provided within the Interim Travel Plan (ITP)
about the requirements of the business, school and residential Travel Plans. AECOM recommended
that JTP updated the ITP to account for the need of separate TP documents for each land use due
the varying travel needs and present a separate document in relation to the business and school
TP’s.

10.2. JTP acknowledged this situation and explained that more detailed TP documents will be provided
with the detailed application for the separate developments. In the meantime, the submitted ITP
would form the principles for the development of detailed Travel Plans for the separate uses. JTP
recognise that a successful implementation of a Travel Plan will have a positive impact on sustainable
travel patterns and behaviours such as an overall decrease of the generated vehicles on the local
highway network. Table 10.0 of the TNR presents the interim TP targets and forecast model shift. It
forecasts a 12% reduction in single-occupancy car driving due to a modal shift to other measures.
AECOM consider this target to be reasonable.

10.3. The reduction in car trips has been used to calculate the ‘mitigated’ development traffic flows and
this has been used to complete the ‘mitigated’ capacity assessments. AECOM consider this to be
reasonable. However, it is important that the Travel Plan can demonstrate that these targets can be
met and that sufficient measures are implemented to achieve the targets and ensure that the traffic
flows do not exceed those used within the ‘mitigated’ traffic flow scenarios.

10.4. These measures, targets and mechanisms will have to be agreed as the planning application
progresses and, ideally, incorporated in the planning conditions.

11. Conclusion

11.1. This technical note reviews the Journey Transport Planning (JTP) response to the AECOM’s
previous Technical Note 01 (which reviewed a Transport Assessment) on behalf of Acorn Group
Braintree Ltd in relation to the proposed Land at Flitch Way development. The development is for a
residential development of 1,600 dwellings, up to 0.6 hectares of employment land use, a local
centre, neighbourhood facilities and a primary schools.

11.2. In summary AECOM’s review of the TNR provides further detail of the proposal and its potential
impact on the strategic road network (SRN). AECOM recommend that JTP provide further details on
the peak hour calculations and traffic re-assignment presented in the appendices. AECOM
recommend that JTP commission an additional VISSIM run to verify the impact of the development
on Galleys Corner.
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11.3.

Discrepancies in the junction modelling have been found by AECOM and it is recommended that
JTP update accordingly and rerun the junction capacity assessments. Queuing data does not appear
to have been used to verify the base models so they represent realistic queuing levels. AECOM
recommend that this re-evaluated to determine whether the base models are a reasonable reflection
of the current junction operation.

Mitigation was found to be required at two locations where junctions that are operating over-capacity
on the Local Road Network have the potential to affect the SRN. AECOM recommend that Highways
England seek assurances from Essex County Council that the improvements proposed are
acceptable to them.

More detail regarding these recommendations is provided throughout this technical note and has
been underlined for ease of reference. It is recommended that JTP address these concerns regarding
the potential impact of the development on the SRN and provide the additional information requested
to Highways England for review.

This document has been prepared by AECOM for sole use of the client company detailed above (the “Company’) in accordance with generally
accepted consultancy principles, the budget for fees and the terms of reference agreed between AECOM and the Company.

Any information provided by third parties and referred to herein has not been checked or verified by AECOM, unless otherwise expressly stated in the

Report.

No third party may rely upon this document without the prior and express written agreement of AECOM.
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From:
To:

__
Cc: —

Subject: 030516 0618 RE: Brook Green Braintree
Date: 03 May 2016 06:24:16

Attachments: image001.png

All

| spoke to- at Braintree DC on Friday and we agreed that we need to arrange a
combined meeting with Essex County Highways, Highways for England, Braintree District Council
and us as promoters with_ our consultant.

Whilst we are aware of some of the additional data needed and- has been instructed to
investigate same, we do need to meet sooner rather than later, to ascertain what else is needed.

So would everyone provide a selection of suitable dates from Monday 9™ onwards and let’s try
and find a date that works for everyone. In terms of venue, | am completely relaxed and for now
let’s assume we are meeting either at Braintree DC or Essex CC.

Thanks very much

cid:image001.png@01D09B97.D7F885EQ



To:
Cc:
Subject: RE:040516 1327 Brook Green Braintree
Date: 04 May 2016 13:28:05
Attachments: image001.png
image002.png
image003.jpg

’

Further to your e-mail | am available to attend the meeting on 13th May at 11am.
I have booked a meeting room at the Council offices at Causeway House.
Kind Regards,

rrom: I

Sent: 03 May 2016 10:53 AM

To: I
cc: I

Subject: RE: Brook Green Braintree

Everyone, we have a date — 13t May say 11:00 AM

-can you please confirm your availability and whether you can arrange a room and | will send
out invites in a moment

Thanks very much

cid:image001.png@01D09B97.D7F885E0

rrom: I

Sent: 03 May 2016 10:49

To: I

Subject: RE: Brook Green Braintree

7

Myself and Aecom can make late morning onwards on the 13t
Regards

Highways England | Woodlands | Manton Lane | Bedford | MK41 7LW

re!: I



Web: http://www.highways.gov.uk
o I
eror: I

Sent: 03 May 2016 10:40

To: I
c..

Subject: RE: Brook Green Braintree

Dear-

| am on leave next week but see there has been some email traffic exploring dates to

meet for next week,

| can do 10t May, 11t May from 1400 onwards or 13 May.

County Hall rooms are often well booked up so if Braintree have anything available that
would be useful.

Thanks.

Economic Growth and Development

essex County Council | tefephone: NN | < [

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail

rror: N I

Sent: 27 April 2016 10:53

To: I
;]

Subject: Brook Green Braintree

Hi

Following your respective consultation responses on the Outline Application for the Brook Green
proposals | believe it would be useful to meet up to discuss the way forward, the need for any

additional assessment required and to discuss any potential solutions etc.

If you could indicate your respective availability over the next two weeks (W/C ond I\/Iay—13th
May) that would be most helpful.

| could arrange a meeting room here if required. Please feel free to call me to discuss.

Kind Regards

|
I
Director

Journey Transport Planning Ltd
Room 436

4™ Floor
Victoria House
Chelmsford
Essex

CM1 1JR

Dirct ine: I
ot I

WWW.journevtp.co.uk
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DISCLAIMER:

This message is private and confidential. Any sharing of this message or its contents is prohibited unless approved by Journey
Transport Planning Ltd. If you have received this message in error, please notify the sender and destroy the message and any
attachments.

This email is sent on behalf of Journey Transport Planning Limited.

Journey is registered in England & Wales 84415953.

Journey reserve the right to monitor all communications through its internal and external networks. Whilst all effort is made to safe
guard emails and attachments through virus checking, we advise you to carry out your own checks. Journey do not accept liability
for any loss or damage caused by software virus.

Before you print, please think of the environment.

This email (including any attachments) is intended only for the recipient(s) named above.
It may contain confidential or privileged information and should not be read, copied or
otherwise used by any other person unless express permission is given. If you are not a
named recipient, please contact the sender and delete the email from your system. It is
the recipient's responsibility to ensure that appropriate measures are in place to check
for software viruses.

This email has been scanned by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service.
For more information please visit http://www.symanteccloud.com

This email may contain information which is confidential and is intended only for use of
the recipient/s named above. If you are not an intended recipient, you are hereby notified
that any copying, distribution, disclosure, reliance upon or other use of the contents of
this email is strictly prohibited. If you have received this email in error, please notify the
sender and destroy it.

Highways England Company Limited | General enquiries: 0300 123 5000 [National
Traffic Operations Centre, 3 Ridgeway, Quinton Business Park, Birmingham B32 1AF |
https.//www.gov.uk/government/organisations/highways-england |
info@highwaysengland.co.uk

Registered in England and Wales no 9346363 | Registered Office: Bridge House, 1 Walnut
Tree Close, Guildford, Surrey GU1 4.7

Consider the environment. Please don't print this e-mail unless you really need to.

Think before you print!

This email and any attachments, replies and forwarded copies are in confidence
and are strictly for the use of named recipient(s) only. If you are not the



intended named recipient, please contact the sender and delete the email from
your system and you are prohibited from distributing, copying, making use of or
unlawful use of any information without first gaining the express permission of
the sender.

Internet email may be susceptible to data corruption, interception and
unauthorised amendment for which Braintree District Council will not accept any
liability. We strongly advise you not to email any information that would be likely
to cause you distress if it were to be seen by others. If you have an enquiry of
this nature please provide a postal address to allow us to communicate with you
in a more secure way.

Any opinions or views expressed are not necessarily those of Braintree District
Council and do not form any kind of contract.

All communications sent to or from the Council may be subject to recording
and/or monitoring in accordance with relevant legislation.



From: I

To:

Cc:

Subject: 20616 1140 RE: 15/01538/0UT - Brook Green, Land North And South Of Flitch Way - Highways
Date: 20 June 2016 11:40:37

Attachments: image003.jpa

oeor IR

Further to our recent meeting we wish to examine in greater detail Braintree’s wider highways
issues relating to Galleys Corner in the context of the residential development of our Brook Green
site. Cleary, works to address highways capacity and movement at Galleys Corner for Braintree’s
current and future growth (including Brook Green) would be highly beneficial.

I know we discussed that the approximate cost of the required works would be in the region of
£10M and that, in addition, the land needed to be acquired, as a current best guess, could cost in
the region of £3-5M.

It would be appreciated if you could give us some feedback on any contribution that we could make
to this scheme. Assuming a contribution could be made, it could be ring fenced for a maximum
period of 10 years.

Just so we can get a better feel for the question of the sum in question, do you have a formula for
calculating the sum, that you would wish us to contribute?

| don’t mind at this stage if the dialogue is informal, as | am just trying to get a handle on the
guantum of any contributions and we could then discuss how to formulise this process.

We have a meeting with the vendors later this week to provide a general update and would it be
possible for you to respond in principle early this week.

| will look forward to hearing from you

Best Regards

Director
Journey Transport Planning Ltd
Room 436

4™ Floor
Victoria House
Chelmsford
Essex

CM1 1JR

Direct inc: I
vobite: I

WWW.journeytp.co.uk




cid:image001 jpg@01CE4D93.F2E68D10

DISCLAIMER:

This message is private and confidential. Any sharing of this message or its contents is prohibited unless approved by Journey Transport
Planning Ltd. If you have received this message in error, please notify the sender and destroy the message and any attachments.

This email is sent on behalf of Journey Transport Planning Limited.

Journey is registered in England & Wales 84415953.

Journey reserve the right to monitor all communications through its internal and external networks. Whilst all effort is made to safe
guard emails and attachments through virus checking, we advise you to carry out your own checks. Journey do not accept liability for
any loss or damage caused by software virus.

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
Subject: 130716 0930 RE: 15/01538/0UT - Brook Green, Land North And South Of Flitch Way - Highways
Date: 13 July 2016 09:30:11
Attachments: image001.png
image002.jpa
Morning.

It has been some weeks since- sent his email below and whilst | have been having regular
conversations with - | wonder if you could provide an update, as to where we are and when we
can expect a formal response?

In the meantime, | have just spoken With_ and his final report with the junction
improvements by Morrisions will be with us next week.

| look forward to hearing from you.

Many thanks

cid:image001.png@01D09B97.D7F885E0

rrom: I

Sent: 20 June 2016 11:40

To S
c-: I

I
]

Subject: RE: 15/01538/0UT - Brook Green, Land North And South Of Flitch Way - Highways

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

| know we discussed that the approximate cost of the required works would be in the region of
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

I don’t mind at this stage if the dialogue is informal, as | am just trying to get a handle on the
qguantum of any contributions and we could then discuss how to formulise this process.

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
vobit: I

WWW.journeytp.co.uk
cid:image001.jpg@01CE4D93.F2E68D10
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From: I
To: I

Cc:

Subject: 130716 1049 RE: 15/01538/0UT - Brook Green, Land North And South Of Flitch Way - Highways
Date: 13 July 2016 10:49:26

Attachments: image001.png

image002.jpg

-, many thanks

- when will you be in a position to confirm your thoughts and more importantly the sums
needed from us.

| am very conscious that we all agreed that the determination of this application would be
deferred until mid-August and we have our team on standby to react to the various issues and
the silly season is fast approaching.

Thanks again

cid:image001.png@01D09B97.D7F885E0

rrom: I
Sent: 13 July 2016 09:58

To:

c::

Subject: RE: 15/01538/0UT - Brook Green, Land North And South Of Flitch Way - Highways

As far as the A120 is concerned provided the works you are proposing are conditioned

we are content with the development going ahead. The problem is | cannot condition
these without the consent of Essex CC as the works are on their network and they have
not yet agreed them

Regards

Highways England | Woodlands | Manton Lane | Bedford | MK41 7LW

re!: I

Web: http://www.highways.gov.uk

e
rror:

Sent: 13 July 2016 09:30




Subject: RE: 15/01538/0UT - Brook Green, Land North And South Of Flitch Way - Highways

Morning.

It has been some weeks sinc- sent his email below and whilst | have been having regular
conversations with - | wonder if you could provide an update, as to where we are and when
we can expect a formal response?

In the meantime, | have just spoken with || ilij 2nd his final report with the junction
improvements by Morrisions will be with us next week.

| look forward to hearing from you.

Many thanks

cid:image001.png@01D09B97.D7F885E0

rror: I

Sent: 20 June 2016 11:40

Subject: RE: 15/01538/0UT - Brook Green, Land North And South Of Flitch Way - Highways
ocr

Further to our recent meeting we wish to examine in greater detail Braintree’s wider highways
issues relating to Galleys Corner in the context of the residential development of our Brook
Green site. Cleary, works to address highways capacity and movement at Galleys Corner for
Braintree’s current and future growth (including Brook Green) would be highly beneficial.

| know we discussed that the approximate cost of the required works would be in the region of
£10M and that, in addition, the land needed to be acquired, as a current best guess, could cost
in the region of £3-5M.

It would be appreciated if you could give us some feedback on any contribution that we could
make to this scheme. Assuming a contribution could be made, it could be ring fenced for a
maximum period of 10 years.

Just so we can get a better feel for the question of the sum in question, do you have a formula
for calculating the sum, that you would wish us to contribute?

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

Direct ine: I
ooic: I

WWW.journeytp.co.uk
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From: I

To: —
ce: I

Subject: 180716 1735 RE: Brook Green, Further Transport Assessment Report

Date: 18 July 2016 17:35:06

Attachments: image001.png

image002.jpg

Thanks very much.

Just in case anyone is unable to download the file, you can access a copy as follows;
https://www.dropbox.com/s/xg7xbttho29pava/R04_06414.pdf?dI=0

-, | will call you tomorrow to discuss, etc

Regards

cid:image001.png@01D09B97.D7F885E0D

¢rom: I

Sent: 18 July 2016 16:58

To S
c:: I

Subject: Brook Green, Further Transport Assessment Report

Dear-

Please see the attached Transport report responding to matters raised by Highways England and
Essex County Council.

If you have any comments or queries, please feel free to contact me.
Best Regards

Director

Journey Transport Planning Ltd
Room 436

4" Floor
Victoria House
Chelmsford
Essex

CM1 1R

Direct ine: I
ooic: I

WWW.journevtp.co.uk
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From: I

To:
Subject: RE: DX077 Flitch Way, Rayne - Response to AECOM"s TN02
Date: 21 August 2016 16:40:08

i
Apologies for the delay, I've been away.

The re-assignment is slightly confusing | agree, more so because | did not update those sheets
when | updated the design year to 2033 so the re-assignment is slightly lower than shown
(although representing the worst case). In any event the same traffic ends up on the SRN as the
qguantum is roughly the same.

The basis for the re-assignment is as follows: taking the percentage of traffic turning left into
Springwood Drive as a percentage of all traffic heading west on Rayne Road then applying that
percentage to the total traffic turning right out of Aetheric Way. So in the AM Peak 2033, right
turners from Rayne Road into Springwood Drive represent 27% of the west bound flow on Rayne
Road, this is then applied to the right turn at Atheric Way. This figure is then applied as a
negative on the Atheric right turn and a positive on the Rayne Road into Springwood Drive right
turn. This procedure is followed for the other movements and then followed through the
network on the basis of turning proportions.

(It took me a while to realise that this was how the re-assignment for the Panfield Lane was
actually carried out and not specifically as suggested in the text)

Figure 17 should read Rayne Road Residential Development Flows

Figure 1 and 2 are Base AM and PM 2015

Figures 3 & 4 are 2033 without the link road or any committed development

Your assumption on 2033 re-assigned base is correct with Fig 3 and 4 plus 5 and 6 and Fig 7 an 8
with the link road

Yes Figure 22 and 30 include all committed dev and reassignment with the link road.

| hope this is clear, if not please call me.

| will be in the office Monday but will be in the hospital for the remainder of the week.

Best Regards

.
rrom: I

Sent: 04 August 2016 18:03
To:
cc: I

Subject: DX077 Flitch Way, Rayne - Response to AECOM's TNO2

AECOM have been asked to review the latest response from Journey Transport Planning to our Technical
Note 02. I'm in the process of reviewing the note dated July 2016 and we are due to report back to-

- at Highways England on 19t August.
With a view to progressing this review and resolving previously raised issues, would you mind answering the

following questions regarding the traffic flow diagrams:

Figures 7 & 9: AM/PM Peak Existing Springwood Drive Employment Re-assigned Traffic

Figures 8 & 10: AM/PM Peak Existing Springwood Drive Residential Re-assigned Traffic

| understand that these flows have been derived from the Panfield Lane TA Figures 18-21), but please can you
confirm what the diagrams are showing and how the numbers have been arrived at. | was unable to trace the
methodology from the current and previous documents issued by JTP. These figures appear to feed into the
2033 Reassignment base’ scenarios in the updated ARCADY models for the Springwood Drive / Rayne Road
roundabout.

Figures 16 & 17 — both are labelled as AM Peak Pod's Brook Rd Residential Dev Flows. Please can you explain



the difference between these two diagrams. They are labelled the same but the flows are different.

Can you confirm which of the traffic flow diagrams relates to each modelling scenario. The scenarios names
vary between the ARCADY files and description in the note so | wanted to confirm this with you:

2015 Base AM & PM — Figures 1 & 2

2033 Forecast AM & PM — Figures 3 & 4 — without the link road?

2033 Re-assignment Base (2033 Forecast + Committed Development) AM & PM — Figures 3 & 4 plus 5 & 6
plus Figures 7 & 8 — with the link road?

2033 With Development AM & PM — Figures 22 and 30 (I assume that this include Committed Development
and all re-assignments)

I’'m out of the office tomorrow and Monday but if you wish to discuss this I'll be back on Tuesday gth August.

Once | have heard back from you regarding these points, | can continue with the review of the updated
ARCADY models.

Kind Regards

AECOM
Saxon House, 27 Duke Street
Chelmsford, Essex, CM1 1HT, United Kingdom

7 I
daecom.com

Built to deliver a better world
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Director
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From: I
To: O
Cc:

Subject: 220816 1056 RE: Brook Green
Date: 22 August 2016 10:55:50
Attachments: image002.png

image003.jpg

-, morning

Have you had a response ?
Thanks

cid:image001.png@01D09B97.D7F885E0

rrom: [
Sent: 03 August 2016 12:41

To: I

c:: I
Subject: RE: Brook Green

| am expecting a response by the 19 August

Regards

Highways England | Woodlands | Manton Lane | Bedford | MK41 7LW

re!: I

Web: http://www.highways.gov.uk

a
rrom:

Sent: 03 August 2016 11:50

To: I
c: |
Subject: Brook Green

Dear [}

Further to my response to the meeting and other matters raised with respect to the Transport
Assessment, | would appreciate an update with regard to progress on its review.

Specifically, it would be extremely helpful if the network flows could be confirmed as being
suitable or if any changes are required as soon as possible so that they can be input to the
VISSIM model as it is understood that this will take at least three weeks to run.

Best Regards




Director
Journey Transport Planning Ltd
Room 436

4™ Floor
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Chelmsford
Essex
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From: _

To: I
Subject: 250816 1623 RE: Brook Green
Date: 25 August 2016 16:23:36
Attachments: image001.png

RE DX077 Flitch Way R R to AECOM"s TNO2

-_ has forwarded your email to me as | have been carrying out the review of the latest
material relating to Brook Green from Journey Transport Planning.

For your information_ has been on leave since 15t August and | believe he will be back in the
office from 15t September.

I contacted- at the beginning of August to advise that | had emailed- with some questions regarding
the traffic flows which needed to be clarified before | could continue the review of the ARCADY models. -

provided a response on 215t August to my email of gth August following his leave (attached). For this reason,

the original 19t August deadline was extended.

| will now continue the review and will agree a new delivery date with-when he returns from leave. |
estimate that the review will take a further 2 weeks to allow for checking and approval and will suggest the
new date of Friday 9th September to -

To assist the progression of the VISSIM model | will confirm to [ and Cc[Jjfj when the traffic flows have
been checked.

Kind Regards

Senior Consultant, Transportation

AECOM

Saxon House, 27 Duke Street

Chelmsford, Essex, CM1 1HT, United Kingdom
T +44-1245-77-1200

deCOMm.con
Built to deliver a better world

LinkedIn Twitter Facebook Instagram

Frore: I

Sent: 25 August 2016 09:53
To: I
c- I

Subject: RE: Brook Green

All

Whilst i appreciate this is the silly season, can we please agree a timescale for responding, so we
can agree the way forward, etc

I know- is away this week or what is left of it and can everyone please come back to me
with the time needed to respond.

Many thanks







Sent: 03 August 2016 11:50

To:

c. I
Subject: Brook Green

Dear-,

Further to my response to the meeting and other matters raised with respect to the Transport
Assessment, | would appreciate an update with regard to progress on its review.

Specifically, it would be extremely helpful if the network flows could be confirmed as being
suitable orif any changes are required as soon as possible so that they can be input to the
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

To: .

Cc: I

Subject: 060916 1704 RE: DX077 HFitch Way, Rayne - Response to AECOM"s TN02
Date: 06 September 2016 17:04:56

Attachments: Panfield Ln Reassigned Flows Vectos.pdf

i

I've been going through the re-assignment diagrams for Flitch Way again. | have been unable to trace the

numbers. | wanted to try and bottom this out before responding to Highways England.

In Figures 7 and 9 — | was expecting these flows to add up to flows in Figure 18 in Appendix 6. For example, |
was expecting the total AM peak re-assignment to be -71 for the right turn from Rayne Rd into Springwood
Drive.

Can you explain where the -168 stems from (Figure 7)?

The same applies to Figures 8 — 10 — | can’t trace these flows from the information provided.

| have also referred to the most recent TA for the Panfield Lane development, carried out by Vectos and
submitted with their planning application to Braintree District Council to try and match these flows. This TA is
in the public domain and includes re-assignment traffic flow diagrams (see attached). | was also unable to
match Figures 7 — 10 with these flows.

I'd be grateful if you could clarify these points.

Kind Regards

rrom:

Sent: 21 August 2016 16:40

To: I
Subject: RE: DX077 Flitch Way, Rayne - Response to AECOM's TNO2

)

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
guantum is roughly the same.

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

Your assumption on 2033 re-assigned base is correct with Fig 3 and 4 plus 5 and 6 and Fig 7an 8
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

=
rrom: I

Sent: 04 August 2016 18:03

To: I

c.: I

Subject: DX077 Flitch Way, Rayne - Response to AECOM's TNO2

gl\/l have been asked to review the latest response from Journey Transport Planning to our Technical
Note 02. I'm in the process of reviewing the note dated July 2016 and we are due to report back to -

-at Highways England on 19th August.

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

I’'m out of the office tomorrow and Monday but if you wish to discuss this I'll be back on Tuesday gth
Once | have heard back from you regarding these points, | can continue with the review of the updated
ARCADY models.

Kind Regards

August.

Senior Consultant, Transportation

AECOM

Saxon House, 27 Duke Street

Chelmsford, Essex, CM1 1HT, United Kingdom
T +44-1245-77-1200

gaecom.com

Built to deliver a better world

LinkedIn Twitter Facebook Instagram













From: ]
|k

To:

Cc: -
Subject: 080916 1111 RE: Brook Green, Braintree
Date: 08 September 2016 11:11:12

| will confirm these as soon as | can
Regards

!lg!ways !ngland ‘ Woodlands | Manton Lane | Bedford | MK41 7LW

Tel:
Web: http://www.highways.gov.uk

ad

From: [
Sent: 08 September 2016 11:05

To:#

Subject: Brook Green, Braintree

)

| understand Kelly at AECOM will be sending you through a response regarding traffic flows etc

on Brook Green today. | would appreciate it if you could confirm the suitability of the flows ASAP
so | can get the VISSIM modelling commissioned.
Many Thanks

Director




From:
To:
Cc: .
Subject: 080916 1117 RE: Brook Green, Braintree
Date: 08 September 2016 11:17:17

Many Thanks

rrom: I

Sent: 08 September 2016 11:11

o I
cc I

Subject: RE: Brook Green, Braintree

| will confirm these as soon as | can

Regards

Highways England | Woodlands | Manton Lane | Bedford | MK41 7LW

ret: I

Sent: 08 September 2016 11:05

To: I

Subject: Brook Green, Braintree
Hi

’

I understand- at AECOM will be sending you through a response regarding traffic flows etc
on Brook Green today. | would appreciate it if you could confirm the suitability of the flows ASAP
so | can get the VISSIM modelling commissioned.

Many Thanks

Director

Room 436, 4th Floor

Chelmsford, Esse
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
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/highways-england |
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From: [

To: ]

Cc:

Subject: 080916 1158 RE: Brook Green - Traffic Flows
Date: 08 September 2016 11:59:06

After speaking with- yesterday, | have been able to trace the re-assignment traffic flow figures. | have
now checked these through to the 2033 forecast diagrams and confirm that | broadly agree with the flows
shown. Although | found some discrepancies (as-has already pointed out) these are not considered to
be significant enough to affect the modelling for the SRN junctions.

I’'m aware that Essex CC will also be reviewing the revised documents, but from Highways England’s point of
view, the traffic flow diagrams provided offer a sound base for the VISSIM modelling.

Full details of AECOM'’s review will be documented in our forthcoming technical note. | will now proceed with
checking the ARCADY models based on the traffic flow diagrams appended to JTP’s latest response (July
2016).

Please let me know if you have any questions.

Kind Regards

rrom: I

Sent: 08 September 2016 11:11

To: I
o,

Subject: RE: Brook Green, Braintree

-’

| will confirm these as soon as | can

Regards

Highways England | Woodlands | Manton Lane | Bedford | MK41 7LW

re: I

Web: http://www.highways.gov.uk
s

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
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Chelmsford, Essex
CM1 1JR
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To:

Cc:

Subject: 090916 1002 RE: Brook Green - Traffic Flows
Date: 09 September 2016 10:11:19

-I

Further to our telephone conversation, the development generated flows to be included in the VISSIM

assessment are as follows:

AM Peak PM Peak
Direction Traffic impact Traffic impact Traffic impact Traffic impact
without TP with TP without TP with TP
A120 Eastbound (towards 138 121 78 69
roundabout)
A120 Westbound 57 51 126 110
(away from roundabout)

For the purposes of the modelling, the worst case scenario is the ‘without Travel Plan’ flows.
Please let me know if you require any further information.
Kind Regards

rrom: NN

Sent: 08 September 2016 11:58

To: I

cc: I

Subject: RE: Brook Green - Traffic Flows

%speaking with-yesterday, | have been able to trace the re-assignment traffic flow figures. | have
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

re!. I

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

CM1 LR

: www.lournevtp.co.u!

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
Tree Close, Guildford, Surrey GU1 417

Consider the environment. Please don't print this e-mail unless you really need to.




From:

To:

Cc:

Subject: 120916 0932 RE: Brook Green, Braintree
Date: 12 September 2016 09:31:53

Good l\/Iorning-,

Thank you for confirming the flows to be used for modelling purposes. | have now instructed
AECOM as discussed.

It would be helpful to understand the process by which the potential contribution mechanism
will be calculated once the modelling results are finalised and also the timescale for that process
once those results are received.

Would it also be possible to have a view of the draft proposed scheme, showing the land
required for the improvement.

Many Thanks

| |
I

Director
Journey Transport Planning Ltd
Room 436

4™ Floor
Victoria House
Chelmsford
Essex

CM1 1JR

Direct ine: I
osic: I

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



Sent: Friday, September 9, 2016 11:08 AM

To: I

Cc:

Subject: RE: Brook Green, Braintree

Further to your email of yesterday | agree the development generated flows to be included in the VISSIM
assessment are as follows:

AM Peak PM Peak

Direction Traffic impact Traffic impact Traffic impact Traffic impact
without TP with TP without TP with TP

A120 Eastbound

(towards roundabout) 138 121 8 69

A120 Westbound 57 51 126 110

(away from roundabout)

Regards

Highways England | Woodlands | Manton Lane | Bedford | MK41 7LW

el -
Web: http://www.highways.gov.uk

rrors: I

Sent: 08 September 2016 11:17

To: I
cc: I

Subject: RE: Brook Green, Braintree

Many Thanks

-
rrom:

Sent: 08 September 2016 11:11
To:
c: I

Subject: RE: Brook Green, Braintree

| will confirm these as soon as | can

Regards

Highways England | Woodlands | Manton Lane | Bedford | MK41 7LW
iy

Web: http://www.highways.gov.uk

o I

e

Sent: 08 September 2016 11:05

To: I

Subject: Brook Green, Braintree

T

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

. www.wurneytg.co.u!

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
Subject: 201016 1207 RE: BROOK GREEN, BRAINTREE

Date: 20 October 2016 12:07:16

Attachments: image001.png

’

From Highways England’s perspective, as | mentioned in my last email to - - we are reviewing the
latest response from JTP regarding the proposed development. This is still ongoing and we are due to report
back to Highways England next Week,_ will be on leave from the 21 to 315% October and is
unlikely to be able to provide you with a response until early November.

We have some initial concerns about the proposed mitigation measures at the A120 eastbound off-slip (A120
/ Pod’s Brook Road / A131) which will be covered fully in our response.

Once Highways England have had the opportunity to review our comments on the latest material submitted
by JTP, Mark can form a full response to your queries. It would be premature to do so while there are still
issues outstanding with elements of the Transport Assessment.

I’'m also unsure what the status of the proposals is with Braintree District Council and Essex County Council
regarding the planning application and proposed mitigation measures on the local highway network.
Kind Regards

AECOM

Saxon House, 27 Duke Street

Chelmsford, Essex, CM1 1HT, United Kingdom
T +44-1245-77-1200

Built to deliver a better world

rrom: I

Sent: 20 October 2016 08:29

Subject: BROOK GREEN, BRAINTREE

All

Where are we in the process?

When will you be able to provide the following;

e Total cost of works and land required









Subject: RE: BROOK GREEN, BRAINTREE

From Highways England’s perspective, as | mentioned in my last email to ||| we are
reviewing the latest response from JTP regarding the proposed development. This is still ongoing
and we are due to report back to Highways England next week, ||| JqQi| Wi be on leave from
the 21 to 315! October and is unlikely to be able to provide you with a response until early
November.

We have some initial concerns about the proposed mitigation measures at the A120 eastbound off-
slip (A120 / Pod’s Brook Road / A131) which will be covered fully in our response.

Once Highways England have had the opportunity to review our comments on the latest material
submitted by JTP, can form a full response to your queries. It would be premature to do so
while there are still issues outstanding with elements of the Transport Assessment.

I’'m also unsure what the status of the proposals is with Braintree District Council and Essex

County Council regarding the planning application and proposed mitigation measures on the local
highway network.

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

e Our contribution
e Better plans showing works required.
I need to know the timescales please, as the matter will shortly be presented for determination
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sender and destroy it.
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Subject: RE: BROOK GREEN, BRAINTREE

From Highways England’s perspective, as | mentioned in my last email to _, we are reviewing the
latest response from JTP regarding the proposed development. This is still ongoing and we are due to report
back to Highways England next Week,_ will be on leave from the 21 to 315¢ October and is
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
by JTP,- can form a full response to your queries. It would be premature to do so while there are still
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






Any opinions or views expressed are not necessarily those of Braintree District Council
and do not form any kind of contract.

All communications sent to or from the Council may be subject to recording and/or
monitoring in accordance with relevant legislation.



From:
To:

Subject: 311016 1114 RE: BROOK GREEN, BRAINTREE
Date: 31 October 2016 11:14:06
Attachments: image001.png

DX077 TNO4 (issued).pdf

I

Given that neither ] or llll can now make it and you will not have had time
to address any of the issues raised in Aecoms latest response, attached. | think it
would be inappropriate for me to travel to a meeting with neither the Planning
Authority or County Highway Authority represented. Especially as the County
Highways issues and ours are interrelated. Can we look to reschedule for slightly
latter in the month.

| know this will come as a disappointment and appreciate your frustration with
progress on this application, but | do think a lot more would be achieved by holding
back just a few days and attending a meeting with all parties around the one table.
If anything in the note is unclear or you wish to discuss further please feel free to
drop me an email or ring me

Regards

I

Highways England | Woodlands | Manton Lane | Bedford | MK41 7LW
Tel:
Web: http://www.highways.gov.uk

GTN: I

From:
Sent: 31 October 2016 05:31
To:
Cc:

Subject: RE: BROOK GREEN, BRAINTREE
- thanks for your email.

As you say it is unfortunate that you can’t attend and a shame that- has now left.
However there were two reasons for the meeting, one being technical and the second planning.
As the technical is really between us and Highways for England with AECOM advising, | propose
that the meeting continue as planned and be classed as a technical meeting and that we arrange
a further meeting, to discuss the planning process, etc.

Assuming that is acceptable to everyone, | will stand down- as he will have little interest in
discussing technical issues !!

I 21 1 will be happy to attend at [} offices in Chelmsford.

Can everyone please confirm that this is acceptable and after the meeting, | will write again
suggesting a further date for the next meeting.

Thanks















submitted by JTP, ] can form a full response to your queries. It would be premature to do so
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
and this is obviously a major aspect that needs to be included.
Can someone please come back to me.
Many thanks
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This email and any attachments, replies and forwarded copies are in confidence and are
strictly for the use of named recipient(s) only. If you are not the intended named
recipient, please contact the sender and delete the email from your system and you are
prohibited from distributing, copying, making use of or unlawful use of any information
without first gaining the express permission of the sender.

Internet email may be susceptible to data corruption, interception and unauthorised
amendment for which Braintree District Council will not accept any liability. We strongly
advise you not to email any information that would be likely to cause you distress if it
were to be seen by others. If you have an enquiry of this nature please provide a postal
address to allow us to communicate with you in a more secure way.

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
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Technical Note 04

Project: Highways England Spatial Planning Job No: 60506522 / DX077

Arrangement 2016-2020

Subject: Land at Flitch Way, Rayne — Review of Developer Consultant’s ‘Response to

Technical Note 03’

proparecty: N 0-'c 15" October 2016
checked by: || G Date: 19" October 2016

Verified by: ||| Date: 24" October 2016

Approved by: [ GG Date: 26" October 2016

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

2.1.

3.1.

Introduction

This Technical Note (TNO4) has been prepared by AECOM, on behalf of Highways England, to
document a review of Journey Transport Planning’s (JTP) ‘Response to Technical Note 03’ dated
September 2016 relating to the proposed development at Land at Flitch Way, Rayne (LaFW),
Braintree. JTP’s response will hereafter be referred to as Technical Note Response 3 (TNR3).

This note follows AECOM'’s previous reviews of the Transport Assessment (TA) which supported
the planning application for the proposed development at LaFW (reference 15/01538/0OUT)
lodged with Braintree District Council (BDC). The most recent of AECOM'’s previous reviews is
Technical Note 03 (TNO3), dated 12™ September 2016 to which the TNR3 refers.

The objective of this TNO4 is to determine whether the issues raised in AECOM’s TNO3 have
been fully addressed in order to allow the potential impact of the proposed development on the
operation of the Strategic Road Network (SRN) to be fully understood. Where mitigation
measures are proposed, AECOM will advise Highways England as to whether they are sufficient
to accommodate traffic estimated to be generated by the LaFW development.

Background

The development proposal comprises 1,600 dwellings and 0.6 hectares of employment land and
ancillary land uses including a primary school and local centre. The LaFW site is located to the
west of Braintree north of the A120, west of Pod’s Brook Road and south of Rayne Road. Access
to the site is proposed via a new roundabout off Pod’s Brook Road, with a second access off
Rayne Road. The closest access to the SRN from the site is via the A120 / A131 / Pod’s Brook
Road roundabout known locally as the ‘Panner’s junction’. The proposed site access roundabout
is located some 120m north of this junction.

Issues raised in AECOM’s TNO3 and JTP responses

For ease of reference, the issues raised in AECOM’s TNO3 have been provided in this Technical
Note in text boxes with the original paragraph numbers provided. A review of JTP’s current
response follows this and AECOM have stated whether or not we consider previous points to be
resolved. Any new or outstanding recommendations from AECOM have been highlighted in bold
and underlined text.

Saxon House
T +44 (0)1245 771200 27 Duke Street
F +44 (0)1245 771299 Chelmsford
CM1 1HT

Page: 1 0f 17 www.aecom.com United Kingdom
S:\Development Planning_518441\E_Essex CC\Braintree DC\DX077 Land at Flitch Way, Rayne\Reports & Technical Notes\lssued\DX077 TN04 (issued).docx



Technical Note 04 A=COM

3.2

3.3.

34.

3.5.

4.1.

4.2.

Comments relating to the collision review and junction capacity modelling are provided in Sections
4 and 5 of this note respectively.

Policy: TNO3 Para. 5.2 (a):

AECOM expressed concern that this site was not included in any Local Plan or in any other
strategy document. There is therefore a risk that the implications of this development on the
SRN have not been considered fully as the emerging Local Plan has not been finalised. This is
an ongoing concern and has been acknowledged by JTP at the recent meeting. Acorn Group
are hopeful that the site will be included in BDC’s emerging Local Plan.

AECOM have no further comments to make.

Site Access and mitigation measures on ECC network: TNO3 Para. 5.2 (b and c):

In the absence of effective mitigation measures, the assessment points to a potentially severe
impact at the SRN caused by traffic queuing back along Pod's Brook Road from the
Springwood Drive roundabout towards the A120.

ECC’s view of the proposed site access roundabout and mitigation measures at the
Springwood Drive / Rayne Road / Pod’s Brook Road, Rayne Road / Aetheric Road and A120 /
Pod’s Brook Road / A131 roundabouts is required to determine if the schemes are compliant
and safe before Highways England can rely on the proposed scheme to mitigate this potentially
severe impact.

JTP advised in their covering email dated 4™ October 2016 that confirmation of the acceptability of
the proposed mitigation at the Springwood Drive / Rayne Road / Pod’s Brook Road and Rayne
Road / Aetheric Road junctions had been requested from ECC and that they were awaiting a
response. JTP also confirmed that, at the time of writing, a Road Safety Audit of the proposed
mitigation measures at the A120 / Pod's Brook Road / A131 (north) roundabout was being
undertaken.

AECOM’s previous recommendation is still outstanding. Furthermore, In light of the newly
proposed mitigation measures at the A120 eastbound off-slip at the A120 / Pod’s Brook Road /
A131 (north) roundabout, Highways England will need to confirn acceptance of the proposed
mitigation measures as these now affect the Trunk Road. AECOM’s comments on the mitigation
measures are provided in Section 6 of this note.

Collision Data Review: Galleys Corner

Collision Review: TNO3 Para. 5.2 (d):

AECOM recommend that an analysis of the collision data recorded at Galleys Corner is carried
out to review whether there are any common causation factors, which may be exacerbated by
additional development traffic. The collision records should also be provided for scrutiny.

In response to these comments JTP have provided collision records for Galleys Corner with the
TNR3. Collision data for the most recent 5 year period to 31 May 2016 has been obtained. It
should be noted that the data covers a different time period to that analysed in JTP’s TNR2 which
is why there are differences in the total number of slight and serious accidents recorded.

Section 2 of the TNR3 includes a review of collision data in the vicinity of Galleys Corner,
undertaken by JTP. The data is contained at Appendix 1 of TNR3. AECOM have not undertaken
a detailed audit of the collision data, however we have reviewed JTP’s findings to see if the data
supports them.

Page: 2 of 17
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4.3. The collision data covers a 61-month period from April 2011 to May 2016. The area of search
includes the Galleys Corner and Fowlers Farm roundabouts and approximately 300m of the main
roads that converge there.

44. JTP have identified 31 collisions that took place at, or on the approaches to the Galleys Corner
roundabout, of which 27 were slight and 4 serious. AECOM note one fatal collision in the dataset
close to the roundabout, however the description makes it clear that this collision was link-related,
not junction-related.

4.5. AECOM broadly agree with the number of collisions attributed to Galleys Corner. Our reading of
the data identified 27 collisions, not 31 but this would just be a matter of the definition of ‘at or on
the approach’.

4.6. The collisions identified by AECOM as being at or close to the roundabout fall into a number of
distinct groups as shown in Table 1.

Table 1: Types of Collisions Recorded at Galleys Corner Roundabout

Type of collision Number
Conflicts on the circulatory carriageway 16
Rear end shunt on approach to roundabout 4
Side swipe on approach to roundabout 1
Rear end shunt at roundabout entry 2
Failure to give way at roundabout entry 1
Enter roundabout and strike vehicle already on circulatory 1

No description given 2

4.7. ltis evident that the largest single category are conflicts on the circulatory carriageway, followed
by rear end shunts on the roundabout approaches.

4.8. The conflicts on the circulatory are typically exit/ circulating conflicts, for example where a vehicle
in an offside lane (closest to the central island) needs to take an exit and comes into conflict with
a vehicle in the nearside lane (closest to the outside of the roundabout), wanting to continue
around.

4.9. Various attempts have been made over the years to enforce lane discipline and minimise such
conflicts. In AECOM'’s view, the potential to address these problems is hampered by the small
size of the roundabout relative to the number of arms it accommodates, which leads to very short
circulatory sections between successive arms.

4.10. From examination of Google Streetview imagery (dated November 2015) it appears that the
roundabout is not provided with lane destination signs on the approaches, and that the lane
destination road markings are only present on the immediate approach to the roundabout entry.
In a context in which long queues are common, this may lead to vehicles not being able to enter
the roundabout in the correct lane for their intended exit.

4.11. There are road markings on the circulatory carriageway. However, these are conventional lane
markings and do not guide drivers into their exits, as a system of spiral marking would.

4.12. |t is therefore possible that the number of collisions on the circulatory results from a combination
of high traffic volumes, short circulatory sections, lengthy queues on the approaches and a lack of
adequate guidance as to the correct lane to take on the roundabout.

Page: 30of 17
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4.13.

4.14.

The reason for the interest in the collision record at Galleys Corner is that AECOM have
previously identified that a significant number of additional vehicles are forecast to use Galleys
Corner roundabout as a result of the development and we had recommended that it be included
within the study area for the collision analysis.

The predicted increases in flow at Galleys Corner are summarised in Table 2.

Table 2: Predicted Increases in Traffic Flow at Galleys Corner Roundabout

AM Peak PM Peak
A120 A120 A120 A120
eastbound westbound eastbound westbound

Existing flow (2015) 1,374 2,037 1,687 1,261
Development traffic 138 57 78 126
% increase attributable to development 10% 3% 5% 10%
Total flow through roundabout (2015) 4,520 4,469
Development traffic 195 204
% increase attributable to development 4.3% 4.6%

4.15.

4.16.

5.1.

JTP conclude that the addition of development traffic is likely to lead to a marginal increase in
collisions.

AECOM suggest that this level of increase at a junction which has a significant number of
collisions on the circulatory carriageway lends itself to a road safety enhancement in the

form of a package of signs and road markings. whether or not there is a requirement for
capacity enhancements at this location.

Junction Capacity Assessments

Junction Capacity A120 North and South roundabouts: TNO3 Para. 5.2 (e, f, g and h):

AECOM recommend that all modelled queue results presented in the TNR2 (for the existing
roundabouts) are treated with caution as the base models are not calibrated to observed levels
of queuing;

AECOM recommend that the ARCADY base models for the A120 / Pod’s Brook Road / A131
(north) and A120 / B1256 / A131 (south) roundabouts are re-run with appropriate adjustments
to calibrate the model to observed levels of queuing. Once the base models have been
calibrated, the adjustments should be applied to the proposed layouts (where applicable)
before the models are re-run;

AECOM recommend that the traffic flow inputs discrepancies for the A120 / B1256 / A131
(south) roundabout should also be corrected when the model is re-run.

Highways England should reserve judgement on whether mitigation measures are required on
the A120 eastbound off-slip approach until such time as the updated ARCADY model results
for the A120 North roundabout are available for review;

As identified and agreed in a previous response from JTP, the peak hours used in the
assessment are 08:00-09:00 and 17:00-18:00. As previously agreed with ECC and Highways
England, JTP have identified 2033 as the development Opening Year. The assessment scenarios
are as follows:

e 2015 and 2033 Base AM and PM peak; and
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5.2.

e 2033 Reassigned and 2033 with Development AM and PM peak.

The ‘2033 Reassigned’ and ‘2033 with Development’ scenarios include committed development
and the reassignment of traffic to the link road between Panfield Lane and Springwood Drive,
which is being proposed by the developer of the ‘Land west of Panfield Lane / north of
Springwood Drive, Braintree’ site.

The TNR3 contains revised ARCADY models for the A120 / Pod’s Brook Road / A131 (north)
roundabout of the existing and proposed layouts and a revised model of the existing layout of the
A120/ B1256 / A131 (south) roundabout.

A120 / Pod’s Brook Road / A131 (North) Roundabout — Existing Layout

5.3.

AECOM previously commented on the difference between the modelled and observed queues on
the A120 eastbound off-slip arm of the roundabout and recommended that the model was
reviewed and calibrated to better represent existing levels of queuing. Table 3 presents 2015
observed queues on the roundabout approaches (JTP data).

Table 3: 2015 Observed Queues on the A120 / Pod’s Brook Road / A131 (North) Roundabout Approaches

AM Peak

PM Peak

Pod’s Brook Road

No data

No data

A131

6

4

A120 eastbound off-slip

17

11

54.

5.5.

5.6.

5.7.

5.8.

An intercept adjustment has been applied to the existing layout model in an attempt to calibrate it
to represent the observed queue lengths shown in Table 1.

The Junctions 9 User Guide describes intercept adjustments as follows:

“These adjustments are applied directly to the intercept and represent changes to the maximum
flow that would be possible across the give-way line in the absence of any circulating traffic.
Intercept adjustments can be calculated automatically from observations of entry flows and
circulating flows at any arm, and apply to each arm individually.”

No explanation has been provided in the TNR3 to justify the specific intercept adjustments
applied, however AECOM can infer from the modelling output file that a 47% and 70% adjustment
has been made to the intercept for the A120 arm in the AM and PM peak respectively.

These adjustments mean that the intercept for the A120 arm predicted by ARCADY has been
reduced by 53% and 30% for the AM and PM peaks respectively. In other words, factors such as
the physical layout of the roundabout and driver behaviour are affecting the operation of the A120
arm and contributing to the delay on the approach.

In order to try and understand this further, AECOM have analysed the 2015 base traffic flow data
for the roundabout. The AM and PM peak traffic flow diagrams (Figures 1 and 2 from JTP’s
TNRZ2) have been replicated in Figures 1 and 2.
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Pod’s
2015 AM Brook Rd
241 | 543 119
268 | \b
EB off-slip \
A120
678 237 A131

Figure 1: 2015 AM Traffic Flows at the A120 / Pod’s Brook Road / A131 (North) Roundabout

Pod’s
2015 PM Brook Rd
284 598 167
843 | \h
EB off-slip \
A120
370 224 A131

Figure 2: 2015 PM Traffic Flows at the A120 / Pod’s Brook Road / A131 (North) Roundabout

5.9. Figures 1 and 2 demonstrate that in the AM peak, the A120 approach traffic is quite balanced
between left and right turners, however in the PM peak the number of right turners is significantly
higher. In both peaks the A131 approach traffic has a dominant south to north movement from the
A131 to Pod’'s Brook Road. It should be noted that the A131 approach traffic does not have to
give-way to any circulating traffic (other than u-turners) which is likely to result in this traffic
entering the roundabout at speed. Visibility to the right for vehicles giving way at the A120

approach arm is limited due to the presence of the bridge over the A120 (refer to Figure 3).
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A120 / Pod’s Brook Road / A131 (North) Roundabout — Proposed Layout

5.15.

5.16.

5.17.

5.18.

Based on the modelling results of the existing layout, JTP have proposed amendments to the
roundabout layout in order to mitigate the impact of additional traffic generated by the
development. These mitigation measures include widening on the Pod’s Brook Road approach to
provide two lanes and widening on the A120 approach to provide a segregated left turn lane
(SLTL) to allow left turners from the A120 into Pod’s Brook Road to effectively bypass the
roundabout.

AECOM have reviewed the layout and feasibility of the proposed amendments to the A120
approach. The results of our review can be found in Section 6 of this TN. The effectiveness of the
proposed mitigation measures will depend on their feasibility in terms of compliance with current
design standards and acceptance by Highways England. The proposed layout will also be subject
to a Stage 1 Road Safety Audit which JTP have confirmed is underway (JTP email to AECOM
dated 4™ October 2016). AECOM have not carried out a detailed review of the proposals at Pod’s
Brook Road as this road is the responsibility of ECC and JTP are awaiting confirmation of their
acceptance of these proposals.

Taking the proposed design ‘as read’ the A120 / Pod’s Brook Road / A131 (north) roundabout has
been re-modelled with amended geometry to take into account the SLTL. The ‘Bypass’ function in
ARCADY has been applied to account for traffic that will effectively bypass the roundabout using
the SLTL into Pod’s Brook Road. The proportion of left turning traffic assumed to use the SLTL
has been set at 100% and AECOM agree that this is a reasonable assumption.

AECOM have reviewed the geometric parameters entered into ARCADY for the proposed layout
and do not agree with some of the measurements. The geometry for the A120 arm seems to be
based on that for the existing layout and not the proposed layout. This will affect the modelling
results. Table 5 highlights the differences between AECOM and JTP’s measurements. The most
significant of these are the approach width, entry width and flare length where these
measurements seem to include the width of the SLTL. AECOM would consider an entry width of
6.6m to be appropriate.

Table 5: Comparison of JTP and AECOM geometry for the A120 arm of the roundabout (Proposed Layout)

Inscribed

Approach
width (v)

Entry width
(e)

Effective flare
()

Entry radius
(r)

circle
diameter (icd)

Conflict Angle

JTP

6.50

10.00

22.00

40.00

65.00

34.00

AECOM

4.00

6.60

9.00

30.00

60.00

29.00

5.19. Table 6 presents the results of the ARCADY modelling for the A120 / Pod’s Brook Road / A131
(north) roundabout proposed layout as provided by JTP.
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5.20.

5.21.

5.22.

Table 6: A120/ Pod’s Brook Road / A131 (North) Roundabout — Proposed Layout ARCADY Results

Pod’s Brook Rd A131 Under Bridge A120 EB off-slip
Max Max Max
Max RFC s Max RFC e Max RFC T

AM 0.40 1 0.43 1 0.52 1
2015 Base PM | 058 7 028 < 0.65 2
2033 Forecast + CD + AM 0.57 1 0.54 1 0.93 9
Re-assignment PM 0.86 6 0.37 1 0.89 8
2033 With Dev (incl. AM 0.88 7 0.61 2 1.32 47
CD + Re-assignment) PM 1.04 43 0.51 1 1.09 56

Notwithstanding the discrepancies with the geometry described in paragraph 5.18, the ARCADY
results indicate that the A120 arm of the roundabout will still be over capacity in 2033, but with
reduced queueing compared to the existing layout. It should be noted however, that the ‘bypass’
feature within ARCADY simply removes the left turning traffic from the model, it does not account
for the effects of entry lane starvation where traffic may be unable to reach the SLTL due to
queuing at the give line by traffic turning right. The SLTL will only be effective if left turning traffic
is able to reach it.

A 56 vehicle queue equates to an approximate 322m long queue. The A120 eastbound off-slip is
approximately 470m in length from the end of the diverge. A queue of this length would not be
desirable as traffic travelling at speed would have to brake immediately after exiting the mainline
carriageway. Long queues may therefore have safety implications. AECOM acknowledge that the
modelling results do not take account of a reduction in trips to account for Travel Plan (TP)
measures. However, JTP have not provided the ‘2033 mitigated’ modelling results for the A120 /
Pod’'s Brook Road / A131 (north) roundabout proposed layout (including TP reductions) and
therefore the effectiveness of TP measures cannot be quantified.

In view of the comments regarding the proposed layout design in Section 6, re-modelling the
junction with the amended geometry would be of little merit at this stage. AECOM consider that

the recommendations in Section 6 should be addressed prior to the proposed layout being
re-modelled in ARCADY. When the proposed layout is re-modelled, the ‘2033 Mitigated’

results should also be provided.

A120/B1256 / A131 (South) Roundabout

5.23.

5.24.

5.25.

5.26.

AECOM previously commented on differences between the modelled queue lengths compared
with those observed on site, particularly for the B1256 arm of the roundabout.

In TNR3, JTP assert that they consider the March 2016 observed queue lengths to be
unrepresentative of typical conditions on this arm, and carried out spot counts in September 2016
in order to demonstrate this. Although, as JTP have acknowledged, the observed queues cannot
be directly compared to the previously recorded queues as they were recorded at different times
of year, they do suggest much lower levels of queuing than originally assessed. The maximum
queue on the B1256 recorded in the March 2016 surveys was found to be 50 vehicles in the PM
peak, whereas the maximum queue recorded in September 2016 was 4 vehicles.

Notwithstanding this, AECOM consider that levels of queuing at all arms of the roundabout have
been under-represented in the base models and therefore recommend that the modelled queues
presented should be treated with caution.

AECOM have reviewed the revised A120 / B1256 / A131 (south) roundabout model and are
content that the traffic flow inputs have been corrected. The updated ARCADY model results are
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presented in Table 7. The observed queues are shown in brackets in red text next to the modelled
‘Max Queue’ (no queue data was provided for the A131 south arm).

Table 7: A120/B1256 / A131 (South) Roundabout — ARCADY Model Results

A131 North A120 WB off-slip B1256 A131 South

Max Max Max Max Max Max Max Max

RFC Queue RFC Queue RFC Queue RFC Queue
AM 0.37 <1(4) 027 <1(7) 0.46 1 (6) 0.29 <1
UL PM | 068 25 020 <1 (5) 0.21 <13 028 A
] AM 0.49 1 037 1 0.68 2 0.37 1
2033 Reassigned PM | 088 7 0.31 1 031 <1 036 1
2033 With AM 0.68 2 0.48 1 0.98 14 0.46 1
Development PM 0.97 20 0.46 1 0.37 1 0.45 1
2033 With Mitigated AM 0.66 2 0.47 <1 0.93 9 0.45 <1
Development PM 0.97 22 0.46 <1 0.38 <1 0.45 <1

5.27. The results in the ARCADY output file were slightly different to those in Table 3.5 of TNR3.

5.28.

5.29.

6.1.

6.2.

AECOM have amended the results in Table 7 to match the ARCADY files.

The 2033 with Mitigated Development’ results have been provided for the A120 / B1256 / A131
(south) roundabout. The results show that the ‘mitigated flows’ i.e. the traffic flows with a reduction
applied to account for TP measures, does not make a significant difference to the overall
modelling results. In the ‘2033 with development’ scenario the A120 westbound off-slip has a low
RFC and predicted queue and therefore would not be of concern to Highways England.

In the PM peak the A131 arm is indicated to operate over capacity with an RFC of 0.97 and
predicted queue of 20 vehicles. JTP assert that the forecast level of queuing in 2033 can be
accommodated in the dual carriageway link between the A120 / Pods’ Brook Road / A131 (north)
and A120 / B1256 / A131 (south) roundabouts. AECOM consider this to be a reasonable
conclusion assuming that queuing traffic would be split over two lanes. The lanes on the A131
approach to the roundabout do not have destination markings and the PM peak traffic flows are
fairly well balanced between the B1256 (42%) and A131 (47%) with 11% travelling to the A120
westbound off-slip. AECOM therefore consider that the queuing would be balanced between the
two lanes of the dual carriageway link.

A120 Mitigation Measures: Design Review

AECOM have undertaken a review of the junction layout proposed by JTP as mitigation of the
impact of the development at the A120/ Pod’s Brook Road/ A131 (north) roundabout. The layout
proposed is shown on drawing no: JTP 06414, DR8 appended to the TNR3. The existing junction
consists of a four arm roundabout comprising of the A120 eastbound on and off slip roads, B1256
Pod’s Brook Road and the A131. The proposed mitigation includes introducing a Segregated Left
Turn Lane (SLTL) from the A120 off-slip to Pod’s Brook Road and widening the Pod’s Brook Road
approach to the roundabout to provide two lanes southbound between the proposed site access
roundabout and the A120/ A131 (north) roundabout. AECOM have reviewed the junction design
to assess its feasibility.

It should be noted that only the horizontal alignment has been made available to AECOM and
therefore neither a full design check against Design Manual for Roads and Bridges (DMRB)
standards nor a Stage 1 Road Safety Audit (RSA) has been carried out. This document therefore
provides a high level ‘in principle’ review of the junction proposal submitted, evaluating the layout
feasibility and seeking to identify any ‘showstoppers’ that may exist which could prevent the
junction being constructed. Additional issues could arise which could relate to level differences,
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6.3.

vertical alignment, visibility envelopes, issues off plan etc. which cannot be identified within the
scope of this review. Swept path plots of the roundabout have not been carried out.

The design assessment has been carried out in two stages. The first stage considers the
appropriateness of the roundabout as it will exist with the SLTL in place, to comply with DMRB, in
particular TD 16/07. The second stage considers the suitability of the SLTL in compliance with TD
51/03. Where text is highlighted in bold, this is an area where the proposed layout does not
comply with DMRB standards and would therefore require a Departure from Standard to be
submitted and approved.

Compliance with TD 16/07

Inscribed Circle Diameter, Circulatory Width, Central Island

6.4.

6.5.

The proposed junction alignment intends to retain the majority of the existing roundabout
geometric layout at its current location. The Inscribed Circle Diameter (ICD) is 64m, with a central
island of 42m. The width of the circulatory carriageway is currently 11.2m, which is not in
accordance with current standards (it should be between 1.0 and 1.2 times the maximum entry
width).

The introduction of the proposed SLTL would encroach on the existing circulatory carriageway
which should generally be circular and of a constant width, creating a variable width of between
8.5m and 11.2m. This introduces the concern that a vehicle following the outer edge of the
circulatory carriageway could come into conflict with a vehicle using the SLTL, or alternatively
swerve to the right to avoid doing so and come into conflict with another vehicle on its offside. In
order to avoid this problem, AECOM recommend that the SLTL is repositioned to avoid
taking width out of the roundabout; or alternatively, that the width of the circulatory carriageway
is reduced, possibly by hatching, so as to guide drivers of vehicles using it to take a path that
does not conflict with users of the SLTL.

Entry Dimensions

6.6.

6.7.

6.8.

The entry dimensions for the A131 and A120 eastbound off-slip (circulatory traffic) approaches;
including approach half width, entry width, entry flaring and entry kerb radius are appropriate for
the number of lanes provided at the junction. It should be noted that the existing entry width for
the A131 approach remains wider than TD 16/07 advises as an appropriate multi-lane entry width
of between 3 and 3.5m, which could be seen as an overprovision, although below the absolute
maximum. Also, the approach width of the A120 off-slip road is of a standard that pre-dates the
current version of TD22 and is therefore not in accordance with current standards.

The proposed Pod’s Brook Road approach has an approach width of 6.35m which would need to
be agreed with the Local Highway Authority to be acceptable as this is not a DMRB, TD 27/05,
standard cross section. Similar to the A131, Pod’s Brook Road entry width could be seen as an
overprovision with a dimension of 7.95m but again is below the absolute maximum.

A summary of the entry dimensions can be seen in the Table 8. Measurements highlighted in red
indicate elements of the existing or proposed layout which do not confirm with current design
standards. ‘Req’ refers to a required standard in TD 16/07 which is mandatory; ‘Rec’ refers to a
recommended standard.
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Table 8: Entry Dimensions

No. of Appm?:t: . Entry Width Entry Flaring Entry Kerb Radius
Arm lanes R
Entry Actual Req Actual (R::) Actual Rec Actual Rec
6-7m
A131 2 7.30m 7.30m 8.50m 6m 25-100m 40m 20- 100m
(15m max)
A120 EB 6-7m
off-slip* 2 4.00m - 6.60m (10.5m max) 9m 25-100m 30m 20- 100m
Pod's 6-7m
Brook Rd 2 6.35m 7.30m 7.95m (15m max) 25m 25-100m 30m 20- 100m
A120 I_EB Exit only
on-slip
*excluding the SLTL

Exit Dimensions

6.9. The exit dimensions of all three exit aims of the roundabout have aspects that are not
recommended by TD 16/07. The A131 arm has an appropriate exit kerb radius however the exit
width is narrower than the recommended 10-11m width recommended where the downstream link
is a two-lane dual carriageway. The taper is also sharper than is recommended. These are
existing features which the proposed layout adjustment would not affect.

6.10. The Pod’s Brook Road exit has a larger than recommended exit kerb radius which could generate
high exit speeds. There is also a narrower exit width than recommended by the standard; with the
location of the traffic island and proposed SLTL alignment this would make it difficult for traffic to
overtake a stationary vehicle. The exit width then tapers down to an under provision carriageway
width with a sharper than recommended taper. The alignment of the SLTL also encroaches on the
exit lanes with a non-constant taper gradient. Overall. the introduction of the SLTL results in a
significant deterioration in the layout of this roundabout exit relative to both the current

layout and the design standard and would introduce new Departures from Standard where
there are none at present.

6.11. The A120 eastbound on-slip road has an appropriate exit width but has an exit kerb radius that is
larger than recommended by the standard. Similar to the A120 eastbound off-slip road the
carriageway width on this arm relates to a superseded standard for slip roads. The information
available does not allow the taper length to be determined due to the road markings not being
presented. Again, these are existing features which the proposed layout adjustment would not
affect.

6.12. There are a number of straight or reverse curve transitions between successive entries and exits.
TD16/07 advises these to be avoided where possible; however this is not a mandatory
requirement.

6.13. A summary of the exit dimensions can be seen in Table 9.
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Table 9: Exit dimensions

No. of Exit Kerb Radius Exit Width Entry Exit Width Exit Taper
Arm lanes
Exit Actual Rec Actual Rec Actual Rec Actual Rec

A131 2 40 20-100m 7.80m 10-11m 7.30m 7.30m 1:10 1:20
A120 EB

off-slip Entry only

Pod's 5.50m 3.20m 4 ;
Brook Rd 2 140 20-100m (8.00m") 7-7.5m (6.55m") 3.65m 1:10 1:20
A120 I_EB 2 120 20-100m 7.25m 7-7.5m 4.00m - NOt 1:20

on-slip available

(*) — This value represents a reduction from the existing width available due to the introduction of the SLTL

Conflict Angles

6.14. The conflict angles for two of the arms, Pod’s Brook Road and A120 eastbound off-slip road are
within the recommended limits advised in TD 16/07. The A131 is below the recommended 20°.
However, this is an existing feature unaffected by the Scheme.

Entry Path Radius

6.15. TD 16/07 requires that the entry path radius must not exceed 100m. For all approaches onto the
circulatory, the entry path radiii have been measured to be equal or below 100m.
Visibility
6.16. As noted previously no vertical alignment of the layout has been made available for this review.
This means that Crossfall and Longitudinal Gradient on the approaches, circulatory and exits
have not been established as this is beyond the scope of this review. Similarly visual intrusions
caused by signs, street furniture and planting etc. have not been available for review.
6.17. The A120 off-slip approach is assumed to have a design speed of 70kph and therefore requires a
Stopping Sight Distance (SSD) of 120m from TD 9/93 with an acceptable line of sight available.
The A131 approach is assumed to have a design speed of 50kph and therefore requires 70m
SSD. With no vertical alignment it is not possible to tell whether this distance is achieved whilst
going under the bridge, however the horizontal line of sight appears to remain within the
carriageway and appears to not be obstructed by the bridge pier. The Pod’'s Brook Road
approach is assumed to have a 70kph design speed and therefore requires 120m SSD. It is not
currently obvious that this can be achieved and this may have implications on the earthworks, tree
and foliage cover and land take. Achievement of this SSD should be confirmed before the
layout is accepted in principle.

Compliance with TD 51/03

6.18. The second stage of the design assessment is to consider the compliance of the proposed SLTL
alignment with TD 51/03. Where text refers to “the standard” in this section, this should be taken
as TD 51/03.

6.19. It should be noted that only the horizontal alignment has been considered in this assessment.

Aspects of design including road markings, NMU provision or lighting considerations have not
been included in this assessment.
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Traffic Flows and Capacity

6.20.

6.21.

The standard advises that the inclusion of a SLTL should be considered where the flow of left
turning vehicles is greater than or equal to the total entry arm in the inflow in vehicles per hour,
divided by the number of proposed entry lanes onto the roundabout (including the SLTL).

Using the 2033 (design year) traffic flows and the equation detailed in the standard, the traffic
flows forecast for the AM and PM peak indicate that a SLTL could be beneficial to the capacity of
the junction and should therefore be considered.

Approach Layout

6.22.

6.23.

6.24.

6.25.

6.26.

6.27.

The layout provided to AECOM indicates a small physical island on the A120 off-slip approach
which could be seen as a Subsidiary Deflection Island (SDI). However, from the entry path radius
section above, a satisfactory entry path radius of 80m is achieved which is below the required
maximum radius of 100m specified in TD 16/07, thus resulting in the SDI not being required.
Inclusion of an SDI to a layout must be considered only as a last resort where conventional
measures do not achieve the entry path radius of 100m. There does not appear to be a strong
NMU desire line to cross the A120 off-slip approach, which would require the need for a
pedestrian traffic island. AECOM recommend that either the traffic island is extended to
provide a physical island that complies with the standard, or alternatively a non-physical
island using road markings compliant with the Traffic Signs Requlations and General
Directions (TSRGD) is used instead.

For the physical island provision the island must extend 1.5m beyond the traffic deflection island
on the approach, 6m beyond the traffic island on the exit and have a minimum width of 1.5m. For
a non-physical island, the island must extend perpendicular from the traffic islands on the
approach and exit, to the nearside kerb and have a minimum width of 1.0m.

As noted previously, AECOM do not have access to the vertical alignment of the proposed layout
and therefore it is assumed that the longitudinal gradient within the immediate approach to the
junction, applicable to the design speed of the approach measured back from the start of the entry
taper, does not exceed 4%. If the longitudinal gradient is in excess of 4% this will require a
Departure from Standard for a SLTL to be accepted. This should be confirmed before the
layout is accepted in principle.

The proposed minimum inside corner radius on the approach is 20m which, with a physical island
less than 50m long, would require a 6.2m carriageway width to accommodate a Large Goods
Vehicle, provided as a 3.5m minimum marked lane with hatched markings developed over the
radius to provide the 6.2m total carriageway width required to comply with the standard. The
carriageway width proposed would need to be increased from the total width of 3.8m
shown at the entry radius to avoid a Departure from Standard.

A minimum marked lane provision of 3.5m is required to be compliant with the standard. The
proposed SLTL alignment does not provide a constant 3.5m marked lane provision. At one point
it reduces down to approximately 3.0m and vehicles using it would therefore encroach on the
current ‘non-physical island’. This would need to be brought up to standard before the layout
is accepted in principle.

The maximum curve radius of the proposed layout is measured as 105m at the exit radius. This
would mean that a 215m SSD would be required to avoid a Departure from Standard. However,
because the road has been assumed to have a design speed of 70kph, the required SSD is the
lesser value between TD 9/93 and TD 51/93, which equates to a Desirable Minimum SSD of
120m. It is not currently obvious that this can be achieved and this may have implications on the
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6.28.

6.29.

6.30.

earthworks, tree and foliage cover and land take. Achievement of this SSD should be
confirmed before the layout is accepted in principle.

It is currently proposed to provide a diverge layout as a means of starting the SLTL. This will
require an approach taper of 1:15 for a design speed greater than 60kph to comply with the
standard, therefore requiring an approach taper length of at least 52.5m, assuming a minimum
width at the start of the entry taper of 3.5m. The taper is introduced from a slip road that currently
comprises a wide single lane set within a 6m wide carriageway. It is unclear from the drawing
how the SLTL is to be introduced. AECOM have therefore been unable to verify whether the
proposed layout is compliant with the standard. Confirmation of the layout proposed and its
compliance with the standard should be provided before the layout is accepted in

principle.

An entry taper with a minimum entry taper width of 3.5m requires an entry length factor of 20 for
an assumed design speed of 70kph. For a physical island provision the entry taper must be
developed with a taper of at least 42m to avoid a Departure from Standard. For a non-physical
island the entry taper must be a length of at least 20m.

The proposed entry taper is greater than 42m so would therefore be compliant with the standard,
however the carriageway width is an under provision to TD 51/03 and does not provide a constant
minimum marked lane provision of 3.5m.

Exit Layout

6.31.

6.32.

6.33.

6.34.

The current proposal includes a merge exit. This does not comply with the standard as a
merge exit should only be provided where two or more lanes are available on the
downstream link and Pod’s Brook Road reduces to a single lane carriageway. This is a
particularly serious point, since the merge introduces an increased risk of head-on collisions with
southbound traffic. The alternative of introducing an additional lane on the exit (i.e. creating a
short section of single four-lane carriageway) would have implications for providing an adequate
weaving length. TD 22/06 specifies an absolute minimum weaving length for an urban road of
approximately 175m for a 70kph design speed. It would not be possible to achieve this, as the
distance to the next junction (the proposed site access roundabout) is approximately 80m from
the end of the SLTL.

Alternatively a give way line could be provided for this layout to allow it to comply with the
standard. This is currently not proposed. If a give way line is provided, its capacity to
accommodate the design flows predicted should be tested using PICADY. Where the SLTL ends
in a give-way line, a minimum entry angle of 20° is recommended.

Should the concept of a merge exit taper be accepted in principle, the layout would need to be
adjusted to comply with the design standard. The proposed exit taper width is greater than the
minimum 3.5m required by the standard and is therefore compliant. The end taper similarly to the
entry taper must be developed with a minimum taper of 1:15 and should have an end taper of
52.5m. The proposed end taper provision is measured as 45m which is an under provision and
therefore would require a Departure from Standard.

As things stand at present, it is not obvious to AECOM that there is a satisfactory way to
terminate the SLTL into Pods Brook Road and this should be confirmed before the layout
is accepted in principle.
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Summary

6.35. In summary there are a number of areas where the proposed layout requires adjustments to
ensure compliance with DMRB standards. Table 9 summarises the areas where adjustments to
the horizontal alignment are recommended or required by TD 16/07 or TD 51/03.

Geometric DMRB

Arm Parameter Standard Compliance

Overall junction Circulatory TD 16/07 | Inconsistent circulatory carriageway width reducing from
carriageway width 11.2m to 8.5m once the SLTL is introduced;

A131 (Circulatory | Exit width entry TD 16/07 | Below recommended minimum (an existing problem

Traffic) unaffected by the proposed improvement)

A131 (Circulatory | Conflict Angle TD 16/07 | Below recommended minimum (an existing problem

Traffic) unaffected by the proposed improvement)

A131 (Circulatory | Exit Taper TD 16/07 | Below recommended taper (an existing problem

Traffic) unaffected by the proposed improvement)

Pod's Brook Rd Approach half TD 27/05 | Below recommended minimum — due to the introduction
width of a second lane on the approach

Pod's Brook Rd Exit kerb radius TD 16/07 | Above recommended maximum-— adversely affected by

the introduction of the SLTL

Pod'’s Brook Rd Exit width entry TD 16/07 | Below recommended minimum- adversely affected by the
introduction of the SLTL

Pod'’s Brook Rd Exit width exit TD 16/07 | Below recommended minimum — adversely affected by
the introduction of the SLTL
Pod's Brook Rd Exit Taper TD 16/07 | Below recommended taper — adversely affected by the
introduction of the SLTL
A120 Exit kerb radius TD 16/07 | Above recommended maximum (an existing problem
unaffected by the proposed improvement)
A120 EB off-slip Approach and Unable to verify compliance with standard because of
(SLTL) entry tapers uncertainty over how the SLTL is to be developed from
the current non-standard carriageway
A131 (SLTL) Physical Island TD 51/03 | Below required physical island extents for approach and
Extent exit
A131 (SLTL) Carriageway width | TD 51/03 | Width below required minimum and inconsistent
A131 (SLTL) Forward visibility TD 9/93 Could be compromised by other aspects of design e.g.
for users of SLTL Earthworks, street furniture etc.
A131 (SLTL) Exit Layout TD 51/03 | Incorrect layout for single lane exit: concern that a
satisfactory alternative layout may not be achievable
A131 (SLTL) Exit taper TD 51/03 | Below required taper

Table 9: Summary of adjustments to horizontal alignment (recommended or required by DMRB)

6.36. In summary the layout does not fully comply with the horizontal requirements advised in DMRB
standards, in particular TD 16/07 and TD 51/03. Some significant geometric adjustments are
required for the layout to be fully compliant with the design standard when assessed in the
horizontal plane and it is not obvious at present that these can all be achieved. Although some of
these adjustments are to parameters which are ‘recommended’ rather than ‘required’, there are a
number of mandatory requirements which would require significant horizontal alignment
adjustments in order to avoid a multiplicity of Departures from Standard, which it is not certain
would be granted. AECOM recommend that these should be addressed before the Scheme

illustrated here is accepted ‘in principle’ as mitigation for the development.
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7.

7.1.

7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

7.5.

7.6.

7.7.

7.8.

Conclusion and Recommendations

AECOM, on behalf of Highways England, have reviewed the ‘Response to Technical Note 03’
dated September 2016 prepared by Journey Transport Planning (JTP) relating to the proposed
development at Land at Flitch Way, Rayne, Braintree.

This Technical Note 04 (TN04) follows AECOM'’s previous reviews of the original Transport
Assessment for the proposed development and several responses to recommendations raised.

Amongst other things, JPM have provided an analysis of the collision record at the Galleys Corner
roundabout. On the base of our review of this, AECOM suggests a possible safety-based
mitigation scheme for the junction.

The latest response from JTP included revised ARCADY models which had been calibrated to
represent observed queueing levels at the A120 / Pod’s Brook Road / A131 (north) roundabout.
Mitigation measures in the form of a segregated left turn lane (SLTL) from the A120 eastbound
off-slip to the Pod’s Brook Road arm of the roundabout have been designed and provided for
review.

This TNO4 provides a detailed review of the ARCADY models. There are still some outstanding
issues that need to be resolved, for example, the proposed layout model of the A120 / Pod’s
Brook Road / A131 roundabout is based on the geometry for the existing layout, which will affect
the modelling results.

Notwithstanding this, Highways England will primarily be concerned with the proposed
adjustments to the A120 eastbound off-slip which has been reviewed to ensure it complies with
current design standards. In principle, a SLTL can be seen to offer some improvement to the
operation of the A120 eastbound off-slip. However, from a design and safety point of view, the
design presented needs to be reconsidered. The ability of the proposed layout to accommodate
development traffic ultimately relies upon this.

Therefore, along with the other recommendations highlighted in this note, AECOM recommend
that the proposed mitigation is reviewed and revised to address the comments in Section 6 of this
note. The ARCADY model should then be updated and re-run based on the revised geometry. If
the SLTL design is altered to provide a give-way layout at its junction with the Pod’s Brook Road
exit, a PICADY model would also be required to test its capacity.

The view of ECC is critical to Highways England’s acceptance of the development proposal as the
ability of both the local and strategic road network to accommodate the traffic generated by the
development is dependent on the effectiveness of the proposed mitigation at the Springwood
Drive / Rayne Road / Pod’s Brook Road, Rayne Road / Aetheric Way and A120 / Pod’s Brook
Road / A131 (north) roundabouts. At the time of writing, JTP advised that they were awaiting
ECC’s comments.

This document has been prepared by AECOM Limited for the sole use of our clients (“Highways England”) and in
accordance with generally accepted consultancy principles, the budget for fees and the terms of reference agreed between
AECOM Limited and the Client. Any information provided by third parties and referred to herein has not been checked or
verified by AECOM Limited, unless otherwise expressly stated in the document. No third party may rely upon this
document without the prior and express written agreement of AECOM Limited.
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
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From: E—

To:

Subject: 071116 0949 BROOK GREEN HIGHWAY MEETING

This message has been scanned by Sherr Technologies SAS messaging security service.



From: E—

To:

Subject: 071116 0949 BROOK GREEN HIGHWAY MEETING

This message has been scanned by Sherr Technologies SAS messaging security service.



Subject: Accepted: BROOK GREEN HIGHWAY MEETING

Thanks for your emails. || | | | | S EEEEEEE ¢ ! can attend a meeting to discuss Brook Green on 28th November from 15:00-
17:00.

AECOM are able to host the meeting if required. | have provisionally held a meeting room at our offices in Chelmsford in case it is
needed.

Please can you let us know if representatives from Braintree and Essex are also able to attend.

Kind Regards

AECOM

Saxon House, 27 Duke Street

Chelmsford, Essex, CM1 1HT, United Kingdom

T +44-1245-77-1200

HYPERLINK "http://www.aecom.com/" aecom.com

Built to deliver a better world
HYPERLINK "http://www.linkedin.com/company/aecom_15656" LinkedIn HYPERLINK "http://twitter.com/AECOM" Twitter

HYPERLINK "http://www.facebook.com/AecomTechnologyCorporation" Facebook HYPERLINK "http://instagram.com/aecom™
Instagram



From:

To:

Cc:

Subject: 101116 0929 RE: Brook Green
Date: 10 November 2016 09:29:49

Hi [l

It would be wise to hold off on commissioning a Stage 1 Road Safety Audit on the A120 / Pod’s Brook Road /
A131 (north) roundabout) until the proposed layout has been accepted in principle as feasible by Highways
England.

Furthermore, the details of any Road Safety audit for works on the Trunk Road need to be agreed with

Highways England prior to an audit being carried out as per DMRB HD19.

Maybe this is something we could discuss further at the 2
Please can you copy all correspondence relating to the Brook Green proposals to_ at Highways
England.

Kind Regards

November meeting.

rrom: I

Sent: 10 November 2016 09:09

To: I
Subject: Brook Green

i

Quick Question before | send over the revised/new proposed layout... should | hold off on a
stage one audit until you’ve had the opportunity to review.

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

—
Ce: F

Subject: 111116 1146 Brook Green
Date: 11 November 2016 11:46:02
Attachments: I ook Green 111116.pdf

Please find attached a letter setting out the situation as | see it, | hope this is
helpful;
Regards

I B
Highways England| Manton Lane| Bedford|Mk41 7LW

Tel
Web http//www.highways.gov.uk
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Our ref I

Your ref:

Woodlands
[ ] Manton Lane
[ ] Bedford MK41 7LW
] Direct Line: |
] Fax: —
11 November 2016
Dear N

A120 BROOK GREEN FITCH WAY BRAINTREE

Dear N,

Thank you for your email dated 12th October on the subject of the funding of mitigation
works related to the proposed Land at Flitch Way (Brook Green) development. Please
accept my apologies for the delay in getting you this response, | have had to seek
advice from a number of colleagues internally Highways England’s position is
determined by the following policy documents:

e Braintree District Council’s Local Plan;
e The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF); and
e Department for Transport (DfT) Circular 02/2013.

Braintree District Council’s Local Plan

Highways England has a duty to co-operate in the delivery of Braintree District Council’s
Local Plan and this must inform our approach to the delivery of infrastructure within the
Local Plan area.

Braintree District Council’s Local Plan is currently subject to a review. The consultation
draft of the emerging Local Plan identifies a number of potential strategic growth
locations within the Braintree area. These are the locations for growth preferred by
Braintree District Council, the Local Planning Authority. The Plan makes clear that
these sites will be expected to contribute to the infrastructure required to deliver the
Plan. Whilst the Plan does not explicitly identify them, it is inferred that the potential slip
roads at Millennium Way are part of the strategic improvements to the A120 referred to
in the Local Plan. The Brook Green site is not one of the preferred growth locations but
is identified as an ‘alternative’ location.
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Registered office Bridge House, 1 Walnut Tree Close, Guildford GU1 4LZ u
Highways England Company Limited registered in England and Wales number 09346363



Highways England’s position is therefore that the preferred development sites that come
forward through the Local Plan process must, together with the public sector, combine
to provide the infrastructure to deliver the Plan. Whilst Highways England would not
reject an offer of funding towards infrastructure, it cannot be allowed to influence the
position of the Brook Green proposed site, relative to other sites, that are coming
forward through the Local Plan process. The Local Plan must determine the priorities.

The NPPF

The NPPF sets out three tests which must be followed (para 204). Planning Obligations
should only be sought where they are:

¢ Necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;
e Directly related to the development; and
e Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.

Circular 02/2013
Circular 02/2013 states that:

33. Only after travel plan and demand management measures have been fully explored
and applied will capacity enhancement measures be considered. While capacity
enhancements should normally be addressed at the plan-making stage, such measures
may be considered at the time when individual planning applications are submitted,
subject to the over-riding principle that delivery of the adopted Local Plan proposals
should not be compromised.

34. Where insufficient capacity exists to provide for overall forecast demand at the time
of opening, the impact of the development will be mitigated to ensure that at that time,
the strategic road network is able to accommodate existing and development generated
traffic. Any associated mitigation works should be appropriate to the overall connectivity
and capacity of any affected part of the strategic road network.

Localised Impacts

In the case of the proposed Brook Green development, in addition to the provision of a
site access roundabout on Pod’s Brook Road, it is evident that mitigation of some form
will be required in respect of the site’s impact at the following locations:

e A120/B1256 (north) roundabout;

e B1256 Pods Brook Way/ Rayne Road/ Springwood Drive roundabout; and

¢ Rayne Road/ Pierrefitte Way/ Aetheric Road signalised junction.

These locations are directly affected by traffic generated by the proposed Brook Green
development. It is evident that there is insufficient capacity available to accommodate
overall forecast demand and that the proposed development has the potential for a
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‘severe’ impact at these locations. Mitigation of these impacts will be required and this
must be funded in full by the Applicant if the development is to be agreed as acceptable.

We are still in discussion with both Journey Transport Planning and Essex County
Council about the form and adequacy of the mitigation proposed. It is of note that,
whilst JTP have carried out an assessment of ‘mitigated’ flows (i.e. with a reduction
applied to account for the beneficial effects of sustainable mode measures), it is our
understanding that the nature of those sustainable mode measures has not yet been
agreed. However, the beneficial effects of the sustainable mode measures are not
sufficient to fully mitigate the impact of the development and some physical traffic
capacity measures will be required. The exact nature of those measures, their
acceptability in design and road safety terms and their effectiveness as mitigation have
also not yet been agreed. We are therefore some way off agreeing a mitigation
package for the localised impacts of the proposed Brook Green development.

It is important to note that an offer of funding towards a large infrastructure scheme
could not overcome the requirement for a site such as Brook Green to mitigate its own
direct localised impacts on the transport network.

Wider Network Impacts

In respect of the wider network, from previous discussions we understand that you are
prepared to fund mitigation works at Galleys Corner roundabout. The mitigation works
identified are west-facing slip roads between the A120 and Millennium Way, which are
intended to relieve Galleys Corner roundabout of much of its turning traffic.

Highways England’s understanding of the relationship between the proposed Brook
Green development and the problems at Galleys Corner can be summarised as follows:

e There is currently a significant congestion problem at Galleys Corner;

e This is predicted to get worse over time if no mitigation is brought forward;

e The proposed development will contribute to making conditions worse than they
would otherwise have been;

e The slip roads between the A120 and Millennium Way are currently an aspiration
and have not been adopted as a ‘Scheme’;

¢ |t would be appropriate for Highways England to accept an offer to part-fund the slip
roads once they are adopted as a Highways England scheme;

¢ In the interim, a process of assembling funding from developers would have to be
carried out by a ‘ring master’ — in this case the Local Planning Authority would be the
preferred body to undertake this role to ensure parity in this process;

e The scale of that funding would have to be agreed using a transparent process of
apportionment with respect to contributions from other developers and the public
sector,;
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Any offer of funding must meet the requirements of both the Circular and the NPPF ‘fair
and reasonable’ tests and must be seen in the context of the emerging Local Plan.

It is therefore the case that any acceptance of funding from any one individual
developer must clearly be seen in the context of a larger funding package, with the
funding from one being in proportion to the scale of their site’s impact relative to the
overall scale of the problem.

At present, the slip roads have been subject to an initial engineering feasibility study,
however, they have not been formally adopted by Highways England as a Scheme.
They have not been costed in any detail, nor have the relative impacts of the various
development sites been assessed. It would therefore be premature for Highways
England to accept an offer to part fund the works.

Conclusion

As a next step, Highways England recommend that we focus on reaching agreement on
the package of sustainable mode and local mitigation works; following which we have a
joint meeting with Essex County Council and Braintree District Council to discuss the
potential for the Brook Green development to part-fund works on the wider network and
to agree which organisation will assemble contributions. In the meantime Highways
England will continue to support Braintree District Council in the production of the Local
Plan.

| trust this clarifies the situation.

Yours sincerely

Operations Directorate

Email: [
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From: I
To: 1

ce: I
Subject: 241116 0904 Brook Green mtg

Date: 24 November 2016 09:04:29

Dear ||}

Further to our discussions and my submissions with respect to Technical note 4, if there are any
other matters requiring my attention prior to the meeting | would be grateful if you could let me
know so | can address them, otherwise | look forward to meeting you Monday.

Best Regards

Director
Journey Transport Planning Ltd
Room 436

4™ Floor
Victoria House
Chelmsford
Essex

CM1 1JR

Direct inc: I
obite: I

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

To: )
Subject: 241116 1230 RE: Brook Green mtg

Date: 24 November 2016 12:30:20

Attachments: DX077 TNO5 (issued).pdf

Please find attached AECOMs latest technical review the content of which | agree
with

| am not expecting that you will be able to address these by our meeting on
Monday

Regards

I

Highways England | Woodlands | Manton Lane | Bedford | MK41 7LW
Tel:
Web: http://www.highways.gov.uk

GTN: I

From:
Sent: 24 November 2016 09:04
To:
Cc:

Subject: Brook Green mtg

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

I |
I

Director
Journey Transport Planning Ltd
Room 436

4™ Floor
Victoria House
Chelmsford
Essex

CM1 1JR

Direct line: |

Mobile: |
www.journeytp.co.uk




DISCLAIMER:

This message is private and confidential. Any sharing of this message or its contents is prohibited unless approved by
Journey Transport Planning Ltd. If you have received this message in error, please notify the sender and destroy the
message and any attachments.

This email is sent on behalf of Journey Transport Planning Limited.

Journey is registered in England & Wales 84415953.

Journey reserve the right to monitor all communications through its internal and external networks. Whilst all effort is
made to safe guard emails and attachments through virus checking, we advise you to carry out your own checks.
Journey do not accept liability for any loss or damage caused by software virus.

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
https.://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/highways-england |

info@highwaysengland.co.uk

Registered in England and Wales no 9346363 | Registered Office: Bridge House, 1 Walnut
Tree Close, Guildford, Surrey GU1 4.7
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Technical Note 05

Project: Highways England Spatial Planning Job No: 60506522 / DX077

Arrangement 2016-2020

Subject: Land at Flitch Way, Rayne — Review of Developer Consultant’s ‘Response to

AECOM Technical Note 04

Prepared by: ||| Date: 16" November 2016
Checked by: || G Date: 22"! November 2016

Verified by: ||| Date: 23" November 2016

Approve by: |

Date: 23" November 2016

1.1.

1.2

1.3.

1.4.

2.1.

Introduction

This Technical Note (TN0O5) has been prepared by AECOM, on behalf of Highways England, to
document a review of the revised layout of the mitigation scheme at the A120/A131 (north)
roundabout, proposed by Journey Transport Planning (JTP), in support of the proposed
development at Land at Flitch Way, Rayne (LaFW), drawing number: JTP 06414-DR10. This
Technical Note also reports on a set of updated ARCADY model runs carried out in support of the
revised layout.

The revised alignment has been produced in response to AECOM’s Technical Note 04 (TNO4)
which recommended alterations to the horizontal alignment to comply with Design Manual for
Roads and Bridges (DMRB) standards, in particular, TD 51/03 and TD 16/07.

This note follows a number of reviews carried out by AECOM to support the planning application
for the proposed development at LaFW (reference 15/01538/OUT) lodged with Braintree District
Council (BDC). These are listed below:

TNO1- Transport Assessment Review;

TNO2- Review of Developer Consultant’s ‘Response to Technical Note 01’;

TNO3- Review of Developer Consultant’s ‘Response to Technical Note 02 and Further Matters

Raised’; and

TNO04- Review of Developer Consultant’s ‘Response to Technical Note 03'.

The objective of TNO5 is to determine whether the issues raised in AECOM'’s previous documents
have been fully addressed in order to allow the potential impact of the proposed development on
the operation of the Strategic Road Network (SRN) to be fully understood. Where mitigation
measures are proposed, AECOM will advise Highways England as to whether they are
acceptable in terms of compliance with the DMRB and sufficient to accommodate traffic estimated
to be generated by the LaFW development.

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

Page: 1 0f 9 www.aecom.com United Kingdom
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Technical Note 05

3.

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

Issues raised in AECOM’s TN04 and JTP’s revised alignment

As described in TNO4, AECOM have undertaken a review of the junction layout proposed by JTP
with the following limitations. Only the horizontal alignment has been made available to AECOM
and therefore neither a full design check against Design Manual for Roads and Bridges (DMRB)
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

In response to the issues raised in AECOM'’s TN04, JTP have made a number of adjustments to
the Segregated Left Turn Lane (SLTL) which will be discussed in the following section of this
report. The other arms of the roundabout remain unaltered from the last revision, retaining the
majority of the existing roundabout geometric layout at its current location.

The principal change is the substitution of a physical island to separate the SLTL from the
circulatory carriageway of the roundabout (substituting for the previous non-physical island), the
relocation of the SLTL to a position where it encroaches less upon the width of the circulatory
carriageway, and the provision of a lane gain (rather than a merge) at the downstream end of the
SLTL. In addition, further details are provided as to the tapers which will introduce the SLTL from
the A120 eastbound off-slip road.

Compliance with TD 16/07

3.4.

This Technical Note will firstly review the compliance of the updated layout shown on drawing
DR10 with TD 16/07. The following comments have been observed.

Inscribed Circle Diameter, Circulatory Width, Central Island

3.5.

3.6.

The Inscribed Diameter (ICD) is 64m with a central island of 42m, retaining the existing overall
geometry of the roundabout.

The repositioning of the SLTL physical island extent has led to an improvement to the
encroachment of the SLTL on the circulatory carriageway of the junction. However, there is still a
non-constant carriageway width, albeit to a lesser extent than the previous layout, leading to a
carriageway width between 10.3m and 11.2m. As noted in TNO4, the non-constant width could
lead to vehicle conflict as vehicles following the outer edge of the circulatory experience a
different radius and therefore turning movement, to vehicles in the inner lane of the circulatory.
AECOM therefore recommend that the SLTL is repositioned to provide a constant
circulatory carriageway width.

Entry Dimensions

3.7.

The entry width for the A120 east-bound off-slip (circulatory traffic) approach has been increased
with the repositioning of the physical island of the SLTL to 9.25m. This dimension, represents an
overprovision entry width for a two lane entry. TD 16/07 requires lane widths at the give way line
to be between 3.0m and 3.5m for a multi-lane entry. It should be noted that the entry width is
below the absolute maximum for a single carriageway approach of 10.5m. However, given the
provision of the SLTL, it would not be appropriate to provide three lanes at the roundabout entry,
which an entry width of 9.25m would imply. AECOM therefore recommend that the entry width
for the A120 EB off-slip (circulatory traffic) is reduced to provide a DMRB compliant entry
width.
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3.8.

3.9.

3.10.

3.11.

3.12.

The entry dimensions for the A131 and Pod’s Brook approaches remain the same as the previous
layout, DR, for the approach half width, entry width, entry flaring and entry kerb radius, and are
therefore appropriate for the number of lanes provided at the junction with a couple of exceptions,
noted below.

The A131 and the Pod’s Brook Road entry widths, similar to that detailed in Para. 3.6 have a
wider entry width than required by the standard although below the absolute maximum. AECOM
do however recognise that these are existing features of the current layout.

There is also overprovision of the circulatory carriageway, as the width of the circulatory
carriageway will be greater than 1.0 and 1.2 times the maximum entry width. This may lead to
debris building up in under-used areas of the carriageway. AECOM therefore recommend that a
solution to this is found, this could include hatching or making the central island larger. Again,
AECOM recognise that this is a feature of the existing layout.

As noted in TNO4, the proposed Pod’s Brook Road approach has an approach width of 6.35m.
This would need to be accepted by the Local Highway Authority to be approved in principle as this
is a non-standard carriageway width to TD 27/05.

A summary of the entry dimensions can be seen in Table 1 below. Measurements highlighted in
red indicate elements of the existing or proposed layout which do not conform with current design
standards. ‘Req’ refers to a required dimension in TD 16/07 which is mandatory; ‘Rec’ refers to a
recommended dimension.

Table 1: Entry Dimensions of DR10 Layout

No. of Approach Half . . ]
Arm lanes Width Entry Width Entry Flaring Entry Kerb Radius
Entry Actual Rec Actual Req Actual Rec Actual Rec
6-7m 25- 20-
A131 2 7.30m 7.30m 8.45m (15m 7.05m 20m
100m 100m
max)
6-7m
A120 EB off- 25- 20-
slip 2 4.00m - 9.25m | (10.5m | 14.60m 100m 23m 100m
max)
Pod's Brook 6-7m 5. 20-
Road 2 6.35m" 7.30m 7.95m (10.5m 25m 22m
100m 100m
max)
A120 EB on- :
slip Exit only

(*)- non-standard carriageway width to TD 27/05.

Exit

Dimensions

3.13

3.14.

. The exit dimensions of the A120 EB-on-slip and the A131 exit propose to retain the geometry of
the existing layout and are appropriate for the number of lanes provided at the junction with one
exception. As noted in TNO4, the exit width of the A131 exit is below the recommended width of
10-11m, although this is not a mandatory requirement and AECOM recognise that this is an
existing issue.

The repositioned SLTL physical island provides Pod’s Brook Road with an improved exit kerb
radius from the previous alignment, below the maximum radius of 100m required by the standard.
However, although the narrow exit width has been increased, at 6.45m it is still below the
recommended exit width of 7.0m and it tapers down to a lane width of 4.85m at the end of the
physical island that is again below the recommended value of 6.0m to enable traffic to pass a
broken down vehicle. The forecast traffic flows suggest a dominant straight ahead traffic flow from
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the two-lane A131 entry into this exit and this may result in drivers expecting to be able to enter
Pod’s Brook Road from both lanes of the circulatory, as they can at present. The underprovision
of carriageway width on this exit is therefore especially concerning. AECOM therefore
recommend that the exit width is increased to be compliant with the DMRB recommended
dimensions at both the roundabout exit and at the end of the physical island, with an
appropriate taper.

3.15. A summary of the exit dimensions can be seen in Table 2 below. Unlike the entry dimensions, the
exit dimensions are recommended instead of mandatory requirements. However, it is seen as
good practice to provide the recommended values.

Table 2: Exit Dimensions of DR10 Layout

No. of Exit Kerb Radius Exit Width Entry Exit Width Exit Taper
Arm I:’;(?ts Actual Rec Actual Rec Actual Rec Actual Rec
A131 2 20m 20-100m 7.90m 10-11m 7.30m 7.30m 1:30 1:20
A120 EB off-
slip Entry only
Pod's Brook
Road 6.45m 4.85m . .
(Junction 2 60m 20-100m (8.00m") 7-7.5m (6.5m™) 6.0m 1:5 1:20
Exit)
A120 EB on- Not .
slip 2 100m 20-100m 7.30m 7-7.5m 4.00m - available 1:20

(*)- This value represents a reduction from the existing width of 8.0m available due to the introduction of the SLTL;
(**) This value represents a reduction from the existing width of 6.5m available due to the introduction of the SLTL.

Conflict Angles

3.16. The conflict angles for all of the amms are within the recommended limits advised in TD 16/07.

Entry Path Radius

3.17. There is a non-compliant entry path radius that exceeds 100m on the A120 eastbound off-slip
approach. An entry path radius below 100m is a mandatory requirement of TD 16/07. This is an
existing problem which appears not to be made worse by the provision of the SLTL. However,
Highways England would expect any modifications to a non-compliant roundabout entry to include
with them the resolution of such a problem. AECOM therefore recommends that adjustments
to the alignment are made to the layout to provide a DMRB compliant entry path radius for
the A120 EB off-slip approach. This could include, for example, reducing the width of the entry
(as suggested at Para. 3.7, above) and increasing the size of the central island of the roundabout
(which would resolve the issue of excessive circulatory width referred to at Para. 3.10 above). In
AECOM’s view, the introduction of the SLTL brings with it the opportunity to seek the
resolution of all these issues in an integrated way and we recommend that this is pursued
as part of Highways England’s response to the current proposal.

Visibility

3.18. As noted previously no vertical alignment of the layout has been made available for this review.
This means that Crossfall and Longitudinal Gradient on the approaches, circulatory and exits
have not been established as this is beyond the scope of this review. Similarly visual intrusions
caused by signs, street furniture and planting etc. have not been available for review.

3.19. As detailed in TNO4, the same visibility considerations need to be addressed to comply with
DMRB, in particular TD 9/93. Of particular note is the visibility requirement at the Pod’s Brook

Page: 4 0of 9
S:\Development Planning_518441\E_Essex CC\Braintree DC\DX077 Land at Flitch Way, Rayne\Reports & Technical Notes\lssued\DX077 TNO5 (issued).docx




Technical Note 05

Road approach which is proposed to be widened from the existing layout. The introduction of a
two lane approach may lead to a non-compliant SSD due to existing trees and street furniture in
the verge. Achievement of the compliant SSD for the design speed of the approach should
be confirmed before the layout is accepted in principle.

Compliance with TD 51/03

3.20.

3.21.

This Technical Note will now review the proposed SLTL’s compliance with Design Standard TD
51/03. This review has again only considered the horizontal alignment. Aspects of design
including road markings, NMU provision or lighting considerations have not been included in this
assessment. The following comments have been observed with respect to the updated layout
shown in DR10.

AECOM do not have access to the vertical alignment of the proposed layout and therefore it is
assumed that the longitudinal gradient of the A120 eastbound off-slip road in the immediate
approach to the junction, applicable to the design speed of the approach measured back from the
start of the entry taper, does not exceed 4%. If the longitudinal gradient is in excess of 4% this will
require a Departure from Standard for a SLTL to be accepted. This should be confirmed before
the layout is accepted in principle.

Physical Island

3.22.

3.23.

3.24.

As recommended in TNO4, a physical island has been included in the revised layout, DR 10. The
extent and size of the physical island is compliant with TD 51/03.

The carriageway width of the SLTL within the extent of the physical island is determined by the
minimum curve radius on the entry or exit of the SLTL. The revised layout has a minimum curve
radius of 47m which equates to a minimum carriageway width of 7m for a SLTL with a physical
island longer than 50m. The carriageway width measured (6.25m) is narrower than required and
is also not of a constant width. This under-provision could lead to a Large Goods Vehicle not
being able to negotiate the SLTL safely. AECOM recommends that the SLTL carriageway
width is increased to a DMRB compliant width set by the minimum curve radius of the
SLTL and that a constant width is provided.

The proposed alignment uses reverse curvature to create the SLTL. Although this has the benefit
of reducing the land take requirement, it should be noted that the use of reverse curves on the
approach and through the roundabout are discouraged by DMRB.

Approach Layout

3.25.

3.26.

The SLTL alignment proposes a diverge layout as a means of starting the SLTL from the A120 EB
off-slip. The approach and entry tapers are of generous lengths that are significantly greater than
the minimum lengths required for the design speed, assumed to be 70kph. However, the extent of
the over-provision may promote excessively high speeds of entry to the SLTL. AECOM therefore
recommend that the approach and entry tapers are reduced in length to the values
recommended in TD 51/03.

The lane width at the start of the entry taper is greater than the minimum width required of 3.5m to
be compliant to the standard. Coupled with the protracted approach taper, this could increase the
likelihood of vehicles entering the SLTL at excessively high speeds. A requirement for the hard
strip provision to be terminated at the start of the entry taper is also detailed in TD 51/03. Limited
road marking design has been made available so this has not been assessed. AECOM therefore
recommend that the lane width at the beginning of the entry taper is reduced to 3.5m to
reduce the risk of excessive entry speeds into the SLTL.
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Exit Layout

3.27.

3.28.

3.29.

3.30.

3.31.

The revised layout DR 10, proposes introducing an additional lane on Pods Brook Road
northbound to provide users of the SLTL with a dedicated lane, thus creating two lanes
northbound between the existing roundabout and the proposed development site access
roundabout. AECOM note that both of these lanes are indicated as available for straight ahead
traffic towards Pods Brook Road (north). It will therefore be important to ensure that the
development site access roundabout provides sufficient exit width into the Pods Brook Road
(north) exit from the roundabout. The layout of the development site access roundabout has not
been considered in this review as it is a matter for the Local Highway Authority. However, this
will also need to be reviewed by the Local Highway Authority and confirmed as acceptable
to them before the proposed layout can be accepted in principle by Highways England.

The minimum lane width at the end of the exit taper is recommended to be 3.5m in TD 51/03. The
layout proposes a width of 4.20m which could be seen as over-generous, as a 1:20 exit taper is
required to reduce the carriageway widening at the end of the physical island to the lane width at
the end of the exit taper.

The exit taper for the SLTL is currently below the 1:20 exit taper that is required for a 70kph
design speed. If the appropriate carriageway width of 7.0m at the end of the physical island and
3.5m minimum lane width exit width is to be provided, a compliant exit taper of at least 70m is
required. The current exit taper, with the non-compliant carriageway width at the termination of the
physical island and the generous exit taper lane width, leads to an exit taper of 57m. AECOM
recommend that the lane width at the end of the exit taper is reduced to the minimum
recommended lane width of 3.5m, to reduce the need for excessive land take and assist in
creating a compliant exit taper.

The provision of a dedicated exit lane at Pod’s Brook Road from the SLTL will introduce a
weaving issue for vehicles entering Pod’s Brook Road from the circulatory who wish to turn left
into the development. This is somewhat mitigated by both lanes allowing for straight-on
movement, removing a potential conflict flow for vehicles wanting to continue on Pod’s Brook
Road from the SLTL. This arrangement as mentioned previously in Para. 3.27, is subject to the
development roundabout being approved in principle.

Design Standard TD22/06 is not strictly applicable to weaving sections between successive
junctions on the Local Road Network; however, it does provide guidance on appropriate weaving
lengths for use at various design speeds. Application of TD22, assuming a 50kph design speed
would result in a weaving length of 100m being required. The available weaving length at present
is approximately 62m and this would therefore be regarded as substandard. Since this would
form part of the Local Road Network, AECOM recommend that Highways England seek
confirmation from the Local Highway Authority that they are content with a weaving
section this short between the end of the SLTL and the site access roundabout. In
connection with this, AECOM would draw attention to the fact that it may be difficult to move the
proposed site access roundabout north from its current position without encroaching on the flood
risk area associated with the Pods Brook watercourse, as defined by the Environment Agency.

Visibility

3.32.

The revised layout proposes a visibility splay on the entry to the SLTL to increase the line of sight
available to vehicles. TD 51/03 requires that the Desirable Minimum Stopping Sight Distance
(SSD) throughout the SLTL should be the lesser of the SSD obtained from Table 3 of TD 9/93 or
Table 2/1 of TD 51/03. Assuming a design speed of 70kph, this would equate to a TD9/93 SSD of
120m. The maximum nearside curve radius using Table 2/1 of TD51/03 gives a SSD of 90m. The
available SSD of the revised layout with the visibility splay allows only for a SSD of approximately
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4.1.

4.2.

43.

44.

60m. AECOM therefore recommend that a larger visibility splay is provided to allow for a
compliant SSD of 90m to be available. The implications of this on land take and earthworks
should be clearly identified.

Updated ARCADY Model Review

AECOM’s TNO4 recommended that the ARCADY model for the A120 / Pod’s Brook Road / A131
(north) roundabout is re-run to take into account the proposed layout geometry. In a previous
iteration of the ARCADY model, the geometry for the A120 arm was based on that for the existing
layout and not the proposed layout, which affected the modelling results.

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

The ARCADY model results for the existing layout have previously been agreed as presented in
Table 3.

Table 3: A120/Pod's Brook Road/ A131 (North) Roundabout- Existing Layout ARCADY Results

Pod’s Brook Rd A131 Under Bridge A120 EB off-slip
Max RFC Qh::::e Max RFC Q“:::e Max RFC Q“:::e
AM 0.50 1 043 1 1.00 17
2015 Base PM | 076 3 0.28 <1 0.87 3
2033 Forecast + CD + AM 0.69 2 0.54 1 1.81 176
Re-assignment PM 1.03 34 0.37 1 1.23 155
2033 With Dev (incl. AM 1.07 66 0.61 2 2.94 366
CD + Re-assignment) PM 1.16 112 0.51 1 1.69 493
4.5. AECOM have reviewed the revised ARCADY model for the proposed layout sent with the email
from JTP dated 10th November 2016. The proposed layout includes a segregated left turn filter
lane from the A120 eastbound off-slip to Pod’s Brook Road as per JTP drawing DR10. Table 4
presents JTP’s revised modelling results for the A120 / Pod’'s Brook Road / A131 (North)
roundabout proposed layout. The results for the 2015 and 2033 base scenarios have not been
included in Table 4 because the proposed layout would only come into effect in the ‘with
development’ scenarios.
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Table 4: A120/ Pod's Brook Road/

A131 (North) Roundabout- Proposed Layout ARCADY Results (JTP

Results)

4.6.

Pod’s Brook Rd A131 Under Bridge A120 EB off-slip
Max Max Max
Max RFC e Max RFC Gree Max RFC e
2033 With Dev (incl. AM 0.86 6 0.64 2 0.36 1
CD + Re-assignment) PM 1.00 25 0.54 1 1.03 34

AECOM have reviewed the geometric parameters entered into the proposed layout ARCADY
model to ensure they are representative of the layout presented in drawing DR10. AECOM found
discrepancies with the geometric parameters. The differences between JTP and AECOM’s
geometry measurements of the roundabout are shown in Table 5, with AECOM’s measurements
in red text.

Table 5: A120/ Pod's Brook Road/ A131 (North) Roundabout- Geometric Parameters

WL E - Entry width L’ - Effective R - Entry radius IFD i In.scnbed PHI - Conflict

road half circle diameter o

width (m) (m) Flare (m) (m) o entry angle (°)

Pod's Brook Rd | 7.00 (6.35) 7.90 (7.95) 5.00 (25.00) | 32.00 (22.00) 64.00 34.00 (42.00)
A120 EB on-slip Exit Only

A131 7.50 (7.30) 7.50 (8.45) 0.00 (7.05) 20.00 64.00 36.00 (32.00)

A120 EB off-slip 4.00 8.00 (9.25) 10.00 (14.60) 23.00 64.00 27.00 (25.00)

4.7.

4.8.

4.9.

4.10.

51.

5.2.

AECOM consider that these differences could make a material difference to the modelling results
and therefore recommend that the ARCADY model is updated to match the geometry measured
by AECOM as shown in Table 5.

In addition, the proposed layout model does not appear to include the intercept adjustments that
have been applied to the A120 entry arm in the existing layout model. In order for the existing and
proposed models to be comparable, it is AECOM’s view that the same intercept adjustments
should be applied. This could explain why the proposed layout model is showing significantly
different results to the existing layout model in the 2033 ‘with development’ scenario.

AECOM recommend that JTP either provide their rationale for excluding the intercept adjustment
from the proposed layout model, or provide an alternative set of ARCADY model results to include
them.

Until the model inputs are revised and justification is provided for excluding the intercept
adjustment as described above, AECOM do not consider the proposed layout model to be
comparable to the existing layout model that has been previously agreed.

Conclusion and Recommendations

AECOM, on behalf of Highways England have reviewed the revised layout of the proposed
mitigation scheme at the A120/A131 (north) roundabout, shown in Journey Transport Planning
(JTP) drawing DR10, proposed in support of the proposed development at Land at Flitch Way,
Rayne, Braintree, together with the supporting ARCADY models.

This Technical Note (TNO4) follows AECOM'’s previous reviews of the original Transport
Assessment for the proposed development and several responses to recommendations raised.
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5.3. Although, the repositioning of the Segregated Left Turn Lane (SLTL) has led to an improvement to
the proposed layout there are still a number of areas that will require adjustments to achieve full
compliance with Design Manual for Roads and Bridges, or where there are significant road safety
concerns.

5.4. Recommendations for further adjustments to the layout are summarised below:

Roundabout
The SLTL should be repositioned to provide a constant circulatory carriageway width;
The entry width of the A120 EB off-slip should be reduced to an appropriate width for a two
lane entry;
The circulatory carriageway width should be reduced to a dimension appropriate for the
maximum entry width (this is an existing issue but addressing it could help to resolve a number
of others);
The exit width and the lane width at the end of the physical island of the Pod’s Brook Road exit
from the circulatory should be increased to the recommended dimensions with an appropriate
taper
The entry path radius for the A120 EB off-slip (circulatory traffic) should be reduced to the
appropriate dimension
The achievement of the required SSD on the Pod’s Brook Road approach to the junction
should be confirmed

Segregated Left Turn Lane (SLTL)
The gradient of the A120 off-slip road approaching the roundabout should be confirmed as
being less than 4%;
The SLTL carriageway width within the physical island should be increased to the value
required by the minimum curve radius and should be of a constant width
The exit taper of the SLTL should be increased to the required value;
The entry taper length should be reduced to the value recommended in DMRB;
The entry and exit taper width should be reduced to the values recommended in DMRB;
The visibility splay available to vehicles using the SLTL should be increased to provide the
Stopping Sight Distance appropriate to the design speed;
The exit geometry of the Site Access Roundabout into Pods Brook Road north should be
confirmed by the Local Highway Authority as adequate to accommodate a two-lane entry from
Pods Brook Road south (and if it is not, its geometry should be enhanced);
The weaving length between the end of the SLTL and the Site Access Roundabout should be
confirmed by the Local Highway Authority as adequate for their requirements.

5.5. The ARCADY modelling should also be reviewed with the appropriate dimensions once a layout
has been approved in principle.

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

Ce: 1
Subject: 051216 1248 Land at Flitch Way (Brook Green) - working meeting
Date: 05 December 2016 12:48:14

You will recall at our recent meeting with you and your Client, that we agreed to make provision
for a working meeting to discuss with you your response to the comments made by both Essex
County Council and Highways England on your recent proposals. The objective of this meeting is
to ensure, as far as possible, that the next submission of technical material is substantially
acceptable to both highway authorities before it is submitted.

| understand that you were to commence work straight away on a response to the highway
authorities’ comments and that you expected to complete this work just before Christmas. The
working meeting should therefore take place within the next two weeks. (Please note: | am on

annual leave from 19™ December until the new year).
In order to facilitate this meeting, can | check out your availability (and that of- for Tuesday
13" December. We can host, although our usual (large) meeting room will not be available.

Since this is intended to be a technical meeting, | envisage it will involve a smaller group:

yourself, - - and either- or myself; if we need to bring others in from here we can
do so as and when they are required. So a meeting room seating 4 should suffice.
Please let me know what you think.

Regards,

AECOM

Saxon House

27 Duke Street

Chelmsford, Essex CM1 1HT, UK
T +1245-771200

aecom.com

Built to deliver a better world

LinkedIn Twitter Facebook Instagram
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To: -

Cc:

Subject: 051216 1613 RE: Land at Flitch Way (Brook Green) - working meeting
Date: 05 December 2016 16:13:25

Attachments: image001.png

am free on the afternoon of Monday 12t or any time on Thursday 14™ Not sure about-

or Il

Regards,

Saxon House

27 Duke Street

Chelmsford, Essex CM1 1HT, UK
T +1245-771200

Built to deliver a better world
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Subject: RE: Land at Flitch Way (Brook Green) - working meeting
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| will struggle with 13 | could do 12" after 10:30, or 14™ or 15" Dec after 14:00 if
they are any good.

Development Manager
Transportation, Planning and Development
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Subject: Land at Flitch Way (Brook Green) - working meeting

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

annual leave from 19™" December until the new year).
In order to facilitate this meeting, can | check out your availability (and that of- for Tuesday

13'™ December. We can host, although our usual (large) meeting room will not be available.
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



PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT AT BROOK GREEN, BRAINTREE — SECTION 106

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

AGREEMENT

ADVICE NOTE ON CONTRIBUTION TOWARDS OFF-SITE HIGHWAY WORKS

Introduction

In January 2016, an outline planning application was submitted to Braintree District Council
(the District Council) for development comprising up to 1,600 residential dwellings (Class C3)
on 32.75 ha of land, a 800 sqm local centre (Use Classes A1/A2/D1/D2 with no more than
200 sgm A1) on 0.29 ha of land, a 2.2 ha primary school site (Class D1), 0.65 ha of
employment land (Class B1), 12.3 ha of public open space, associated highway works with a
new access via Pods Brook Road and Rayne Road and demolition of nos. 27 and 29 Gilda
Terrace (the Proposed Development), with all matters reserved, on land north and south of
Flitch Way, Brook Green, Pods Brook Road, Braintree, Essex (the Site). The planning
application was validated by the District Council on 19 January 2016 and was allocated
application no. 15/01538/0OUT.

Accompanying the planning application was an Environmental Statement and a Transport
Assessment prepared by Journey Transport Planning.

Following consultation with the District Council and Essex County Council (the County
Council), further transport assessment by Journey Transport Planning has been undertaken
which has also now been subject to input from the County Council and Highways England.

The further transport assessment has concluded that the Proposed Development will
generate additional traffic which will have an impact on the A120 which will require significant
improvement works to the A120 to be carried out. Further information on this impact and on
the works to the A120 that are required as a result of the Proposed Development (the Off-site
Highway Works) are contained in the letter from Journey Transport Planning to GolDev dated
5 December 2016 which is attached to this note.

It is intended that the required works to the A120 will be secured by way of a financial
contribution (the Off-site Highway Works Contribution) set out in a Section 106 Agreement
with the District Council and the County Council which will be completed prior to the issue of
planning permission for the Proposed Development.

Whilst the exact wording of the relevant provisions of the Section 106 Agreement has not yet
been prepared and will, of course, need to be the subject of negotiation with the District
Council and the County Council, the purpose of this note is to set out certain points of
principle in relation to the Off-site Highway Works Contribution and other matters that the
relevant provisions of the Section 106 Agreement would be likely to cover.

It is understood that the Proposed Development is the most significant development proposed
for the Braintree area and, in addition, that it is the most advanced significant development
scheme in terms of the progress of the planning application through the planning system.

22930267-1
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2.2

2.3
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3.1

3.2

3.3

Legislation and Guidance

The legislation and guidance relevant to the use of planning obligations is set out in a number
of different places and these are briefly summarised below.

Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) allows any person
interested in land in the area of a local planning authority to enter into a planning obligation
requiring a sum or sums to be paid to that authority on a specified date or dates or
periodically.

Regulation 122 of the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) (the
CIL Regulations) sets out that a planning obligation may only constitute a reason for granting
planning permission for a development if the obligation is: (a) necessary to make the
development acceptable in planning terms; (b) directly related to the development; and (c)
fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.

The requirements set out in Regulation 122 of the CIL Regulations are reinforced by guidance
in the same terms which is contained in paragraph 204 of the National Planning Policy
Framework which appears in the section on planning conditions and obligations.

Section 106 Agreement for Proposed Development

By reference to the attached letter from Journey Transport Planning, it is considered that the
payment of the Off-site Highway Works Contribution would satisfy the three tests set out in
Regulation 122 of the CIL Regulations. This is, in particular, because of the amount of traffic
which will be generated by the Proposed Development (and its impact on the A120) and also
because there are unlikely to be any other proposed developments which will contribute
towards the Off-site Highway Works which will be granted planning permission (with an
accompanying section 106 agreement containing a contribution towards the Off-site Highway
Works) before the Section 106 Agreement for the Proposed Development is completed,
planning permission is granted for the Proposed Development and it is commenced.

Having provided the Off-site Highway Works, the Proposed Development would have created
“spare” capacity not required for its own use and thus enabling future development to come
forward. Accordingly, it is accepted that it would be appropriate for other developments to
make a contribution towards the cost of the Off-site Highway Works where those
contributions, if secured, would then be repaid to the developer of the Proposed
Development, this being fair and equitable and an acknowledgement that the Proposed
Development was required to fund the entirety of the Off-site Highway Works given that it was
necessary for all of those works to be carried out “up front” and that the Proposed
Development was thus required to fund them as being the first relevant development to be
granted planning permission.

In light of the point made immediately above, suggested wording is proposed (see attached)
that contemplates a repayment to the developer of the Proposed Development of any
contributions towards the Off-site Highway Works which the District Council and/or the County
Council is able to secure from other relevant developments.

22930267-1



3.4

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

The wording attached is a modified version of a clause contained in a section 106 agreement
entered into between the development consortium, East Devon District Council and Devon
County Council on 29 October 2010 for a large mixed use development at Cranbrook in East
Devon where permission currently exists for some 3,487 dwellings as part of a new
settlement. Extracts from the Cranbrook section 106 agreement are attached to this note.
This firm negotiated 106 agreement with the Councils on behalf of the development
consortium and it is understood that pursuant to the relevant provisions, some £511,000 has
now been returned to the development consortium following development on the Off-Site
Development Land (as defined in the Cranbrook section 106 agreement) coming forward.

Summary

A planning application has been submitted to the District Council for the Proposed
Development.

Following a subsequent transport assessment, it has been concluded that the Proposed
Development will generate a level of traffic such that the Off-site Highway Works need to be
carried out.

It is intended that the Off-site Highway Works are funded by way of the payment by the
developers of the Proposed Development of an Off-site Highway Works Contribution to be
secured by a Section 106 Agreement.

It is considered that the payment of the Off-site Highways Contribution complies with the
relevant tests for planning obligations as set out in the CIL Regulations.

It is proposed that the Section 106 Agreement should contain a provision relating to the
payment to the developers of the Proposed Development of contributions towards the Off-site
Highway Works which are secured by the District Council or the County Council from other
relevant development sites.

Wording very similar to that referred to immediately above appears in a section 106
agreement for the Cranbrook new settlement and this has led to the repayment of a
contribution in a similar situation.

! !ecem!er !! |!
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Sent: 05 December 2016 16 10

o

Cc

Subject: RE Land at Flitch Way (Brook Green) - working meeting

pear |

I will struggle with 13t | could do 12t after 10:30, or 14" or 15" Dec after 14:00 if they are any good

Transportation Planning and Development

F% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail
From

Sent: 05 December 2016 12 48

o N

Ccf

Subject: Land at Flitch Way (Brook Green) - working meeting

You will recall at our recent meeting with you and your Client that we agreed to make provision for a working meeting to discuss with you your response to the comments made by both Essex County Council and
Highways England on your recent proposals. The objective of this meeting is to ensure as far as possible that the next submission of technical material is substantially acceptable to both highway authorities
before it is submitted

I understand that you were to commence work straight away on a response to the highway authorities comments and that you expected to complete this work just before Christmas. The working meeting should
therefore take place within the next two weeks. (Please note | am on annual leave from 19" December until the new year)

In order to facilitate this meeting can | check out your availability (and that of- for Tuesday 13 December. We can host although our usual (large) meeting room will not be available. Since this is intended
to be a technical meeting | envisage it will involve a smaller group yourself - - and elther- or myself; if we need to bring others in from here we can do so as and when they are required. So a
meeting room seating 4 should suffice.

Please let me know what you think.

Regards
]
I
|
AECOM

Saxon House

27 Duke Street

Chelmsford Essex CM1 1HT UK
T 1245-771200

Built to deliver a better world

This email (including any attachments) is intended only for the recipient(s) named above It may contain confidential or privileged information and should not be read, copied or otherwise used by
any other person unless express permission is given If you are not a named recipient, please contact the sender and delete the email from your system It is the recipient's responsibility to ensure
that appropriate measures are in place to check for software viruses

This email may contain information which is confidential and is intended only for use of the recipient/s named above. If you are not an intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any copying,
distribution, disclosure, reliance upon or other use of the contents of this email is strictly prohibited. If you have received this email in error, please notify the sender and destroy it.

Highways England Company Limited | General enquiries: 0300 123 5000 |National Traffic Operations Centre, 3 Rid y, Quinton i Park, Birmingh B32 1AF |
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/highways-england | info@highwaysenglan uk

Registered in England and Wales no 9346363 | Registered Office: Bridge House, 1 Walnut Tree Close, Guildford, Surrey GU1 4L.Z

Consider the environment Please don't print this e-mail unless you really need to
















Your Ref:
Our Ref: L10_06414

. th

Date: 5" December 2016
- Room 436, 4™ Floor,
- Victoria House
_ Chelmsford, Essex,
CM1 1R
I
I
|
www.journeytp.co.uk

Dear I

Brook Green — Highways England A120 Improvements

Further to our recent discussions, this letter provides a summary, so far, of the ongoing traffic
assessment work being carried out in connection with the development proposals for Brook
Green and, specifically, details the relationship between the traffic impacts of the development
and the need for the proposed Highways England slip road works on the A120 toward Braintree
Freeport to the east of the site.

Following detailed additional traffic assessment work carried out in consultation with Highways
England and Essex County Council, the level of traffic generated by the Brook Green
development having an impact on the A120 has been determined and it has been agreed that
the traffic associated with a development of 1600 dwellings at Brook Green would have a
detrimental impact on the operation of the A120 and, specifically, the Galleys Corner
Roundabout at Braintree Freeport to the extent that significant mitigation would be required in
order to mitigate that impact.

Highways England have been working toward a significant highway improvement scheme
involving the provision of western slip roads on and off the B1018 and this has been assessed
as being appropriate to mitigate the impact of the additional development traffic.

It has been accepted that the development traffic will have also have a detrimental impact on the
local road network and, specifically, on Braintree Town Centre. It is recognised that
improvements to the A120 will have a significant beneficial effect as through traffic in Braintree
will be able to re-route back onto the A120. In view of the limited potential to provide
improvements given the on-site constraints at the town centre junctions, the A120 improvements
are considered essential to allow the Brook Green development to come forward and will also
allow the release of other strategic development sites in Braintree.

Further tests are now being undertaken to provide detail on the level of development that could
be released before funding for the works on the A120 is made available.

Journey Transport Planning Ltd Registered in England and Wales No. 8441593






PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT AT BROOK GREEN, BRAINTREE — SECTION 106

AGREEMENT

SUGGESTED WORDING RELATING TO OFF-SITE DEVELOPMENT CONTRIBUTIONS

TOWARDS FUNDING OF THE OFF-SITE HIGHWAY WORKS

CONTRIBUTIONS FROM OFF-SITE DEVELOPMENT

X.

If such is in line with relevant BDC and/or ECC policy prevailing from time to time and is
reasonable in all the circumstances BDC and/or ECC shall secure under an agreement or
undertaking made pursuant to Section 106 of the Act from the owners and/or developers of
the Off-Site Development Land the [payment of financial contributions towards the Off-Site
Highway Works] and BDC or ECC (as the case may be) shall pay such contributions to the
Owners within 28 (twenty eight) days of receipt (and BDC and ECC covenant that in the event
of default by the owners/developers of the Off-Site Development Land such agreement or
undertaking shall be enforced to secure compliance by the owners/developers of the Off-Site
Development Land) PROVIDED ALWAYS THAT such payments are payable by the owners
and/or developers of the Off-Site Development Land specifically to reimburse the Owners
towards the costs of the Off-Site Highway Works (as opposed to any further infrastructure
premises or land to be provided works to be undertaken or other contributions to be made as
a requirement of a grant of planning permission for the Off-Site Development Land)

22228679-1












To:

From: ]

Cc: e
Subject: 121216 1704 Brook Green - A120/ A131 (north) roundabout improvement - Geometric Checks 15 11 16
Date: 12 December 2016 17:04:14

Attachments: 001 CHECKED.PDFE

002 CHECKED.PDF
003 CHECKED.PDF

Please find attached the drawings produced during the course of our review of your previous
design. These are intended to support the comments made in our Technical Note 5 in respect of

both the layout’s compliance with design standards and the accuracy of the measurements
input into ARCADY.

Regards,

AECOM

Saxon House

27 Duke Street

Chelmsford, Essex CM1 1HT, UK
T +1245-771200

aecom.com

Built to deliver a better world

LinkedIn Twitter Facebook Instagram




To: k

Cc:

Subject: 141216 1959 Re: Highways England
Date: 14 December 2016 20:20:02
Gents,

Please find attached confirmation of my SoRSA membership for 2016/17.

Membership | CIHT <membership@ciht.org.uk>

Today 02.09.16 at 10:06
Dear [l

Thank you for contacting us.

I can confirm that you were elected a member of the Society of Road Safety Auditors (SORSA) 8
December 2008 and your membership is still current.

If you have any further queries, please do not hesitate to get in touch with us on 020 7336 1571 or
email membership@ciht.org.uk.

Kind regards

Kerry Francis

www.ciht.org.uk

| trust this is now in order.

Subject: Highways England
To:
Cc: "
Date: Wednesday, 14 December, 2016, 10:56

Hi il Highways England need to
confirm you as an accredited Safety Audit practitioner, if

iou could send your details through to [} at HE | Ch:-s

Journey Transport
Planning LtdRoom

4364th

FloorVictoria
HouseChelmsfordEssexCM1

1JRDirect line: +44

DISCLAIMER: This message is private and confidential. Any
sharing of this message or its contents is prohibited unless
approved by Journey Transport Planning Ltd. If you have
received this message in error, please notify the sender and



destroy the message and any attachments.This email is sent on behalf of Journey
Transport Planning Limited.Journey is registered in England & Wales
84415953.Journey reserve the right to monitor all

communications through its internal and external networks.

Whilst all effort is made to safe guard emails and

attachments through virus checking, we advise you to carry

out your own checks. Journey do not accept liability for any

loss or damage caused by software virus.Before you print, please think of the
environment.



From:
To:

—
ce: —

Subject: 291216 1045 Brook Green Highways Matters
Date: 29 December 2016 10:46:03
Attachments: image003.png

RO7 06414d.pdf

i
| hope you had a good Christmas.

Please see the attached report providing a response to the matters raised in Technical Note 5
and as discussed during our meetings.

If there are any matters or items requiring further clarification please feel free to call me so we
can discuss.

Best Regards and All the Best for the New Year.

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

Subject: 110117 1036 RE: Brook Green Highways Matters
Date: 11 January 2017 10:36:27

Attachments: image001.png

Hi [l
I've just rechecked....No the sensitivity tests don’t include the school or employment...
Cheers

Steve

From: Davis, Kelly [mailto:Kelly.Davis2 @aecom.com]
Sent: 11 January 2017 10:21

To I

|n
Q

Subject: RE: Brook Green Highways Matters

i

Thanks for your reply.

Do you mean that the sensitivity test includes the school and employment land uses in terms of their traffic
generation, but the school/employment uses are not proposed to be delivered in the first Phase of either
200/400 dwellings? From the masterplan it’s not clear how the 200/400 dwellings, school and employment
land uses could all be served via Rayne Road.

I will call you to discuss this later today.

Kind Regards

m
=
o
3

Sent: 11 January 2017 09:31

To: I

Subject: RE: Brook Green Highways Matters

i
Thanks for this.
1. Yes the sensitivity test includes employment and school so is v robust

2. 400 units can be accessed via Rayne Road.

| will forward re-annotated diagrams shortly.
Regards

rror:

Sent: 11 January 2017 09:24

|n-|
Q9

Subject: RE: Brook Green Highways Matters

Hi



Happy New Year and thanks for your email.
We have now agreed a task brief with Highways England to review the latest Flitch Way report. To assist us in
doing so please can you provide clarification on the following:
1. Does the sensitivity test for the development phases with 200 / 400 dwellings include any employment
land use?
2. Can 400 dwellings be accessed via Rayne Road only without the need for an access on Pod’s Brook
Road?
Please can | also request that the new traffic flow diagrams are re-labelled and re-issued with the correct date
and new figure numbers to avoid confusion (Appendices 11 and 12). At present there are several different
drawings with the same Figure number and date so it’s difficult to check them against each other. For
example there are three different ‘Figure 3’ diagrams each with the same date but each representing a
different scenario.
Kind Regards

-
I
o
3

Sent: 29 December 2016 10:45

Subject: Brook Green Highways Matters

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
Ce: I
Subject: 110117 0931 RE: Brook Green Highways Matters

Date: 11 January 2017 09:31:39

Attachments: image001.png

Hi Kelly

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

|h
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
Subject: 180117 1252 RE: Brook Green Highways Matters
Date: 18 January 2017 12:52:35

Attachments: image001.png

i
Please can you let me know when we can expect to receive the re-annotated diagrams? We have got to a
point with our review where we are waiting for these before we can proceed further.

Would you also be able to send us your ARCADY models of the Springwood Drive/Rayne Road and A120 North
roundabouts for the 200 dwelling sensitivity test.

We noticed that although there are traffic flow diagrams for the 400 dwelling scenario there are no ARCADY
results for this. Did you run the models with 400 dwellings as well? If so, please can you also send us these
models.

Thanks

erom: I
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

.,.,
I
o
3

Sent: 29 December 2016 10:45
To:

0
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

ce: - |
Subject: 240117 1631 Brook Green Amended Report

Date: 24 January 2017 16:32:36

Attachments: image003.png

R0O7 06414f.pdf

i
As discussed please see the attached amended report following on our various discussions
Ay issues please call me.

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

Subject: 250117 0845 RE: Brook Green Amended Report
Date: 25 January 2017 08:44:44

Attachments: image001.png

Thanks ] we'Il have a look through this and will get back to you if necessary.
Kind Regards

rrom: I
Sent: 24 January 2017 16:31

To: I

c.: I
Subject: Brook Green Amended Report

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



From: ——

To: I
Subject: 250117 0952 RE: Brook Green Amended Report
Date: 25 January 2017 09:51:49

Attachments: image002.png

Hi
The plans are also in the PDF report sent yesterday
Cheers

rror:

Sent: 25 January 2017 09:38

To: I

Subject: RE: Brook Green Amended Report
Please can you send me this as a pdf as | cant open .dwg files
Regards

Highways England | Woodlands | Manton Lane | Bedford | MK41 7LW

re!: I

Web: http://www.highways.gov.uk

ay

Highways England | Woodlands | Manton Lane | Bedford | MK41 7LW

re!.

Web: http://www.highways.gov.uk

a

Web: http://www.highways.gov.uk

Follow Highways England East on Twitter ¥

Keep up to date with our roads projects at Highways England East Road Projects

Get live traffic information at http://www.trafficengland.com or download our apps for free by going to the

iTunes store or Google Play store
Customer Contact Centre is available 24/7 on 0300 123 5000 or info@highwaysengland.co.uk

rrom: I

Sent: 25 January 2017 08:49

To: [
c: I

Subject: RE: Brook Green Amended Report

Thanks-

Please see the attached dwg for ease of reference for the proposed improvements.

Regards

I
rror:

Sent: 25 January 2017 08:45

To: I
c: I



Subject: RE: Brook Green Amended Report
Thanks- we’ll have a look through this and will get back to you if necessary.
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
Ce: —

Subject: 260117 1144 RE: Brook Green Amended Report
Date: 26 January 2017 11:43:58
Attachments: image001.png

i
To confirm our conversation this morning:

e As | understand it you are waiting for HE and ECC agreement of the modelling and proposed mitigation
measures before providing a conclusion to the report to suggest a way forward with regards to the
phasing of the development;

e Table 4.3 of the report shows the Existing Layout Springwood Drive ARCADY results. The results for
Pod’s Brook Road are slightly different to the previous iteration of the report in the 2033 total flow
scenario. You mentioned that this was probably down to a correction of the traffic flow inputs but
please can you clarify that this is the case; and

e The traffic flow diagrams for the 200 dwelling scenario will be re-labelled and re-issued (Figures 1, 2, 3,
4,11, 12, 14 and 17 are all labelled ‘PM Peak 2020 Total With Mitigated Development Flows 200
Units” and Figures 15, 18 and 19 are all labelled ‘PM Peak 2020 Development Flows 200 Units’).
Kind Regards

From:_

Sent: 25 January 2017 08:45

To: [

c.: I

Subject: RE: Brook Green Amended Report
Thanks [Jlj we'Il have a look through this and will get back to you if necessary.

Kind Regards

rrom: I

Sent: 24 January 2017 16:31

Subject: Brook Green Amended Report

Hilll
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

To: T

ce: T
Subject: 260117 1615 RE: Brook Green Amended Report

Date: 26 January 2017 16:15:56

Attachments: image001.png

image004.png
Net Flows 200.pdf

Hi [l
As discussed:

e Agreed | will await outcome of agreements prior to adopting conclusions, | suspect 200
units may be a bridge too far in queuing terms although | think to insist on the full
scheme at this phase may be a requirement out of proportion with respect to the level
of development being proposed

e The table is slightly different and there was a minor flow error correction but nothing else
(non-material)

e Flow diagrams sorted (attached)

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
Sent: 26 January 2017 11:44

To: I

- |
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
o:
Cc:

—

Subject: RE: Brook Green Amended Report
Thanks [Jj we'Il have a look through this and will get back to you if necessary.
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

Subject: 310117 1543 RE: Brook Green Amended Report
Date: 31 January 2017 15:43:02

Attachments: image001.png

image002.png

i
Could you possibly re-send the proposed A120 North Roundabout mitigation layout ARCADY
files please? We have checked Appendix 7 of the updated response (version R0O7_06414f) and it
looks as though the PM file included is for the existing layout.

Regards,

Industrial Placement, Transportation

AECOM

Saxon House, 27 Duke Street

Chelmsford, Essex, CM1 1HT, United Kingdom
T +44-1245-77-1200

aecom.com

Built to deliver a better world

LinkedIn Twitter Facebook Instagram

rror:

Sent: 26 January 2017 16:15

To: I

c
gject: RE: Brook Green Amended Report

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

.n-l
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
Thanks [Jfj we’Il have a look through this and will get back to you if necessary.
Kind Regards

m
=
=]
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

Subject: 210217 1106 Brook Green A120 Segregated Slip Road
Date: 21 February 2017 11:06:12

Attachments: image003.png

Dear Andrew,

Further to our recent meeting, | have now had the opportunity to review your comments on our
latest proposals and have discussed your comments with my clients.

We intend to continue with a segregated left turn lane and accept that it may be conditional on
a TRO to divert the footpath via the proposed footbridge over Pods Brook Road, (if we don’t
achieve a departure from standard).

The other matters highlighted, specifically the reverse curve on the lane and the entry path
curvature will be reviewed.

I will have a revised plan by the end of the week.

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

Ce: L
Subject: 220217 1451 RE: Flitch Way Braintree

Date: 22 February 2017 14:51:00

Attachments: image003.png

Thanks -

Understood.

Regards

rrom: I
Sent: 22 February 2017 14:45

To: I

c-.
]

Subject: RE: Flitch Way Braintree

It is for you to pursue which ever option you think you can get to work, the suggestion

of signal control is just that an alternative.

| have no preference as to which solution you pursue. Only that whatever you come up
with must be acceptable in terms of standard (with agreed departure if necessary
although agreeing that is a long and complicated process) and works in terms of capacity
and safety.

Regards

Highways England | Woodlands | Manton Lane | Bedford | MK41 7LW

re!.

Web: http://www.highways.gov.uk

o7 I

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

Sent: 22 February 2017 14:36

To: I

c.: I
Subject: RE: Flitch Way Braintree

For the sake of clarity, are you saying is that you do not believe a segregated lane is a workable
solution for accommodating the development impact due to the identified design issues and
that signal control of the A131 north arm and the A120 slip road with an additional lane for left
turning traffic would represent a your identified preferred solution? i.e you are very unlikely to



accept a segregated left turn lane approach.?
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

Sent: 22 February 2017 12:20

Subject: Flitch Way Braintree

I

Please find attached Aecom note 6 the content of which | agree with and | await your
response

Regards

Mark

Mark Norman

Highways England | Woodlands | Manton Lane | Bedford | MK41 7LW
Tel: +44 (0) 300 4704938

Web: http://www.highways.gov.uk

GTN: 0300 4704938

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
Subject: 230217 1114 Brook Green
Date: 23 February 2017 11:14:28
Attachments: image003.png

Hi

Further to [l email

It is fully understood that you wish to ensure that any proposed solutions are implementable
and achieve the required outcome in terms of capacity and design. We are cognisant that the
design process is iterative and lengthy by necessity however | am confident that a suitable and
implementable solution exists, with this in mind would Highway England be comfortable with a
Grampian style negative condition relating to the proposed mitigation to the effect that
Highways England have no objection to the proposals subject to the design of a deliverable
approved mitigation scheme ensuring that the proposed development does not have a severe
impact on the A120 trunk road.

| believe this accords with the approach allowed for in the context of the applicability of
planning conditions relating to off-site works.

In this way, even if permission was to be granted, the development could only be implemented
if a workable approved scheme was brought forward and implemented. This would therefore
protect your position and the safety and capacity of strategic road network.

I look forward to your thoughts.

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

cc:
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

Follow Highways England East on Twitter %

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
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Subject: Transport assessment response

ocor [ I

Please see the attached report responding to the various issues raised in Technical Note 6 and
our subsequent discussions.

If you have any queries, require further clarification or additional information, please feel free to
contact me. | will forward the CAD dwg separately.

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
Tree Close, Guildford, Surrey GU1 4LZ

Consider the environment. Please don't print this e-mail unless you really need to.










Subject: RE: Transport assessment response

Thank you for this
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

Sent: 29 March 2017 16:16

To: I

c.: I

Subject: Transport assessment response

ocor [

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

Subject: 120417 0848 RE: Transport Assessment additional information request
Date: 12 April 2017 08:48:31

Attachments: image001.png

image002.png
A120 North Model.lsg3x

Linsig Model Attached.

You will appreciate that the model is in development to an extent insofar as | wish to establish
the principle that it is feasible and an acceptable approach before | spend further time on it at
this stage and further tweaking in terms of design and parameters may be required.

Regards

I
rror:

Sent: 12 April 2017 08:38

To: I
o

Subject: Transport Assessment additional information request

Hi [

Further to yesterday’s request, would you also be able to provide us with the AM Peak ARCADY
results outputs for the A120 North Roundabout please? | have just started reviewing the results
and noticed that only the PM results have been included in Appendix 9 of your response.

Thanks,

rrom:

Sent: 11 April 2017 15:58

o: I

y——

Subject: Transport Assessment additional information request

Hi [l

We have now been instructed by ||| il] 2t Highways England to begin work reviewing

your transport assessment response. To assist us with our review, would you please be able to

provide us with the following information:

e Broomhills Industrial Estate Essex County Council confirmation: Thank you for providing the
methodological clarification requested in TNO6. Would you possibly be able to send us some
confirmation from ECC to show that they accept the methodology used; whether that be a
response from ECC to an email from yourself proposing the methodology, or alternatively
the correspondence you had from ECC suggesting the method.

¢ Proposed Mitigation Phasing: The timing of the implementation of the proposed signalisation
at the A120 / Pod’s Brook Rd / A131 (north) roundabout relative to the phasing of the
development is unclear from the document presented. At one point in the text, it suggests
that the signalisation will be in place prior to the occupation of the development; at
another, prior to completion of 200 dwellings. Could you please confirm specifically when
you propose that the mitigation is going to be provided.

¢ LinSig Model: Could you please send us the proposed A120 / Pod’s Brook Rd / A131 (north)
roundabout mitigation LinSig file so that we can thoroughly review the model and cover off
any potential issues at this early stage.

Kind regards,



’

Industrial Placement, Transportation

>
m
(o)
o
=<

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

oor [N

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

Subject: 120417 1252 RE: Brook Green ARCADY information request
Date: 12 April 2017 12:52:52

Attachments: image001.png

A120 North Roundabout Exisitng Layout HE Dist AM.pdf
A120 North Roundabout Exisitng Layout HE Dist PM.pdf
Pages 9-10.pdf

Please see the amended ARCADY output and text confirming commitment to fund works to the
slip road.
Regards

rrom: I

Sent: 12 April 2017 12:16

To: I

q—

Subject: Brook Green ARCADY information request

i

Thank you for providing the requested LinSig model and ARCADY results file. We have
conducted an initial review of the ARCADY files for the A120 North Roundabout and have the
following observations. Would these please be addressed in accordance with any proposals as to
when you would like to implement the signalised mitigation scheme.

In JTP’s ‘Response to Technical Note 3’, dated September 2016, the following geometries and
intercept adjustments were presented:

Effective Inscribed | Conflict
Approach Entry flare Entry circle (entry)
Arm road half- width radius X Y
. length diameter angle
width (m) (m) (m)
(m) (m) (deg)
PBR 3.65 7.00 15.0 45.0 65.0 28.0
A120 exit - - - - - -
A131 und. 7.50 7.50 0.0 20.0 65.0 20.0
A120 ent. 6.50 10.0 22.0 40.0 65.0 34.0

A120 Entry intercept adjustments: AM- 47%; PM- 70%

Based upon the above parameters, AECOM’s TNO4 Paragraph 5.11 states that ‘AECOM consider
the adjustment to the intercept values in the ARCADY models to be justified. AECOM
acknowledge that the 2015 existing layout models now better represent observed levels of
queuing’. As such, AECOM consider these parameters to be acceptable for use in Existing Layout
ARCADY assessments.

AECOM note that JTP’s ‘Response to Technical Note 6’, dated March 2017, the following

geometries and intercept adjustments have been applied:

Effective Inscribed | Conflict
Approach Entry flare Entry ircle (entry)
circ entr
Arm road half- width radius . E
i length diameter angle
width (m) (m) (m)
(m) (m) (deg)
PBR 3.65 7.00 18.0 37.5 64.0 28.0
A120 exit - - - - - -
A131 und. 7.30 8.20 7.1 17.6 64.0 42.0
A120 ent. 4.00 8.00 14.6 23.0 64.0 25.0

A120 Entry intercept adjustments:

AM-58%; PM-91%




7

It is unclear why the geometries and adjustments applied in JTP’s ‘Response to Technical Note 6
have deviated from those previously agreed by AECOM in TNO4. AECOM note that Para 4.2.8 of
AECOM’s TNOG6 identified a similar deviation of geometries and intercept adjustments from
those previously agreed, although the geometries were different to either of those presented in
this email. AECOM recommend that JTP clarify the rationale behind any changes and provide
the supporting evidence (for example if you have been able to obtain more detailed junction
plans than previously used).
In the absence of the above clarification, and in the interests of consistency, AECOM
recommend that JTP utilise the geometries and intercept adjustments presented in JTP’s
‘Response to Technical Note 3’ and agreed in AECOM’s TNO4. Use of these parameters for the
following scenarios for both AM and PM peak hours would be an appropriate way forward:

¢2020 Base

© 2020 Base with 200 dwellings (full impact)

© 2020 Base with 200 dwellings (accounting for Travel Plan implementation)

¢2022 Base

¢ 2022 Base with 400 dwellings (full impact)

© 2022 Base with 400 dwellings (accounting for Travel Plan implementation)
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

Subject: 120417 1403 RE: Brook Green ARCADY information request
Date: 12 April 2017 14:03:27

Attachments: image001.png

Thanks for the updated ARCADY files, | will get onto reviewing them soon and include any
comments in our note. The extra paragraph (5.22) adequately clarifies the proposed mitigation
timings.

Thank you again for your responses so far, | believe that you have covered them all except for
the one relating to Broombhills Industrial Estate (“‘Would you possibly be able to send us some
confirmation from ECC to show that they accept the methodology used; whether that be a
response from ECC to an email from yourself proposing the methodology, or alternatively the
correspondence you had from ECC suggesting the method.’). | don’t recall a response to this
guestion, how do you intend to address it?

Thanks,

rrom: I

Sent: 12 April 2017 12:52

To: I

_——

Subject: RE: Brook Green ARCADY information request

ﬁse see the amended ARCADY output and text confirming commitment to fund works to the
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
Arm road half- width radius X g
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






















































Generated on 12/04/2017 12:27 09 using Junctions 9 (9.0.1.4646)

Units
Distance units | Speed units | Traffic units input | Traffic units results | Flow units | Average delay units | Total delay units | Rate of delay units
m kph PCU PCU perHour s -Min perMin
Analysis Options
Vehicle Calculate Queue Calculate detailed Calculate residual Residual capacity RFC Average Delay Queue threshold
length (m) Percentiles queueing delay capacity criteria type Threshold threshold (s) (PCU)
5.75 v Delay 0.85 36.00 20.00

Demand Set Summary

D Scenario Ti Period D ioti Traffic profile Start time Finish time Time segment length Run
name ime Ferlod name escription type (HH mm) (HH mm) (min) automatically

D5 | 2020 AM Reassigned Base Reifj\:fs”ed ONE HOUR 07:45 09:15 15 v

p7 | 2022 AM Reassigned Base Reilsj\fsned ONE HOUR 07:45 09:15 15 v

ps | 2020 AM Reassugqed with 200 Reassigned ONE HOUR 07:45 09:15 15 v
Units Flows

Do | 2022 AM Reasmgr?ed with 400 Reassigned ONE HOUR 07:45 09:15 15 v
Units Flows

Analysis Set Details
ID Description Include in report [ Network flow scaling factor (%) | Network capacity scaling factor (%)
A1 | A120 North Roundabout v 100 000 100 000




Generated on 12/04/2017 12:27 09 using Junctions 9 (9.0.1.4646)

2020, AM Reassigned Base

Data Errors and Warnings
No errors or warnings

Junction Network

Junctions
Junction Name Junction Type Arm order | Junction Delay (s) [ Junction LOS
1 A120 North Existing Roundabout | Standard Roundabout 1,2,3,4 104.70 [F

Junction Network Options

Driving side Lighting Network residual capacity (%) | First arm reaching threshold
Left Normal/unknown -18 4 - A120 Entry

Arms

Arms

Arm Name Description
Pods Brook Road North
A120 Exit

A131 Underbridge
A120 Entry

AW |IN|=

Roundabout Geometry

Am V- Apprf)ach road E.- Entry I' - Effective flare R -.Entry D - Ir}scribed circle PHI - Conflict (entry) Exit
half-width (m) width (m) length (m) radius (m) diameter (m) angle (deg) only
1 - Pods Brook Road North 365 7.00 15.0 45.0 650 28.0
2 - A120 Exit v
3 - A131 Underbridge 750 7.50 0.0 20.0 650 34.0
4 - A120 Entry 6 50 10.00 22.0 40.0 650 34.0

Slope / Intercept / Capacity

Arm Intercept Adjustments

Arm Type Reason | Percentage intercept adjustment (%)
1 - Pods Brook Road North None
2 - A120 Exit
3 - A131 Underbridge None
4 - A120 Entry Percentage 47.00

Roundabout Slope and Intercept used in model

Arm Final slope | Final intercept (PCU/hr)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 0.547 1756
2 - A120 Exit
3 - A131 Underbridge 0.615 2241
4 - A120 Entry 0.697 1269

The slope and intercept shown above include any corrections and adjustments.
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Traffic Demand

Demand Set Details

Scenario . . e Traffic profile Start time Finish time Time segment length Run
ID Time Period name Description . A
name type (HH mm) (HH mm) (min) automatically
D5 | 2020 AM Reassigned Reassigned ONE HOUR 07:45 09:15 15 v
Base Flows

Vehicle mix varies over turn | Vehicle mix varies over entry | Vehicle mix source | PCU Factor for a HV (PCU)
v v HV Percentages 2.00

Demand overview (Traffic)

Arm Linked arm | Profile type | Use O-D data | Average Demand (PCU/hr) | Scaling Factor (%)
1 - Pods Brook Road North ONE HOUR v 840 100 000
2 - A120 Exit
3 - A131 Underbridge ONE HOUR v 1034 100 000
4 - A120 Entry ONE HOUR v 561 100 000

Origin-Destination Data
Demand (PCU/hr)

To
1 - Pods Brook Road North | 2 - A120 Exit | 3 - A131 Underbridge | 4 - A120 Entry
1 - Pods Brook Road North 5 149 686 0
From | 2 - A120 Exit Exit-only Exit-only Exit-only Exit-only
3 - A131 Underbridge 783 250 1 0
4 - A120 Entry 278 0 283 0
Vehicle Mix
Heavy Vehicle Percentages
To
1 - Pods Brook Road North | 2 - A120 Exit | 3 - A131 Underbridge | 4 - A120 Entry
1 - Pods Brook Road North 20 8 4 0
From | 2 - A120 Exit Exit-only Exit-only Exit-only Exit-only
3 - A131 Underbridge 5 8 0 5
4 - A120 Entry 6 0 12 0
Results
Results Summary for whole modelled period
Average Demand Total Junction
Am Max RFC Max delay (s) Max Queue (PCU) Max LOS (PCU/hr) Arrivals (PCU)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 0.63 6.86 1.7 A 771 1156
2 - A120 Exit
3 - A131 Underbridge 0.51 3.46 1.1 A 949 1423
4 - A120 Entry 1.31 437 81 78.6 F 515 772
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Main Results for each time segment

07:45 - 08:00
Total Junction | Circulating . Throughput Start End
Arm Demand Arrivals flow C:gs;:]:ty RFC Th::;:ﬂ:pm (exit side) queue queue | Delay(s)| LOS
(PCU/hr) |  (PCU) (Pcurhr) | 7) ( ) (Pcumr) | (pcuy | (pcu)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 632 158 399 1538 0.411 629 798 0.0 0.7 4.140 A
2 - A120 Exit 729 299
3 - A131 Underbridge 778 195 4 2239 0.348 776 725 0.0 0.6 2599 A
4 - A120 Entry 422 106 780 725 0.582 416 0 0.0 1.5 12.473
08:00 - 08:15
Total Junction | Circulating . Throughput Start End
Arm Demand Arrivals flow C:gs;:]:ty RFC Th;%‘:ﬂ:pm (exit side) queue queue | Delay(s)| LOS
(PCU/hr) |  (PCU) (Pcurhr) | 7) ( n (Pcumr) | (pcuy | (pcu)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 755 189 475 1496 0.505 754 953 0.7 1.1 5072 A
2 - A120 Exit 870 358
3 - A131 Underbridge 930 232 4 2238 0.415 929 866 0.6 0.7 2904 A
4 - A120 Entry 504 126 933 618 0.815 494 0 1.5 4.1 29 283
08:15 - 08:30
Total Junction | Circulating . Throughput Start End
Arm Demand Arrivals flow c:gla;:y RFC Th;%uli:put (exit side) queue queue | Delay (s) LOS
(PCU/hr) |  (PCU) (Pcuthr) | n ( r (Pcuhr) | (Pcuy | (Pcu)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 925 231 511 1476 0.627 922 1098 1.1 1.7 6.779 A
2 - A120 Exit 995 439
3 - A131 Underbridge 1138 285 5 2238 0.509 1137 990 0.7 1.1 3.453 A
4 - A120 Entry 618 154 1143 473 1.307 466 0 4.1 41.9 196.806
08:30 - 08:45
Total Junction | Circulating . Throughput Start End
Arm Demand Arrivals flow C:gs;irl‘ty RFC Th;%u&:put (exit side) queue queue | Delay (s) LOS
(Pcumn) | (Pcu) (PcUthr) | n ( r (Pcumr) | (pcuy | (Pcu)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 925 231 514 1474 0.627 925 1101 1.7 1.7 6.859 A
2 - A120 Exit 999 439
3 - A131 Underbridge 1138 285 6 2238 0.509 1138 994 1.1 1.1 3.461 A
4 - A120 Entry 618 154 1144 472 1.310 471 0 419 78.6 437.807
08:45 - 09:00
Total Junction | Circulating . Throughput Start End
Arm Demand Arrivals flow C:gs;::y RFC Th;%ul?l:put (exit side) queue queue | Delay (s) LOS
(Pcumn) | (Pcu) (PcUthr) | n ( n (Pcuhr) | (pcu) | (Pcu)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 755 189 533 1464 0.516 758 1011 1.7 1.1 5.359 A
2 - A120 Exit 931 359
3 - A131 Underbridge 930 232 5 2238 0.415 931 927 1.1 0.8 2.913 A
4 - A120 Entry 504 126 935 617 0.817 609 0 78 6 52.5 380.461
09:00 - 09:15
Total Junction Circulating . Throughput Start End
Arm Demand Arrivals flow C:gs;:l:ty RFC Th;(::ul?/f;put (exit side) queue queue | Delay (s) LOS
(PCU/Mr) |  (PCU) (Pcurhr | r) ( r (Pcumr) | (pcu) | (pcu)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 632 158 505 1479 0.427 634 904 1.1 0.8 4.468 A
2 - A120 Exit 838 301
3 - A131 Underbridge 778 195 4 2239 0.348 779 834 0.8 0.6 2.608 A
4 - A120 Entry 422 106 783 723 0.584 626 0 525 1.7 103.254
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2022, AM Reassigned Base

Data Errors and Warnings
No errors or warnings

Junction Network

Junctions
Junction Name Junction Type Arm order | Junction Delay (s) [ Junction LOS
1 A120 North Existing Roundabout | Standard Roundabout 1,2,3,4 129.11 [F

Junction Network Options

Driving side
Left

Lighting Network residual capacity (%)

-20

First arm reaching threshold
4 - A120 Entry

Normal/unknown

Traffic Demand

Demand Set Details

D Scenario Ti Period D ioti Traffic profile Start time Finish time Time segment length Run
name ime Ferlod name escription type (HH mm) (HH mm) (min) automatically
D7 | 2022 AM Reassigned Reassigned ONE HOUR 07:45 09:15 15 v
Base Flows

Vehicle mix varies over turn

Vehicle mix varies over entry

Vehicle mix source

PCU Factor for a HV (PCU)

v v HV Percentages 2.00
Demand overview (Traffic)
Arm Linked arm | Profile type [ Use O-D data [ Average Demand (PCU/hr) | Scaling Factor (%)
1 - Pods Brook Road North ONE HOUR v 859 100 000
2 - A120 Exit
3 - A131 Underbridge ONE HOUR v 1061 100 000
4 - A120 Entry ONE HOUR v 574 100 000
Origin-Destination Data
Demand (PCU/hr)
To
1 - Pods Brook Road North | 2 - A120 Exit | 3 - A131 Underbridge | 4 - A120 Entry
1 - Pods Brook Road North 5 152 702 0
From | 2 - A120 Exit Exit-only Exit-only Exit-only Exit-only
3 - A131 Underbridge 803 257 1 0
4 - A120 Entry 284 0 290 0
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
Am Max RFC Max delay (s) | Max Queue (PCU) Max LOS A"eiapfu?ﬁ:‘)‘a“d L‘::f\:a‘::’(‘;gﬂ')‘
1 - Pods Brook Road North 0.64 7.11 1.8 A 788 1182
2 - A120 Exit
3 - A131 Underbridge 0.52 3.56 1.2 A 974 1460
4 - A120 Entry 1.40 543.74 96.5 F 527 790
Main Results for each time segment
07:45 - 08:00
A Total Jun_ction Circulating Capacity Throughput Thro_ug_hput Start End
m Demand Arrivals flow RFC (exit side) queue queue | Delay(s)| LOS
(PCU/hR) |  (PCU) (PCU/hr) | (PCU/AN) (PCU/h) (PCU/r) | (Pcu) | (Pcu)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 647 162 409 1532 0.422 644 817 0.0 0.8 4 231 A
2 - A120 Exit 746 307
3 - A131 Underbridge 799 200 4 2239 0.357 796 742 0.0 0.6 2634 A
4 - A120 Entry 432 108 800 711 0.608 426 0 0.0 1.6 13.446
08:00 - 08:15
A Total Jun_ction Circulating Capacity Throughput Thrqug_hput Start End
m Demand Arrivals flow RFC (exit side) queue queue | Delay(s)| LOS
(PCU/hR) |  (PCU) (PCU/hr) | (PCU/AN) (ReU/hn) (PCU/r) | (Pcu) | (Pcu)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 772 193 485 1490 0.518 771 974 0.8 1.1 5232 A
2 - A120 Exit 889 367
3 - A131 Underbridge 954 238 4 2238 0.426 953 884 0.6 0.8 2 959 A
4 - A120 Entry 516 129 958 602 0.858 502 0 1.6 5.1 35 312
08:15 - 08:30
A Total Junf::tion Circulating Capacity Throughput Thro_ug_hput Start End
m Demand Arrivals flow RFC (exit side) queue queue | Delay (s) LOS
(PCU/hr) |  (PCU) (PCU/nr) | (PCU/MD (Bclihn) (Pcumr) | (Pcu) | (Pcu)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 946 236 510 1477 0.641 943 1110 1.1 1.8 7.029 A
2 - A120 Exit 1003 449
3 - A131 Underbridge 1168 292 5 2238 0.522 1167 998 0.8 1.1 3.549 A
4 - A120 Entry 632 158 1172 452 1.399 448 0 5.1 51.1 245.057
08:30 - 08:45
A Total Jun_ction Circulating Capacity Throughput Thro_ug_hput Start End
m Demand Arrivals flow RFC (exit side) queue queue | Delay (s) LOS
(PCU/hr) |  (PCU) (PCU/nr) | (PCU/MD (Bcbibn) (Pcumr) | (pcuy | (Pcu)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 946 236 512 1476 0.641 946 1113 1.8 1.8 7.113 A
2 - A120 Exit 1007 450
3 - A131 Underbridge 1168 292 6 2238 0.522 1168 1002 1.1 1.2 3.5657 A
4 - A120 Entry 632 158 1174 451 1.402 451 0 51.1 96.5 543.745
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08:45 - 09:00
Total Junction | Circulating c it Th hout Throughput Start End
Arm Demand Arrivals flow :gﬁf;ﬂy RFC II;OCUUgIhpu (exit side) queue queue | Delay (s) LOS
(PCU/hR) |  (PCU) (Pcurmr) | ) ( ) (Pcuihr) | (Pcu) | (pcu)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 772 193 532 1465 0.527 775 1021 1.8 1.2 5.489 A
2 - A120 Exit 938 369
3 - A131 Underbridge 954 238 B 2238 0.426 955 934 1.2 0.8 2.968 A
4 - A120 Entry 516 129 960 600 0.860 593 0 96 5 77.2 506.626
09:00 - 09:15
Total Junction | Circulating c it Th hout Throughput Start End
Arm Demand Arrivals flow :gs;:r'] Y RFC ;ocuuglhpu (exit side) queue queue | Delay (s) LOS
(PCUM) | (PCU) (Pcuhr | ¢ " ( r (Pcumr) | (Pcu) | (pcu)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 647 162 548 1456 0.444 648 955 1.2 0.8 4.677 A
2 - A120 Exit 887 308
3 - A131 Underbridge 799 200 4 2239 0.357 800 884 0.8 0.6 2.645 A
4 - A120 Entry 432 108 803 709 0.609 699 0 772 10.4 232.331
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2020, AM Reassigned with 200 Units

Data Errors and Warnings
No errors or warnings

Junction Network

Junctions
Junction Name Junction Type Arm order | Junction Delay (s) [ Junction LOS
1 A120 North Existing Roundabout | Standard Roundabout 1,2,3,4 117.76 [F

Junction Network Options

Driving side Lighting Network residual capacity (%) | First arm reaching threshold
Left Normal/unknown -19 4 - A120 Entry

Traffic Demand

Demand Set Details

D Scenario Ti Period D ioti Traffic profile Start time Finish time Time segment length Run
name ime Ferlod name escription type (HH mm) (HH mm) (min) automatically
s | 2020 AM Reasmgr?ed with 200 Reassigned ONE HOUR 07:45 09:15 15 v
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
1 - Pods Brook Road North ONE HOUR v 907 100 000
2 - A120 Exit
3 - A131 Underbridge ONE HOUR v 1050 100 000
4 - A120 Entry ONE HOUR v 570 100 000

Origin-Destination Data
Demand (PCU/hr)

To
1 - Pods Brook Road North | 2 - A120 Exit | 3 - A131 Underbridge | 4 - A120 Entry
1 - Pods Brook Road North 5 166 736 0
From | 2 - A120 Exit Exit-only Exit-only Exit-only Exit-only
3 - A131 Underbridge 799 250 1 0
4 - A120 Entry 287 0 283 0
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
1 - Pods Brook Road North 0.67 7.83 2.1 A 832 1248
2 - A120 Exit
3 - A131 Underbridge 0.52 3.52 1.1 A 963 1445
4 - A120 Entry 1.37 503.15 89.9 523 785
Main Results for each time segment
07:45 - 08:00
A Total Jun_ction Circulating Capacity Throughput Thro_ug_hput Start End
m Demand Arrivals flow RFC (exit side) queue queue | Delay(s)| LOS
(PCU/hR) |  (PCU) (PCU/r) | (PCU/AN) (PCU/h) (PCU/r) | (Pcu) | (Pcu)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 683 171 398 1538 0.444 680 816 0.0 0.8 4 379 A
2 - A120 Exit 766 312
3 - A131 Underbridge 790 198 4 2239 0.353 788 762 0.0 0.6 2618 A
4 - A120 Entry 429 107 792 77 0.598 423 0 0.0 1.6 13 067
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
1 - Pods Brook Road North 815 204 474 1497 0.545 814 974 0.8 1.2 5511 A
2 - A120 Exit 914 373
3 - A131 Underbridge 944 236 4 2238 0.422 943 909 0.6 0.8 2 936 A
4 - A120 Entry 512 128 948 608 0.842 500 0 1.6 4.7 32872
08:15 - 08:30
A Total Junf::tion Circulating Capacity Throughput Thro_ug_hput Start End
m Demand Arrivals flow RFC (exit side) queue queue | Delay (s) LOS
(PCU/hr) |  (PCU) (PCU/mr) | (PCU/MD (Bclihn) (Pcumr) | (Pcu) | (Pcu)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 999 250 502 1481 0.674 995 1114 1.2 21 7.709 A
2 - A120 Exit 1040 457
3 - A131 Underbridge 1156 289 5 2238 0.517 1155 1035 0.8 1.1 3.509 A
4 - A120 Entry 628 157 1160 460 1.363 456 0 4.7 47.7 226.030
08:30 - 08:45
A Total Jun_ction Circulating Capacity Throughput Thro_ug_hput Start End
m Demand Arrivals flow RFC (exit side) queue queue | Delay (s) LOS
(PCU/hr) |  (PCU) (PCU/mr) | (PCU/MD (Bclibn) (Pcumr) | (Pcu) | (Pcu)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 999 250 504 1480 0.675 999 1116 2.1 21 7.833 A
2 - A120 Exit 1045 458
3 - A131 Underbridge 1156 289 6 2238 0.517 1156 1039 1.1 1.1 3.517 A
4 - A120 Entry 628 157 1162 459 1.366 459 0 47.7 89.9 503.149
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08:45 - 09:00
Total Junction | Circulating c it Th hout Throughput Start End
Arm Demand Arrivals flow :gﬁf;} Yy RFC II;OCUUgIhpu (exit side) queue queue | Delay (s) LOS
(PCU/hR) |  (PCU) (Pcurmr) | r) ( ) (Pcuihr) | (pcu) | (pcu)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 815 204 524 1469 0.555 819 1026 2.1 1.3 5.830 A
2 - A120 Exit 967 375
3 - A131 Underbridge 944 236 ) 2238 0.422 945 963 1.1 0.8 2.945 A
4 - A120 Entry 512 128 950 607 0.844 600 0 899 68.1 459.147
09:00 - 09:15
Total Junction | Circulating c it Th hout Throughput Start End
Arm Demand Arrivals flow :gs;:r'] Yy RFC ;ocuuglhpu (exit side) queue queue | Delay (s) LOS
(PCU/hr) |  (PCU) (PcUrhr) | 7) ( n (Pcumr) | (Pcu) | (Pcu)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 683 171 533 1464 0.466 684 955 1.3 0.9 4.850 A
2 - A120 Exit 904 314
3 - A131 Underbridge 790 198 4 2239 0.353 791 900 0.8 0.6 2.631 A
429 107 795 715 0.600 693 0 68.1 2.2 181.884

4 - A120 Entry

11
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2022, AM Reassigned with 400 Units

Data Errors and Warnings
No errors or warnings

Junction Network

Junctions
Junction Name Junction Type Arm order | Junction Delay (s) [ Junction LOS
1 A120 North Existing Roundabout | Standard Roundabout 1,2,3,4 158.71 [F

Junction Network Options

Driving side Lighting Network residual capacity (%) | First arm reaching threshold
Left Normal/unknown -23 4 - A120 Entry

Traffic Demand

Demand Set Details

D Scenario Ti Period D ioti Traffic profile Start time Finish time Time segment length Run
name ime Ferlod name escription type (HH mm) (HH mm) (min) automatically
o | 2022 AM Reasmgr?ed with 400 Reassigned ONE HOUR 07:45 09:15 15 v
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
1 - Pods Brook Road North ONE HOUR v 992 100 000
2 - A120 Exit
3 - A131 Underbridge ONE HOUR v 1092 100 000
4 - A120 Entry ONE HOUR v 594 100 000

Origin-Destination Data
Demand (PCU/hr)

To
1 - Pods Brook Road North | 2 - A120 Exit | 3 - A131 Underbridge | 4 - A120 Entry
1 - Pods Brook Road North 5 186 801 0
From | 2 - A120 Exit Exit-only Exit-only Exit-only Exit-only
3 - A131 Underbridge 834 257 1 0
4 - A120 Entry 304 0 290 0
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

12
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Results
Results Summary for whole modelled period
Am Max RFC Max delay (s) | Max Queue (PCU) Max LOS A"eiapfu?ﬁ:‘)‘a“d L‘::f\:a‘::’(‘;gﬂ')‘
1 - Pods Brook Road North 0.73 9.56 2.8 A 910 1365
2 - A120 Exit
3 - A131 Underbridge 0.54 3.67 1.2 A 1002 1503
4 - A120 Entry 1.53 692 80 121.0 545 818
Main Results for each time segment
07:45 - 08:00
A Total Jun_ction Circulating Capacity Throughput Thro_ug_hput Start End
m Demand Arrivals flow RFC (exit side) queue queue | Delay(s)| LOS
(PCU/hR) |  (PCU) (PCU/hr) | (PCU/AN) (PCU/hr) (PCU/hr) | (Pcu) | (Pcu)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 747 187 408 1532 0.487 743 855 0.0 1.0 4.755 A
2 - A120 Exit 819 332
3 - A131 Underbridge 822 206 4 2239 0.367 820 815 0.0 0.6 2676 A
4 - A120 Entry 447 112 823 695 0.643 440 0 0.0 1.9 14 941
08:00 - 08:15
A Total Jun_ction Circulating Capacity Throughput Thrqug_hput Start End
m Demand Arrivals flow RFC (exit side) queue queue | Delay(s)| LOS
(PCU/hR) |  (PCU) (PCU/hr) | (PCU/AN) (ReU/hn) (PCU/hr) | (Pcu) | (Pcu)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 892 223 482 1492 0.598 890 1016 1.0 1.5 6 240 A
2 - A120 Exit 974 398
3 - A131 Underbridge 982 245 4 2238 0.439 981 969 0.6 0.8 3024 A
4 - A120 Entry 534 133 985 582 0.917 512 0 1.9 7.3 46 376
08:15 - 08:30
A Total Junf::tion Circulating Capacity Throughput Thro_ug_hput Start End
m Demand Arrivals flow RFC (exit side) queue queue | Delay (s) LOS
(PCU/hr) |  (PCU) (PCU/r) | (PCU/MD (Bcihn) (Pcumr) | (Pcu) | (Pcu)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 1092 273 492 1487 0.735 1087 1141 1.5 2.8 9.325 A
2 - A120 Exit 1092 486
3 - A131 Underbridge 1202 301 5 2238 0.537 1201 1087 0.8 1.2 3.665 A
4 - A120 Entry 654 164 1206 428 1.527 426 0 7.3 64.2 320.634
08:30 - 08:45
A Total Jun_ction Circulating Capacity Throughput Thro_ug_hput Start End
m Demand Arrivals flow RFC (exit side) queue queue | Delay (s) LOS
(PCU/hr) |  (PCU) (PCU/nr) | (PCU/MD (W) (Pcumr) | (Pcu) | (Pcu)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 1092 273 492 1486 0.735 1092 1142 2.8 2.8 9.556 A
2 - A120 Exit 1097 488
3 - A131 Underbridge 1202 301 6 2238 0.537 1202 1091 1.2 1.2 3.674 A
4 - A120 Entry 654 164 1208 427 1.531 427 0 64 2 121.0 692.797
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08:45 - 09:00
Total Junction | Circulating . Throughput Start End
" e R e R e R e
1 - Pods Brook Road North 892 223 513 1475 0.605 897 1050 2.8 1.6 6.577 A
2 - A120 Exit 1010 400
3 - A131 Underbridge 982 245 5 2238 0.439 983 1006 1.2 0.8 3.037 A
4 - A120 Entry 534 133 988 580 0.920 575 0 121.0 110.7 679.050
09:00 - 09:15
Total Junction | Circulating . Throughput Start End
" e | ey | emn | G0 | 7 | Tpdnn | Gutsuy | mes | e || o0
1 - Pods Brook Road North 747 187 529 1466 0.509 749 983 1.6 1.1 5.278 A
2 - A120 Exit 944 334
3 - A131 Underbridge 822 206 4 2239 0.367 823 940 0.8 0.6 2.690 A
4 - A120 Entry 447 112 827 693 0.646 686 0 110.7 51.0 427.307
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

D Scenario Ti Period Traffic profile Start time Finish time Time segment length Run
name ime Ferlod name type (HH mm) (HH mm) (min) automatically

D6 | 2020 PM Reassigned Base ONE HOUR 16:45 18:15 15 v

D8 | 2022 PM Reassigned Base ONE HOUR 16:45 18:15 15 v

D9 | 2020 PM Reassﬁ’:fsd with 200 ONE HOUR 16:45 18:15 15 v

D10 | 2022 PM Reassﬁ?ﬁ: with 400 ONE HOUR 16:45 18:15 15 v

Analysis Set Details

ID Description Include in report | Network flow scaling factor (%) | Network capacity scaling factor (%)
A1 | A120 North Roundabout v 100 000 100 000
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2020, PM Reassigned Base

Data Errors and Warnings
No errors or warnings

Junction Network

Junctions
Junction Name Junction Type Arm order | Junction Delay (s) [ Junction LOS
1 A120 North Existing Roundabout | Standard Roundabout 1,2,3,4 40.61 =

Junction Network Options

Driving side Lighting Network residual capacity (%) | First arm reaching threshold
Left Normal/unknown -5 4 - A120 Entry

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
3 - A131 Underbridge 750 7.50 0.0 20.0 650 20.0
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
4 - A120 Entry Percentage 70.00

Roundabout Slope and Intercept used in model

Arm Final slope | Final intercept (PCU/hr)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 0.547 1756
2 - A120 Exit
3 - A131 Underbridge 0.646 2351
4 - A120 Entry 0.697 1890

The slope and intercept shown above include any corrections and adjustments.
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Traffic Demand

Demand Set Details

ID | Scenario name | Time Period name | Traffic profile type | Start time (HH mm) | Finish time (HH mm) [ Time segment length (min) | Run automatically
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
Armm Linked arm | Profile type [ Use O-D data [ Average Demand (PCU/hr) | Scaling Factor (%)
1 - Pods Brook Road North ONE HOUR v 899 100 000
2 - A120 Exit
3 - A131 Underbridge ONE HOUR v 686 100 000
4 - A120 Entry ONE HOUR v 1235 100 000
Origin-Destination Data
Demand (PCU/hr)
To
1 - Pods Brook Road North | 2-A120 Exit | 3 - A131 Underbridge | 4 - A120 Entry
1 - Pods Brook Road North 1 197 701 0
From | 2 - A120 Exit Exit-only Exit-only Exit-only Exit-only
3 - A131 Underbridge 447 237 2 0
4 - A120 Entry 344 0 891 0
Vehicle Mix
Heavy Vehicle Percentages
To
1 - Pods Brook Road North | 2 - A120 Exit | 3 - A131 Underbridge | 4 - A120 Entry
1 - Pods Brook Road North 0 3 2 0
From | 2 - A120 Exit Exit-only Exit-only Exit-only Exit-only
3 - A131 Underbridge 2 2 50 0
4 - A120 Entry 4 0 2 0
Results
Results Summary for whole modelled period
Average Demand Total Junction
Am Max RFC Max delay (s) Max Queue (PCU) Max LOS (PCU/hr) Arrivals (PCU)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 0.91 33.23 8.6 825 1237
2 - A120 Exit
3 - A131 Underbridge 0.32 2.30 0.5 A 629 944
4 - A120 Entry 1.00 67.26 25.3 1133 1700
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Main Results for each time segment

16:45 - 17:00
o pemand | Arvals | fiow | Capacity | gec | Throushput | TGRS | U | qiaue | Delav | Los
(PCU/hR) |  (PCU) (pcurhn | r) ( ) (PCU/hr) | (PcU) | (Pcu) (s)
1-Pods Brook Road North | 677 169 846 1293 0.524 672 504 0.0 1.1 5.891 A
2 - A120 Exit 1193 325
3 - A131 Underbridge 516 129 0.75 2351 0.220 515 1192 0.0 0.3 2.001 A
4 - A120 Entry 930 232 516 1531 0.607 924 0 0.0 1.6 6.022 A
17:00 - 17:15
Total Junction | Circulating c it Th hout Throughput Start End
Arm Demand Arrivals flow :gs;’ll Yy RFC ;%l:ﬁhpu (exit side) queue queue | Delay(s)| LOS
(PCU/hr) |  (PCU) (Pcurhr) | 7) ( n (Pcumr) | (pcuy | (pcu)
1-Pods Brook Road North | 808 202 1011 1202 0.672 804 710 1.1 2.0 9.167 A
2 - A120 Exit 1426 389
3 - A131 Underbridge 617 154 0.89 2351 0.262 616 1426 0.3 0.4 2.119 A
4 - A120 Entry 1110 278 617 1460 0.760 1104 0 1.6 31 10.196
17:15-17:30
Total Junction Circulating c it Th hout Throughput Start End
Armm Demand Arrivals flow :&ajf;‘ Y RFC ;%l:ﬁhpu (exit side) queue queue | Delay(s)| LOS
(Pcumr) | (Pcu) (Pcurhr) | ¢ ) ( r (Pcuhr) | (Pcu) | (pcu)
1- Pods Brook Road North | 990 247 1201 1098 0.901 969 855 2.0 7.2 25 244
2 - A120 Exit 1697 473
3 - A131 Underbridge 755 189 1 2351 0.321 755 1696 0.4 0.5 2303 A
4 - A120 Entry 1360 340 756 1363 0.997 1300 0 31 181 | 40.132
17:30 - 17:45
Total Junction Circulating c it Th hout Throughput Start End
Arm Demand Arrivals flow :gs;:tll Yy RFC ;%l:ﬁhpu (exit side) queue queue | Delay(s)| LOS
(Pcumn) | (Pcu) (PcUthr) | n ( r (Pcuhr) | (Pcu) | (pcu)
1 - Pods Brook Road North | 990 247 1223 1086 0.911 984 864 7.2 8.6 33226
2 - A120 Exit 1731 477
3 - A131 Underbridge 755 189 1 2351 0.321 755 1730 05 0.5 2303 A
4 - A120 Entry 1360 340 756 1363 0.998 1331 0 18.1 253 | 67264
17:45 - 18:00
Total Junction | Circulating c it Th hrou Throughput Start End
Arm Demand Arrivals flow :gﬁ;:l: Y RFC F:%lijg;hpu (exit side) queue queue | Delay (s) LOS
(Pcumn) | (Pcu) (PcUthr) | n ( r (PCumr) | (Pcu) | (pcu)
1-Pods Brook Road North | 808 202 1079 1165 0.694 833 737 8.6 2.4 11835 B
2 - A120 Exit 1516 396
3 - A131 Underbridge 617 154 0.93 2351 0.262 617 1515 05 0.4 2.120 A
4 - A120 Entry 1110 278 618 1459 0.761 1198 0 25.3 35 18 592
18:00 - 18:15
- S e ) Py e S I T )
(PCU/hR) |  (PCU) (pcuihny | ") ( r) (PCUhr) | (Pcu) | (Pcu) (s)
1-Pods Brook Road North | 677 169 856 1287 0.526 682 599 2.4 1.1 6.127 A
2 - A120 Exit 1210 328
3 - A131 Underbridge 516 129 0.76 2351 0.220 517 1209 0.4 0.3 2.003 A
4 - A120 Entry 930 232 518 1529 0.608 937 0 35 1.6 6.309 A
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2022, PM Reassigned Base

Data Errors and Warnings
No errors or warnings

Junction Network

Junctions
Junction Name Junction Type Arm order | Junction Delay (s) [ Junction LOS
1 A120 North Existing Roundabout | Standard Roundabout 1,2,3,4 56.99 [F

Junction Network Options

Driving side
Left

Lighting Network residual capacity (%)

-7

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
1 - Pods Brook Road North ONE HOUR v 921 100 000
2 - A120 Exit
3 - A131 Underbridge ONE HOUR v 703 100 000
4 - A120 Entry ONE HOUR v 1268 100 000
Origin-Destination Data
Demand (PCU/hr)
To
1 - Pods Brook Road North | 2 - A120 Exit | 3 - A131 Underbridge | 4 - A120 Entry
1 - Pods Brook Road North 1 202 718 0
From | 2 - A120 Exit Exit-only Exit-only Exit-only Exit-only
3 - A131 Underbridge 458 243 2 0
4 - A120 Entry 353 0 915 0
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
Arm Max RFC Max delay (s) Max Queue (PCU) Max LOS (PgCUIhr) Arrivals (PCU)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 0.94 42.06 1.1 E 845 1268
2 - A120 Exit
3 - A131 Underbridge 0.33 2.33 0.5 A 645 968
4 - A120 Entry 1.03 98.15 40.5 F 1164 1745

Main Results for each time segment

16:45 - 17:00
Am Dl.-::aarlm J:r':icvt::sn Ciriluclvavﬁng Capacity | ppc | Throughput T(r::: SEZ‘;t qsut:lrxte qEZﬁe Delay | ) og
(PCU/hR) |  (PCU) (pcushr) | (PCU/AN) (ReUlhD) (PCU/hr) | (Pcu) | (Pcu) (s)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 693 173 868 1281 0.541 689 609 0.0 1.2 6.167 A
2 - A120 Exit 1223 334
3 - A131 Underbridge 529 132 0.75 2351 0.225 528 1222 0.0 0.3 2.015
4 - A120 Entry 955 239 529 1522 0.627 948 0 0.0 1.7 6.362 A
17:00 - 17:15
A Total Jun_ction Circulating Capacity Throughput Thro_ug_hput Start End
m Demand Arrivals flow RFC (exit side) queue queue | Delay (s) LOS
(PCU/hR) |  (PCU) (PCU/hr) | (PCU/AN) (PCU/h) (PCU/hr) | (Pcu) | (Pcu)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 828 207 1037 1188 0.697 824 728 1.2 2.3 9981 A
2 - A120 Exit 1462 399
3 - A131 Underbridge 632 158 0.89 2351 0.269 632 1461 0.3 0.4 2.137 A
4 - A120 Entry 1140 285 633 1449 0.787 1132 0 1.7 3.6 11 384
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
1 - Pods Brook Road North 1014 254 1214 1091 0.929 987 869 2.3 8.9 29 831
2 - A120 Exit 1717 484
3 - A131 Underbridge 774 194 1 2351 0.329 774 1716 0.4 0.5 2330 A
4 - A120 Entry 1396 349 775 1350 1.034 1308 0 3.6 2585 51.453
17:30 - 17:45
A Total Junf::tion Circulating Capacity Throughput Thrqug_hput Start End
m Demand Arrivals flow RFC (exit side) queue queue | Delay(s)| LOS
(PCU/hr) |  (PCU) (PCU/nr) | (PCU/MD (Bclihn) (Pcumr) | (pcuy | (pcu)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 1014 254 1234 1080 0.939 1005 877 8.9 111 42 057 E
2 - A120 Exit 1751 488
3 - A131 Underbridge 774 194 1 2351 0.329 774 1750 0.5 0.5 2330 A
4 - A120 Entry 1396 349 775 1350 1.034 1336 0 PHES 40.5 98.152
17:45 - 18:00
A Total Jun_cticn Circulating Capacity Throughput Thrqug_hput Start End
m Demand Arrivals flow RFC (exit side) queue queue | Delay(s)| LOS
(PCU/hr) |  (PCU) (PCU/nr) | (PCU/MD (Bcibn) (Pcumr) | (pcuy | (pcu)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 828 207 1148 1127 0.734 861 771 11.1 3.0 15293
2 - A120 Exit 1601 407
3 - A131 Underbridge 632 158 0.93 2351 0.269 632 1600 0.5 0.4 2.140 A
4 - A120 Entry 1140 285 633 1449 0.787 1285 0 40.5 4.2 37.716
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18:00 - 18:15
Am Demand | Amvan | < iow S | Capacity | pee | Throughput | TRSHSURNE ] ST ) EAS | Detay | | og
(PCU/NR) |  (PCU) (pcushr) | (PCU/AN) (PCU/h) (PCUhr) | (Pcu) | (Pcu) (s)
1-Pods Brook Road North| 693 173 880 1274 0.544 700 614 3.0 12 6.490 A
2 - A120 Exit 1244 337
3 - A131 Underbridge 529 132 0.76 2351 0.225 530 1243 0.4 0.3 2.019 A
4 - A120 Entry 955 239 530 1521 0.628 964 0 42 18 6.745 A
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2020, PM Reassigned with 200 Units

Data Errors and Warnings
No errors or warnings

Junction Network

Junctions
Junction Name Junction Type Arm order | Junction Delay (s) [ Junction LOS
1 A120 North Existing Roundabout | Standard Roundabout 1,2,3,4 57.66 [F

Junction Network Options

Driving side Lighting

Network residual capacity (%)

First arm reaching threshold

Left Normal/unknown

-7

4 - A120 Entry

Traffic Demand

Demand Set Details

Scenario . . Traffic profile Start time Finish time Time segment length .
ID . Time Period name type (HH mm) (HH mm) (min) Run automatically
D9 | 2020 PM Reassﬁ;gd with 200 ONE HOUR 16:45 18:15 15 v
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
1 - Pods Brook Road North ONE HOUR v 933 100 000
2 - A120 Exit
3 - A131 Underbridge ONE HOUR v 724 100 000
4 - A120 Entry ONE HOUR v 1258 100 000
Origin-Destination Data
Demand (PCU/hr)
To
1 - Pods Brook Road North | 2 - A120 Exit | 3 - A131 Underbridge | 4 - A120 Entry
1 - Pods Brook Road North 1 206 726 0
From | 2 - A120 Exit Exit-only Exit-only Exit-only Exit-only
3 - A131 Underbridge 485 237 2 0
4 - A120 Entry 367 0 891 0
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
1 - Pods Brook Road North 0.93 40.00 10.7 E 856 1284
2 - A120 Exit
3 - A131 Underbridge 0.34 2.36 0.5 A 664 997
4 - A120 Entry 1.04 102 57 42.2 1154 1732
Main Results for each time segment
16:45 - 17:00
Arm Demand | Arivals | flow | Capacity | gec | Throughput | TEERSTEN | I | Lo, | Detay | os
(PCU/hR) |  (PCU) (pcushr) | (PCU/AN) (PCU/hT) (PCU/hr) | (Pcu) | (Pcu) (s)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 702 176 846 1293 0.543 698 639 0.0 1.2 6.133 A
2 - A120 Exit 1211 332
3 - A131 Underbridge 545 136 0.75 2351 0.232 544 1210 0.0 0.3 2.033 A
4 - A120 Entry 947 237 545 1511 0.627 940 0 0.0 1.7 6.403 A
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
1 - Pods Brook Road North 839 210 1010 1203 0.697 834 764 1.2 2.3 9877 A
2 - A120 Exit 1448 397
3 - A131 Underbridge 651 163 0.89 2351 0.277 651 1447 0.3 0.4 2.161 A
4 - A120 Entry 1131 283 651 1436 0.787 1123 0 1.7 3.6 11 531
17:15-17:30
A Total Junf::tion Circulating Capacity Throughput Thrqug_hput Start End
m Demand Arrivals flow RFC (exit side) queue queue | Delay(s)| LOS
(PCU/hr) |  (PCU) (PCU/mr) | (PCU/MD (Bclihn) (Pcumr) | (pcuy | (pcu)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 1027 257 1180 1110 0.925 1001 912 2.3 8.7 28 850
2 - A120 Exit 1699 482
3 - A131 Underbridge 797 199 1 2351 0.339 797 1698 0.4 0.5 2 365 A
4 - A120 Entry 1385 346 798 1334 1.038 1294 0 3.6 26.3 53 097
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
1 - Pods Brook Road North 1027 257 1199 1099 0.934 1019 921 8.7 10.7 40.005 E
2 - A120 Exit 1732 486
3 - A131 Underbridge 797 199 1 2351 0.339 797 1731 0.5 0.5 2.365 A
4 - A120 Entry 1385 346 798 1334 1.038 1321 0 263 42.2 102.567
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
1 - Pods Brook Road North 839 210 1124 1141 0.735 870 812 10.7 3.0 14 958 B
2 - A120 Exit 1588 405
3 - A131 Underbridge 651 163 0.93 2351 0.277 651 1587 0.5 0.4 2.164 A
4 - A120 Entry 1131 283 652 1436 0.788 1283 0 42.2 4.2 41.164
18:00 - 18:15
o pemand | Amvats | flow | Capacity | g | Througnpue | TCEUSERN | BER | S | petay | o
(PCU/hR) | (PCU) (pcushr) | (PCU/AN) (REUhD) (PCU/hr) | (PCU) | (Pcu) (s)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 702 176 858 1286 0.546 709 645 3.0 1.2 6.455 A
2 - A120 Exit 1232 335
3 - A131 Underbridge 545 136 0.76 2351 0.232 545 1231 0.4 0.3 2.035 A
4 - A120 Entry 947 237 546 1510 0.627 957 0 4.2 1.8 6.795 A
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2022, PM Reassigned with 400 Units

Data Errors and Warnings
No errors or warnings

Junction Network

Junctions
Junction Name Junction Type Arm order | Junction Delay (s) [ Junction LOS
1 A120 North Existing Roundabout | Standard Roundabout 1,2,3,4 101.72 [F

Junction Network Options

Driving side
Left

Lighting Network residual capacity (%) | First arm reaching threshold

4 - A120 Entry

Normal/unknown -12

Traffic Demand

Demand Set Details

D Scenario Time Period Traffic profile Start time Finish time Time segment length Run
name ime Ferlod name type (HH mm) (HH mm) (min) automatically
D10 | 2022 PM Reassﬁ?g’ with 400 ONE HOUR 16:45 18:15 15 v

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
1 - Pods Brook Road North ONE HOUR v 989 100 000
2 - A120 Exit
3 - A131 Underbridge ONE HOUR v 778 100 000
4 - A120 Entry ONE HOUR v 1313 100 000
Origin-Destination Data
Demand (PCU/hr)
To
1 - Pods Brook Road North | 2 - A120 Exit | 3 - A131 Underbridge | 4 - A120 Entry
1 - Pods Brook Road North 1 219 769 0
From | 2 - A120 Exit Exit-only Exit-only Exit-only Exit-only
3 - A131 Underbridge 533 243 2 0
4 - A120 Entry 398 0 915 0
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
1 - Pods Brook Road North 0.98 59.17 17.2 F 908 1361
2 - A120 Exit
3 - A131 Underbridge 0.36 2.46 0.6 A 714 1071
4 - A120 Entry 1.12 192 59 86.4 1205 1807
Main Results for each time segment
16:45 - 17:00
P Demand | Arivals | flow | Capacity | gec | Throughput | TCERSTEN | I | (Lo | Detay | os
(PCU/hR) |  (PCU) (pcushr) | (PCU/AN) (PCU/h) (PCU/hr) | (PCU) | (Pcu) (s)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 745 186 867 1281 0.581 739 698 0.0 1.4 6.722 A
2 - A120 Exit 1260 346
3 - A131 Underbridge 586 146 0.75 2351 0.249 584 1259 0.0 0.3 2.080 A
4 - A120 Entry 988 247 585 1482 0.667 980 0 0.0 2.0 7.250 A
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
1 - Pods Brook Road North 889 222 1035 1189 0.747 883 834 1.4 2.9 11.789 B
2 - A120 Exit 1504 414
3 - A131 Underbridge 699 175 0.89 2351 0.298 699 1503 0.3 0.4 2225 A
4 - A120 Entry 1180 295 700 1402 0.842 1169 0 2.0 4.9 15092
17:15-17:30
A Total Junf::tion Circulating Capacity Throughput Thrqug_hput Start End
m Demand Arrivals flow RFC (exit side) queue queue | Delay(s)| LOS
(PCU/hr) |  (PCU) (PCU/r) | (PCU/MD (Bcihn) (Pcumr) | (pcuy | (pcu)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 1089 272 1159 1122 0.971 1049 974 29 12.9 38.147 =
2 - A120 Exit 1708 500
3 - A131 Underbridge 857 214 1 2351 0.364 856 1707 0.4 0.6 2.457 A
4 - A120 Entry 1446 361 857 1293 1.118 1276 0 4.9 47.4 84 973
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
1 - Pods Brook Road North 1089 272 1169 1116 0.976 1072 979 129 17.2 59.170 F
2 - A120 Exit 1736 505
3 - A131 Underbridge 857 214 1 2351 0.364 857 1734 0.6 0.6 2.459 A
4 - A120 Entry 1446 361 858 1292 1.119 1290 0 47.4 86.4 192.591
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17:45 - 18:00
A Total Jun_ction Circulating Capacity Throughput Thro_ug_hput Start End
m Demand Arrivals flow RFC (exit side) queue queue | Delay (s) LOS
(PCU/hR) |  (PCU) (PCU/hr) | (PCU/AN) (ReU/hn) (Pcuihr) | (pcu) | (pcu)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 889 222 1186 1107 0.803 940 900 17 2 4.6 26.772
2 - A120 Exit 1699 427
3 - A131 Underbridge 699 175 0.95 2351 0.298 700 1698 0.6 0.4 2.226 A
4 - A120 Entry 1180 295 701 1402 0.842 1385 0 86.4 35.2 160.498
18:00 - 18:15
Arm D:rtr,ltaarlld J:rr:iflt:l,sn clr‘leuolvavtmg Capacity RFC [ihroughput T([;rx(;rgi[:i':)jt qsl::l:te qE:Se Delay (s)| LOS
(PCU/hr) |  (PCU) (PCU/nr) | (PCU/MD (Bclihn) (Pcumr) | (pcuy | (pcu)
1 - Pods Brook Road North 745 186 966 1227 0.607 757 742 4.6 1.6 8 008 A
2 - A120 Exit 1371 351
3 - A131 Underbridge 586 146 0.76 2351 0.249 586 1371 0.4 0.3 2084 A
4 - A120 Entry 988 247 587 1481 0.667 1121 0 35.2 21 14 690
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5.21

5.22

the 2022 with committed development scenario. In view of this, improvements to the A120 off
slip road approach to the A120 north roundabout would be required in 2022 without any
development at Brook Green.

The ARCADY results indicate that the addition of the traffic associated with 400 units at Brook
Green would significantly add to the queue already on the slip road and as such would require
some mitigation.

Given that background growth in 2020 would be likely to lead to a situation whereby queuing
would extend beyond the slip road length and additional traffic associated with either 200 or 400
units would compound that situation, the development would bring forward the aforementioned
improvement prior to 2020 or the occupation of 200 units, whichever is the sooner.





